
Page 1 of 4 

 

AGENDA 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
TUESDAY, JANUARY 03, 2023 

7:00 PM AT CITY HALL, 220 CLAY STREET 

 

 
 
Call to Order by the Mayor 

Roll Call 

Pledge of Allegiance 

Approval of Minutes 

1. Regular meeting of December 19, 2022. 

Agenda Revisions 

Special Presentations 

Public Forum. (Speakers will have one opportunity to speak for up to 5 minutes on topics relevant to City 
business.) 

Staff Updates 

Special Order of Business 

2. Public hearing on the proposed FY2023-FY2028 Capital Improvements Program (CIP). 
 
a) Receive and file proof of publication of notice of hearing. (Notice published December 21, 2022) 
 
b) Written communication filed with the City Clerk. 
 
c) Staff comments. 
 
d) Public comments. 
 
e) Resolution approving and adopting the FY2023-FY2028 Capital Improvements Program (CIP). 

3. Resolution declaring an official intent under Treasury Regulation 1.150-2 to issue debt to reimburse 
the City for certain original expenditures paid in connection with specified projects. 

4. Public hearing on a proposed Southwest Cedar Falls Urban Renewal Plan for a proposed urban 
renewal area.   
 
a) Receive and file proof of publication of notice of hearing. (Notice published December 22, 2022) 
 
b) Written communications filed with the City Clerk. 
 
c) Staff comments. 
 
d) Public comments. 
 
e) Resolution determining an area of the City to be an economic development area, and that the 
rehabilitation, conservation, redevelopment or a combination thereof, of such area is necessary in 

1



Page 2 of 4 

the interest of the public health, safety or welfare of the residents of the City; designating such area 
as appropriate for urban renewal projects; and adopting the Southwest Cedar Falls Urban Renewal 
Plan. 

5. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Offer to Buy Real Estate and Acceptance for 
real estate located at 6512 West Ridgeway Avenue relative to expansion of the West Viking Road 
Industrial Park. (contingent upon approval of previous item) 

Old Business 

6. Repass, over Mayor’s veto, Ordinance #3021, amending Section 18-23(5), Powers and duties of the 
Planning and Zoning Commission, of the Code of Ordinances relative to removing 2/3 majority vote 
required by City Council to approve amendments to the City's comprehensive plan that are 
disapproved by the Planning and Zoning Commission. (Requires five aye votes to override Mayor’s 
veto) 

7. Repass, over Mayor’s veto, Ordinance #3022, amending Chapter 26, Zoning, of the Code of 
Ordinances relative to removing the 2/3 majority vote required by City Council to approve zoning 
amendments that are disapproved by the Planning and Zoning Commission. (Requires five aye 
votes to override Mayor’s veto) 

Consent Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by voice vote on a single motion without separate 

discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered separately.) 

8. Receive and file the report of the Mayor relative to the appointment of Mayor Pro Tem for 2023. 

9. Receive and file the report of the Mayor relative to the appointment of Standing Committees for 
2023. 

10. Receive and file Disclosures of Potential Conflicts of Interest for elected officials. 

11. Receive and file the City Council Goal Setting Report of November 15 & 17, 2022. 

12. Receive and file the City Council Standing Committee minutes of December 19, 2022 relative to the 
following items: 
a) Capital Improvements Program (CIP). 
b) Format of FY2024 City Council Goals, Work Program and Short-Term Financial Plan document. 

13. Receive and file CFD 1123: Mayor Policy - Council Meeting Security and Good Order. 

14. Receive and file CFD 1129: Mayor Policy - Administrator Performance Evaluation. 

15. Receive and file the resignation of Don Timmerman as a member of the Housing Commission. 

16. Receive and file Departmental Monthly Reports of November 2022. 

17. Approve the following applications for retail alcohol licenses: 
a) Huhot Mongolian Grill, 6301 University Avenue, Special Class C retail alcohol - renewal. 
b) Hy-Vee Market Grille, 6301 University Avenue, Class C retail alcohol – change in ownership. 
c) Hy-Vee Food Store, 6301 University Avenue, Class E retail alcohol – change in ownership. 
d) AmericInn by Wyndham, 5818 Nordic Drive, Class B retail alcohol – new. 
e) Holiday Inn Express & Suites, 1614 Technology Parkway, Class B retail alcohol – new. 
f) Second State Brewing, 203 State Street, Class C retail alcohol & outdoor service – new. 

Resolution Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by roll call vote on a single motion without 
separate discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered 
separately.) 

18. Resolution Calendar with items considered separately. 

2



Page 3 of 4 

19. Resolution approving and adopting the FY2024 City Council Goals, Work Program and Short-Term 
Financial Plan. 

20. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Services Agreement with Cope Murphy + Co. 
LLP relative to providing lobbyist services relative to legislative action. 

21. Resolution approving and adopting amendments to Personnel Policy 307: Overtime, for the City of 
Cedar Falls. 

22. Resolution levying a final assessment for costs incurred by the City to mow the property located at 
316 East 10th Street. 

23. Resolution levying a final assessment for costs incurred by the City to mow the property located at 
323 West 2nd Street. 

24. Resolution levying a final assessment for costs incurred by the City to mow the property located at 
829 Lilac Lane. 

25. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement for the Use of State or Local 
Overtime and Authorized Expense/Strategic Initiative Program for Organized Crime Drug 
Enforcement Task Force (OCDETF) for FY2023, Case #WC-IAN-139. 

26. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement for the Use of State or Local 
Overtime and Authorized Expense/Strategic Initiative Program for Organized Crime Drug 
Enforcement Task Force (OCDETF) for FY2023, Case #WC-IAN-136. 

27. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Travel Iowa Data Co-op Agreement with the 
Iowa Economic Development Authority (IEDA) relative to access to statewide and localized visitation 
data. 

28. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Storm Water Maintenance and Repair 
Agreement with Cedar Falls Community School District (CFCSD) relative to a post-construction 
stormwater management plan for the 70-acre site along West 27th Street. 

29. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Storm Water Maintenance and Repair 
Agreement with Covenant Medical Center relative to a post-construction stormwater management 
plan for 226 Bluebell Road. 

30. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Owner Purchase Agreement; and approving 
and accepting one Temporary Construction Easement, in conjunction with the Main Street 
Reconstruction Project. 

31. Resolution approving and accepting two Warranty Deeds, in conjunction with the Main Street 
Reconstruction Project. 

32. Resolution approving a C-1, Commercial Zoning District site plan for construction of a tri-plex to be 
located on Lot 4, Hannah Park Commercial Addition. 

33. Resolution setting January 17, 2023 as the date of public hearing on the proposed rezoning to R-4, 
Multiple Unit Residential, and associated zoning agreement for property located on Greenhill Circle, 
Midway Business Park. 

34. Resolution setting January 17, 2023 as the date of public hearing on the proposed rezoning from R-
4, Multiple Unit Residential, to R-1, One & Two Unit Residential, for Lots 1-4, Midway Second 
Addition. 

Allow Bills and Claims 

35. Allow Bills and Claims for January 3, 2023. 

Council Updates and Announcements 

3



Page 4 of 4 

Council Referrals 

Executive Session 

36. Executive Session to discuss Legal Matters per Iowa Code Section 21.5(1)(c) to discuss strategy 
with counsel in matters that are presently in litigation or where litigation is imminent where its 
disclosure would be likely to prejudice or disadvantage the position of the governmental body in that 
litigation. 

Adjournment 

4



CITY HALL 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, DECEMBER 19, 2022 

REGULAR MEETING, CITY COUNCIL 
MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN PRESIDING 

  
The City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, met in Regular Session, 
pursuant to law, the rules of said Council and prior notice given each member 
thereof, at 7:00 P.M. on the above date. Members present: Schultz, deBuhr, 
Kruse, Harding, Ganfield, Sires, Dunn. Absent: None. Mayor Green led the 
Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

54075 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Ganfield that the minutes of the Regular 
Meeting of December 5, 2022 be approved as presented and ordered of record. 
Motion carried unanimously. 

 
54076 -  The Salvation Army Major Martin Thies presented Mayor Green with the Battle of 

the Bells 2022 trophy. 
 

54077 -  Tamie Stahl, 1009 Lakeshore Drive, commented on “counterintelligence” tactics 
in government. 

 
54078 - City Administrator Gaines announced Friday, December 23, Monday, December 

26, and Monday, January 2, as city-observed holidays and noted City Council 
meetings in January will be held on Tuesday, January 3 and Tuesday, January 
17. 

 
  Mayor Green provided an update on the Emergency Management Commission 

and the establishment of the Emergency Management Agency Levee by the 
county. 

  
54079 - Mayor Green announced that in accordance with the public notice of December 

9, 2022, this was the time and place for a public hearing on the proposed 
conveyance of city-owned real estate to Cedar Falls Utilities by means of a non-
exclusive permanent easement for the relocation of utilities. It was then moved 
by Kruse and seconded by Harding that the proof of publication of notice of 
hearing be received and placed on file. Motion carried unanimously. 

 
54080 - The Mayor then asked if there were any written communications filed to the 

proposed proposal. Upon being advised that there were no written 
communications on file, the Mayor then called for oral comments. Civil Engineer 
Claypool provided a summary of the proposal. There being no one else present 
wishing to speak about the proposal, the Mayor declared the hearing closed and 
passed to the next order of business. 

 
54081 -     It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Schultz that Resolution #22,999, 

approving and authorizing conveyance of a non-exclusive permanent easement 
to Cedar Falls Utilities for the relocation of utilities, be adopted. Following a 
question by Councilmember Ganfield and response by Civil Engineer Claypool, 
the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following 

5

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 2 - 

 

named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Dunn, Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, 
Ganfield, Sires. Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor then declared Resolution 
#22,999 duly passed and adopted. 

 
54082 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Harding that the following items on the 

Consent Calendar be received, filed and approved: 
 

 Receive and file the resignation of Eashaan Vajpeyi as a member of the Human 
Rights Commission. 

 Approve the following recommendations of the Mayor relative to the appointment 
of members to Boards and Commissions: 
a) Craig Fairbanks, Housing Commission, term ending 12/31/2024. 
b) Helen Pearce, Housing Commission, term ending 12/31/2024. 
c) Kevin Fittro, Board of Appeals, term ending 12/31/2025. 
d) Jason Huff, Board of Appeals, term ending 12/31/2025. 
e) Katy Susong, Board of Appeals, term ending 12/31/2026. 
f) Debra Waterman, Board of Appeals, term ending 12/31/2026. 
g) Ross Samek, Board of Appeals, term ending 12/31/2026. 
h) Rick Mott, Board of Electrical Appeals, term ending 12/31/2023. 
i) Rick Dumler, Board of Electrical Appeals, term ending 12/31/26. 
j) William Pierce, Board of Mechanical Appeals, term ending 12/31/2024. 
k) Steve Broell, Board of Mechanical Appeals, term ending 12/31/2026. 
l) Colin Frese, Board of Mechanical Appeals, term ending 12/31/2026. 
m) Andrew Tink, Board of Plumbing Appeals, term ending 12/31/2023. 
n) Travis Davison, Board of Plumbing Appeals, term ending 12/31/2026. 

 Receive and file the City Council Standing Committee minutes of December 5, 
2022 relative to the following items: 
a) Grow Cedar Valley Update. 
b) Council Policy on Official City Proclamations. 
c) Council Policy on Public Awards and Recognition. 
d) Council Policy on Boards and Commissions Interviews. 

 Approve the following applications for retail alcohol licenses: 
a) Rancho Chico, 618 Brandilynn Boulevard, Class C retail alcohol - renewal. 
b) Wild Hare American Bar and Grill, 2512 Whitetail Drive, Class C retail alcohol 
& outdoor service - renewal. 
c) Golf Lab, 201 Washington Street, Special Class C retail alcohol - new.  

 Motion carried unanimously. 

54083 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Harding to receive and file Mayoral veto 
of Ordinance #3021, amending Section 18-23(5), Powers and duties of the 
Planning and Zoning Commission, of the Code of Ordinances relative to 
removing 2/3 majority vote required by City Council to approve amendments to 
the City's comprehensive plan that are disapproved by the Planning and Zoning 
Commission, and Ordinance #3022, amending Chapter 26, Zoning, of the Code 
of Ordinances relative to removing the 2/3 majority vote required by City Council 
to approve zoning amendments that are disapproved by the Planning and Zoning 

6

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 3 - 

 

Commission. Following comments and questions by Councilmembers Sires, 
deBuhr, Harding and Kruse, Tamie Stahl, 1009 Lakeshore Drive, and Craig 
Fairbanks, 405 Spruce Hills Drive, who requested reconsideration of the veto, 
and responses by City Attorney Rogers and Mayor Green, the motion carried 6-
1, with Sires voting Nay. 

 
54084 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Harding that the following resolutions 

be introduced and adopted: 
 

 Resolution #23,000, approving and adopting CFD 1127: Council Policy - Official 
City Proclamations. 

 Resolution #23,001, approving and adopting CFD 1128: Council Policy - Public 
Awards and Recognition. 

 Resolution #23,002, approving and adopting Personnel Policy 223: Sexual 
Abuse Prevention, for the City of Cedar Falls. 

 Resolution #23,003, approving and adopting Personnel Policy 608: Concussion 
and Head Injury, for the City of Cedar Falls. 

 Resolution #22,004, levying a final assessment for costs incurred by the City to 
mow the property located at 2722 College Street. 

 Resolution #23,005, levying a final assessment for costs incurred by the City to 
mow the property located at 2804 College Street. 

 Resolution #23,006, levying a final assessment for costs incurred by the City to 
mow the property located at 2208 Coventry Lane. 

 Resolution #22,007, approving and authorizing execution of an amended Master 
Service Agreement and Statement of Work with Municode, LLC, subsidiary of 
CivicPlus, LLC, relative to City code supplementation. 

 Resolution #22,008, approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement with 
Elise Bovy with Northeast Iowa Area Agency on Aging relative to providing Tai 
Chi classes at the Recreation Center. 

 Resolution #23,009, approving and authorizing execution of an Assignment and 
Assumption Agreement between Orion Cedar Falls IA, LLC and Reel Deal 
Holdings, LLC, pursuant to the terms of the Agreement for Private Development 
with Ryan Companies US, Inc. relative to the transfer of ownership of property 
located at 1100 Technology Parkway. 

 Resolution #23,010, approving and authorizing execution of a Contract with 
Family Management Financial Solutions relative to Community Development 
Block Grant (CDBG) funding for service agencies. 

 Resolution #23,011, approving and authorizing execution of a Contract with The 
Salvation Army relative to Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) funding 
for service agencies. 

7

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 4 - 

 

 Resolution #23,012, approving and authorizing execution of Amendment Number 
Three to the Subaward Agreement with the Iowa Department of Homeland 
Security and Emergency Management Division (HSEMD) for an extension of the 
Voluntary Property Acquisition Program funded through the Hazard Mitigation 
Grant Program relative to the Northern Cedar Falls Flood Buyout. 

 Resolution #23,013, approving the Certificate of Completion and accepting the 
work of Blacktop Service Company for the 2022 Seal Coat Project, and 
approving and authorizing the transfer of funds from the Street Construction 
Fund to the Street Repair Fund. 

 Resolution #23,014, setting January 3, 2023 as date of public hearing on the 
proposed FY2023-FY2028 Capital Improvements Program (CIP).  

Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the 
motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. 
Aye: Dunn, Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Ganfield, Sires. Nay: None. Motion 
carried. The Mayor then declared Resolutions #23,000 through #23,014 duly 
passed and adopted. 

54085 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Harding that Resolution #23,015, 
approving and adopting amendments to Personnel Policy 903: Grievance 
Procedure, for the City of Cedar Falls, be adopted. Following comments and 
questions by Councilmembers Dunn, Sires, deBuhr and Ganfield, and response 
by Mayor Green, the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the 
roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse, 
Ganfield, Sires. Nay: Dunn, Harding. Motion Carried. The Mayor then declared 
Resolution #23,015 duly passed and adopted. 

54086 - It was moved by Harding and seconded by Dunn that Resolution #23,016, 
receiving and filing, and approving and accepting the bid of Peterson Contractors 
Inc., in the amount of $29,997,049.50, being the only bid received for the Main 
Street Reconstruction Project, be adopted. Following comments and questions 
by Councilmembers Sires, Harding, Schultz, deBuhr, Dunn, Kruse and Ganfield, 
Mayor Green, Craig Fairbanks, 405 Spruce Hills Drive (opposes), and Roger 
White, 2308 Greenwood Avenue (supports), and responses by Public Works 
Director Schrage, the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the 
roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Dunn, Schultz, deBuhr, 
Harding. Nay: Kruse, Ganfield, Sires. Motion Carried. The Mayor then declared 
Resolution #23,016 duly passed and adopted. 

54087 - It was moved by Harding and seconded by Dunn that Resolution #23,017, 
receiving and filing the bids, and approving and accepting the bid of Peterson 
Contractors, Inc., in the amount of $6,279,130.00, being the lowest bid received 
for the Cedar River Recreational River Area and Riverbank Improvements 
Project, be adopted. Following comments and questions by Councilmembers 
Dunn, Harding, Schultz, Kruse, deBuhr, Ganfield and Sires, Mayor Green, and 
Craig Fairbanks, 405 Spruce Hills Drive, and responses by Public Works Director 
Schrage, City Administrator Gaines, Community Development Director Sheetz, 
Mayor Green, and City Attorney Rogers, the Mayor put the question on the 

8

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 5 - 

 

motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. 
Aye: Dunn, Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Sires. Nay: Ganfield. Motion 
Carried. The Mayor then declared Resolution #23,017 duly passed and adopted. 

54088 - It was moved by Harding and seconded by Dunn that Resolution #23,018, 
approving and accepting the contract and bond of Peterson Contractors, Inc. for 
the Cedar River Recreational River Area and Riverbank Improvements Project, 
be adopted. Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the 
question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Dunn, Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Ganfield, 
Sires. Nay: None. Motion Carried. The Mayor then declared Resolution #23,018 
duly passed and adopted. 

54089 -  It was moved by Harding and seconded by Schultz that the bills and claims of 
December 19, 2022 be allowed as presented, and that the Controller/City 
Treasurer be authorized to issue City checks in the proper amounts and on the 
proper funds in payment of the same. Upon call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Dunn, Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Ganfield, 
Sires. Nay: None. Motion carried. 

   
54090 -     It was moved by deBuhr and seconded by Ganfield to include repass over the 

Mayor’s vetoes on the January 3, 2023 City Council meeting agenda. Motion 
carried 5-2, with Dunn and Harding voting Nay. 

 
54091 -     It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Harding to adjourn to Executive 

Session discuss Legal Matters per Iowa Code Section 21.5(1)(c) to discuss 
strategy with counsel in matters that are presently in litigation or where litigation 
is imminent where its disclosure would be likely to prejudice or disadvantage the 
position of the governmental body in that litigation. Upon call of the roll, the 
following named Councilmembers voted.  Aye: Dunn, Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse, 
Harding, Ganfield, Sires.  Nay: None.  Motion carried. 

 
     The City Council adjourned to Executive Session at 9:13 P.M. 
 
     Mayor Green reconvened the Council meeting at 10:24 P.M.   
   
54092 - It was moved by Dunn and seconded by Sires that the meeting be adjourned at 

10:25 P.M.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
    ________________________________ 
  Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

9

Item 1.



OEPARTMENT OF FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
220 CLAY STREET
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613
319-273-8500
FAX 319-268-5125

INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM

TO: Mayor Green & City Council Members

FROM: Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance & Business Operations

DATE: December 21,2022

SUBJECT: FY23-FY2SCapitallmprovementsprogram

The FY23-FY28 Capital lmprovements Program (ClP) is on the agenda for your formal
approval. The CIP was presented at the Finance & Business Opeiations committee on
December 19th. The presentation included a detail review of the CIP and based on the
committee's discussion, the following project changes have been made on the enclosed
CIP:

Item #36 - Downtown Parking Structure (Total project cost = $2O,4OO,OOO) -
funding was pushed back one year for each of the years listed.

Item #58 - community-wide strategic Plan (Total project cost = $2s,000) -
funding was moved up to FY24 and FY25 (112 of the funding in each of those
years).

Item #64 - Resilience lnitiatives (Total project cost = $150,000) - Fy24
funding was removed, reducing the total project cost to $125,000.

Funding sources on the summary page now show an * next to the funding
sources that are not city funding but are funding sources from outside
agencies to clarify the funding amounts committed by the City.

Upon approval of the ClP, the next steps of the budget process will continue, which
includes incorporating the projects listed in the FY24 column into the budget.

lf you have questions regarding the clP, please feel free to contact me.

10

Item 2.



11

Item 2.



12

Item 2.



13

Item 2.



14

Item 2.



15

Item 2.



16

Item 2.



17

Item 2.



18

Item 2.



19

Item 2.



20

Item 2.



21

Item 2.



22

Item 2.



23

Item 2.



24

Item 2.



25

Item 2.



26

Item 2.



27

Item 2.



28

Item 2.



29

Item 2.



30

Item 2.



31

Item 2.



32

Item 2.



33

Item 2.



34

Item 2.



35

Item 2.



36

Item 2.



37

Item 2.



38

Item 2.



39

Item 2.



40

Item 2.



41

Item 2.



42

Item 2.



43

Item 2.



44

Item 2.



45

Item 2.



46

Item 2.



47

Item 2.



48

Item 2.



49

Item 2.



50

Item 2.



51

Item 2.



52

Item 2.



53

Item 2.



54

Item 2.



55

Item 2.



56

Item 2.



57

Item 2.



58

Item 2.



59

Item 2.



60

Item 2.



61

Item 2.



62

Item 2.



63

Item 2.



64

Item 2.



65

Item 2.



66

Item 2.



67

Item 2.



68

Item 2.



69

Item 2.



70

Item 2.



71

Item 2.



72

Item 2.



73

Item 2.



74

Item 2.



75

Item 2.



76

Item 2.



77

Item 2.



78

Item 2.



79

Item 2.



80

Item 2.



81

Item 2.



82

Item 2.



83

Item 2.



84

Item 2.



85

Item 2.



86

Item 2.



87

Item 2.



88

Item 2.



89

Item 2.



90

Item 2.



91

Item 2.



92

Item 2.



93

Item 2.



94

Item 2.



95

Item 2.



96

Item 2.



97

Item 2.



98

Item 2.



99

Item 2.



100

Item 2.



101

Item 2.



102

Item 2.



103

Item 2.



104

Item 2.



105

Item 2.



106

Item 2.



107

Item 2.



108

Item 2.



109

Item 2.



110

Item 2.



111

Item 2.



112

Item 2.



113

Item 2.



114

Item 2.



115

Item 2.



116

Item 2.



117

Item 2.



118

Item 2.



119

Item 2.



120

Item 2.



121

Item 2.



122

Item 2.



123

Item 2.



124

Item 2.



125

Item 2.



126

Item 2.



127

Item 2.



128

Item 2.



129

Item 2.



130

Item 2.



131

Item 2.



132

Item 2.



133

Item 2.



134

Item 2.



135

Item 2.



136

Item 2.



137

Item 2.



138

Item 2.



139

Item 2.



140

Item 2.



141

Item 2.



142

Item 2.



143

Item 2.



144

Item 2.



145

Item 2.



146

Item 2.



147

Item 2.



148

Item 2.



149

Item 2.



150

Item 2.



151

Item 2.



152

Item 2.



153

Item 2.



154

Item 2.



155

Item 2.



156

Item 2.



157

Item 2.



158

Item 2.



159

Item 2.



160

Item 2.



161

Item 2.



162

Item 2.



163

Item 2.



164

Item 2.



165

Item 2.



166

Item 2.



167

Item 2.



168

Item 2.



169

Item 2.



170

Item 2.



171

Item 2.



172

Item 2.



173

Item 2.



174

Item 2.



175

Item 2.



176

Item 2.



177

Item 2.



178

Item 2.



179

Item 2.



180

Item 2.



181

Item 2.



182

Item 2.



183

Item 2.



184

Item 2.



185

Item 2.



186

Item 2.



187

Item 2.



188

Item 2.



189

Item 2.



190

Item 2.



191

Item 2.



192

Item 2.



193

Item 2.



194

Item 2.



195

Item 2.



196

Item 2.



197

Item 2.



198

Item 2.



199

Item 2.



200

Item 2.



201

Item 2.



202

Item 2.



203

Item 2.



204

Item 2.



205

Item 2.



206

Item 2.



207

Item 2.



208

Item 2.



209

Item 2.



210

Item 2.



211

Item 2.



212

Item 2.



213

Item 2.



214

Item 2.



215

Item 2.



216

Item 2.



217

Item 2.



218

Item 2.



219

Item 2.



220

Item 2.



221

Item 2.



222

Item 2.



223

Item 2.



224

Item 2.



225

Item 2.



226

Item 2.



227

Item 2.



228

Item 2.



229

Item 2.



230

Item 2.



231

Item 2.



232

Item 2.



233

Item 2.



234

Item 2.



235

Item 2.



236

Item 2.



237

Item 2.



238

Item 2.



239

Item 2.



240

Item 2.



241

Item 2.



242

Item 2.



243

Item 2.



244

Item 2.



245

Item 2.



246

Item 2.



247

Item 2.



248

Item 2.



249

Item 2.



250

Item 2.



251

Item 2.



252

Item 2.



253

Item 2.



254

Item 2.



255

Item 2.



256

Item 2.



257

Item 2.



258

Item 2.



259

Item 2.



260

Item 2.



261

Item 2.



262

Item 2.



263

Item 2.



264

Item 2.



265

Item 2.



266

Item 2.



267

Item 2.



268

Item 2.



269

Item 2.



270

Item 2.



271

Item 2.



272

Item 2.



273

Item 2.



274

Item 2.



275

Item 2.



276

Item 2.



277

Item 2.



278

Item 2.



279

Item 2.



280

Item 2.



281

Item 2.



282

Item 2.



283

Item 2.



284

Item 2.



285

Item 2.



286

Item 2.



287

Item 2.



288

Item 2.



   DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS 

 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

220 CLAY STREET 

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 

319-273-8600 

FAX 319-268-5126 
     I N T E R O F F I C E   M E M O R A N D U M 

 

 TO: Mayor Green and City Council Members   

 FROM: Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance & Business Operations 

 DATE: December 21, 2022 

 SUBJECT: Annual Reimbursement Resolution 

 
Please find attached a copy of the IRS mandated reimbursement resolution.  Each year 
the City submits a list of projects prior to the sale of General Obligation bonds and 
Revenue bonds that allows the City to be eligible to reimburse ourselves from the bond 
funds for previously incurred expenses relating to the projects listed. 
 
The attachment referred to in the resolution will be the FY23-FY28 Capital 
Improvements Program (CIP) that is also being presented to Council for approval.  After 
formal adoption, a copy of the final CIP will be attached to the resolution and filed in the 
City’s official records.  
 
If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

289

Item 3.



RESOLUTION NO. __________ 
 

RESOLUTION DECLARING AN OFFICIAL INTENT UNDER TREASURY 
REGULATION  1.150-2 TO ISSUE DEBT TO REIMBURSE THE CITY FOR 

CERTAIN ORIGINAL EXPENDITURES PAID IN CONNECTION WITH 
SPECIFIED PROJECTS 

 
WHEREAS, the City anticipates making cash expenditures for one or more 

capital improvements projects, generally described on Attachment A (each of which 

shall hereinafter be referred to as a "Project"), and 

 

WHEREAS, the City reasonably expects to issue debt to reimburse the costs of a 

Project, and 

 

WHEREAS, the Council believes it is consistent with the City's budgetary and 

financial circumstances to issue this declaration of official intent. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved by the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, 

Iowa: 

Section 1.  That this Resolution be and does hereby serve as a declaration of 

official intent under Treasury Regulation 1.150-2. 

Section 2.  That it is reasonably expected that capital expenditures will be made 

in respect of the foregoing Projects, from time to time and in such amounts as this 

Council determines to be necessary or desirable under the circumstances then and 

there existing. 

Section 3.  That the City reasonably expects to reimburse all or a portion of the 

foregoing expenditures with the proceeds of bonds, notes or other indebtedness to be 

issued or incurred by the City in the future. 

Section 4.  That the total estimated costs of the projects, the maximum principal 

amount of bonds, notes or other indebtedness to be issued for the foregoing Projects and 

the estimated dates of completion of the Projects are reasonably expected to be as follows: 

 

 

290

Item 3.



See Attachment A: 

 All Projects with the identifications code of G.O. 2020, 2022, 

2024, 2026, and 2028; SRF, STW, SRB-2018, SRB-2024,and 

SRB-2026. 

 All Projects with the identifications code of TIF-UN, TIF-DT, TIF-

CH, TIF-PP, and TIF-STH. 

 All Projects with CP, LST, SCF, ER, and GFS. 

If such grants are not received, it is intended that the costs to be financed will be 

increased accordingly. 

Section 5.  That the City reasonably expects to reimburse the above-mentioned 

Project costs no later than the later of eighteen months after the capital expenditures are 

paid or eighteen months after the property is placed in service. 

Section 6.  That this Resolution be maintained by the City Clerk in an Official Intent 

File maintained in the office of the City Clerk and available at all times for public inspection, 

subject to such revisions as may be necessary. 

 

ADOPTED this 3rd day of January 2023.       

                                                                                                                                       

                                                                                     ________________________ 
                                                                                Robert M. Green, Mayor 
                                                                                            
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________ 
Jacque Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

291

Item 3.



ADMINISTRATION 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone:  319-273-8600 
Fax:  319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 

 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 

 FROM: Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator 

 DATE: December 21, 2022 

 SUBJECT: Adoption of the Southwest Cedar Falls Urban Renewal Plan 
 
 
At its December 5, 2022 meeting, City Council set a date of public hearing on the 
proposed Southwest Cedar Falls Urban Renewal Plan.  The proposed Urban Renewal 
Plan for the Southwest Cedar Falls Urban Renewal Area has been developed to help 
promote economic development in this portion of Cedar Falls. The primary goal of this 
Plan is to stimulate, through public involvement and commitment, private investment in 
new and expanded commercial and industrial development in the Urban Renewal Area. 
 
This area is being formed from property that the City is planning to acquire, in order to 
expand the city’s industrial park, which is located adjacent to this property. By placing 
this property in an urban renewal area, the City can then use tax increment financing 
funds (TIF) to assist in the future development this property (see image below). 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

292

Item 4.



As you can see in the proposed Plan, eligible urban renewal projects that may be 
undertaken within the area include development agreements, land acquisitions, 
extension of utilities by Cedar Falls Utilities, capital improvement/public infrastructure 
projects, and legal fees and expenses. 
 
Part of the legal requirement for establishing a new Urban Renewal Plan is to notify the 
local taxing entities (in this case Black Hawk County and Dike-New Hartford School 
District) and conduct a “consultation session” to discuss the proposed Southwest Cedar 
Falls Urban Renewal Plan. A copy of the Minutes from the December 13, 2022 
consultation session is attached as part of the adopting resolution. 
 
Another legal requirement for establishing a new Urban Renewal Plan is that the 
Planning and Zoning Commission must review and provide a recommendation finding 
that the proposed Plan is in conformance with the general plan for the development of 
the municipality as a whole (also known as the Cedar Falls Comprehensive Plan). The 
Planning and Zoning Commission did review the proposed Southwest Cedar Falls 
Urban Renewal Plan at their December 14, 2022 meeting, where it was unanimously 
recommended that the proposed Plan was in conformance with the general plan for the 
development of the municipality as a whole (see attached minutes that are part of the 
adopting resolution). 
 
With the above information noted, a copy of the proposed Southwest Cedar Falls Urban 
Renewal Plan (Exhibit 1 to the Resolution) is attached for your review.  This Plan and 
related documents were drafted by city staff in coordination with the Ahlers Law Office in 
Des Moines. 
 
It is important to keep in mind that the projects and associated cost estimates are 
maximum expenditures for potential projects that may occur within the Southwest 
Cedar Falls Urban Renewal Area over the next few years.  To the best of our ability, 
staff is trying to identify all potential future projects to minimize the need for constant 
plan amendments (hopefully for the next 12-18 months) that require significant amounts 
of staff time and legal expense. 
 
Prior to entering into any new Development Agreements or proceeding with future 
infrastructure projects within the area, it is required that the Southwest Cedar Falls 
Urban Renewal Plan be adopted.  Staff recommends that City Council adopt the 
following attached Resolution prepared by the Ahlers Law Office: 
 

1. Resolution determining an area of the City to be an economic development area, 
and that the rehabilitation, conservation, redevelopment, development, or a 
combination thereof, of such area is necessary in the interest of the public health, 
safety or welfare of the residents of the City; designating such area as 
appropriate for urban renewal projects; and adopting the Southwest Cedar Falls 
Urban Renewal Plan. 

 

 
 
 
 

293

Item 4.



If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me. 
 
Xc:  Ron Gaines, P.E., City Administrator 
       Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance and Business Operations 
       Nathan Overberg, Ahlers Law Office 

294

Item 4.



Inn
ova

tio
nD

r

Capital Way

De
ve

lop
me

nt 
Dr

Product ion Dr
Technology Pkwy

Te
ch

no
log

yP
l

S U
nio

n R
d

Venture Way

W Ridgeway Ave

S U
nio

n R
d

Date: 11/29/2022 I

City of Cedar Falls, Iowa
Proposed Southwest Cedar
Falls Urban Renewal Area

Legend

Cedar Falls Corporate Limits

Southwest Cedar Falls
Urban Renewal Area

295

Item 4.



296

Item 4.



297

Item 4.



298

Item 4.



299

Item 4.



300

Item 4.



301

Item 4.



302

Item 4.



303

Item 4.



304

Item 4.



305

Item 4.



306

Item 4.



307

Item 4.



308

Item 4.



309

Item 4.



310

Item 4.



311

Item 4.



312

Item 4.



313

Item 4.



314

Item 4.



315

Item 4.



316

Item 4.



317

Item 4.



318

Item 4.



319

Item 4.



320

Item 4.



321

Item 4.



322

Item 4.



323

Item 4.



324

Item 4.



325

Item 4.



326

Item 4.



327

Item 4.



ADMINISTRATION 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone:  319-273-8600 
Fax:  319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 

 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 

 FROM: Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator 

 DATE: December 21, 2022 

 SUBJECT: Property Acquisition: Shirley Olander, Sandra Watson, Julie Ladage 
  Location: 6512 W. Ridgeway Avenue, just south of the West Viking Road 

Industrial Park.  
 
 
Attached for your review and approval is the Offer to Buy Real Estate and Acceptance 
with Shirley Olander, Sandra Watson and Julie Ladage for the purchase of their 75.98 
acre (more or less) property located just south of the West Viking Road Industrial Park, 
at 6512 W. Ridgeway Avenue. The City has been working with the owners’ attorney for 
the past several months towards this possible property acquisition. 
 
Over the past several months, staff has been meeting to discuss potential strategic land 
acquisitions for the continued long-term development of the Cedar Falls Industrial 
Parks. The primary factors driving this recommended acquisition include: 
 

 The interest in the new expansion area of the industrial park (adjacent to the 
north) has been very positive, with several large industrial projects already being 
planned for this area. 
 

 The property is located adjacent to the City’s West Viking Road Industrial Park, 
which was platted in a way that future expansion of the industrial park could 
expand onto this property. 

 

 The 75.98-acre property will provide the City an option to provide larger sites for 
large-scale developments. 

 
The 75.98-acre purchase from the property owners was first presented to City Council 
in Executive Session several months ago with a positive indication to pursue the 
acquisition. The long-term development of this property would be for the expansion of 
the West Viking Road Industrial Park, which is located directly to the north of this 
property. As this development of the industrial park expansion area has begun to the 
north, city staff has received interest in these lots from numerous developers and 
companies, which has led staff to consider this acquisition for the next industrial park 

328

Item 5.



expansion area. We anticipate future potential large site projects will be high quality, 
high valuation, and create employment opportunities. 
    
The agreed upon purchase price for the property is $2,175,000. The existing farm lease 
that the owner’s had in place has been terminated for 2023, and the City will investigate 
whether site work can start within the next year or if a Farm Lease Request for Proposal 
should be sent out for this property in order to generate revenue until the property is ready 
for infrastructure installation. Any potential future farm income from this property would 
be paid to the City of Cedar Falls. 
 
Payment for this purchase would be made from the City’s Economic Development Fund. 
The $2,175,000 expenditure will then be reimbursed in its entirety from the Southwest 
Cedar Falls Urban Renewal Plan (TIF District) when debt is certified by the City. Attached 
for your review is the Offer to Buy Real Estate and Acceptance contract prepared by City 
Attorney Kevin Rogers covering the entire 75.98 acres owned by Shirley Olander, Sandra 
Watson and Julie Ladage. The attached document has been executed by all of the above 
property owners. 

RECOMMENDATION 

 
Staff recommends that the City Council adopt and approve the following: 
 
 1. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Offer to Buy Real 

Estate and Acceptance for 75.98 acres, more or less, of farm real estate 
owned by Shirley Olander, Sandra Watson and Julie Ladage. 

 
If the Offer to Buy Real Estate and Acceptance is approved by City Council, staff will then 
prepare to close on the property, and the acceptance of the applicable Warranty Deed 
would be on a future City Council agenda. 
 
The proposed acquisition of this property is consistent with the following established City 
Council Organizational Goals: 
 
Organizational Goal 3: Promote Economic Development. 
 
Long Term & On-going Objective: Implement a long-term plan for the development of 
future TIF districts. This plan should include ways to acquire land and provide adequate 
infrastructure utilizing cooperative efforts with other groups and agencies. 
 
If you have any questions regarding the proposed purchase offer, please feel free to 
contact me. 
 
xc: Ron Gaines, P.E., City Administrator 
 Kevin Rogers, City Attorney 
 Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance & Business Operations 
  

329

Item 5.



Capital Way

W Ridgeway Ave

De
ve

lop
me

nt 
Dr

Inn
ova

tio
n D

r

Technology Pkwy

W Viking Rd

S U
nio

n R
d

Venture Way

S U
nio

n R
d

I

Proposed Property Acquisition
76 Acres

Proposed Property Acquisition
Olander, Watson, Ladage Property
6512 W. Ridgeway Avenue

330

Item 5.



331

Item 5.



332

Item 5.



333

Item 5.



334

Item 5.



335

Item 5.



336

Item 5.



337

Item 5.



338

Item 5.



339

Item 5.



340

Item 5.



341

Item 5.



342

Item 5.



343

Item 5.



344

Item 5.



345

Item 5.



346

Item 5.



347

Item 5.



348

Item 5.



349

Item 5.



350

Item 5.



351

Item 5.



352

Item 5.



353

Item 5.



354

Item 5.



 MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN  

  
 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA   
 220 CLAY STREET | CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 

 PHONE 319-273-8600 

 www.cedarfalls.com 
 
 

 

 FROM: Mayor Robert M. Green 

 TO: Cedar Falls City Council 

 DATE: December 13, 2022 

 SUBJECT: Mayoral Veto of Ordinances #3021 and #3022 

1. By the authority granted in Iowa Code 380.5 and Section 287(b)(3) of the City Code of 

Ordinances, I am vetoing Ordinance #3021 and #3022. These ordinances passed via 4-

to-3 majority votes at the City Council meeting on December 5, 2022. These ordinances 

would remove the ‘two-thirds’ majority requirement to overrule Planning & Zoning 

Commission recommendations regarding amendments to the comprehensive plan, the 

zoning map, and zoning regulations.  

2. The current balance of authority has served Cedar Falls well for decades. Mandated by 

Iowa Code 414.6, the Planning and Zoning Commission in every city is the public body 

entrusted to develop zoning expertise and to weigh the pros and cons of zoning changes 

with a focus on long-term benefits for the city. The recommendations from this appointed 

body should be free from (or at least minimize) the undue influence of short-term political 

pressures. The commission’s intended purpose is to be an apolitical body of informed 

citizens willing to put significant effort into thoughtful and well-articulated 

recommendations to the City Council for final consideration and approval. Were this not 

the intent of the Legislature, then all zoning matters could theoretically be brought directly 

to the City Council for  the most politically expedient decision, without having to first pass 

through a ‘planning and zoning commission’ gateway. 

3. There is no inherent requirement that a simple council majority should prevail in zoning 

matters. Of Iowa’s fifty largest cities, fully half maintain a more stringent requirement than 

Cedar Falls --  a ‘three-fourths’ requirement to override planning and zoning commission 

recommendations for the comprehensive plan, zoning map updates and/or regulation text 

changes.  Two other cities maintain the lower-threshold ‘two-thirds’ requirement, including 

Cedar Falls. This means that a simple majority override is not prevalent among Iowa 

cities containing populations between 7.5K (Webster City) and 214K (Des 

Moines).  Notably, Ankeny, Waukee, Clive, and Grinnell each require a far more stringent 

‘four-fifths’ override.  While we certainly should not base our direction solely on what other 

municipalities in Iowa are doing, we would also be unwise to disregard the collective 

experience of these cities in how they have chosen to order their zoning processes. 

355

Item 6.



4. I do agree that a three-fourths requirement (wherein any overrides would need 6 of 7 

councilors in support) would be overly restrictive. On the other hand, a simple majority (4 

of 7 councilors) appears overly lax. A simple majority would risk destabilizing the city’s 

zoning regulations by enabling wholesale modifications to the code every other year 

(regardless of Planning and Zoning Commission input) through just a single council seat 

change every election. 

5. Retention of the two-thirds majority requirement will ensure that the zoning maps and 

regulations of the city enjoy considerable support from the Council, and would ensure that 

any Council override would overcome a mayoral veto. Such stability and predictability is 

essential for a healthy economic development climate in any city.  My understanding is 

that developers are less concerned with what the zoning regulations are, than that they 

are clear, consistent, predictable, steady, and evenly enforced. The two-thirds majority is 

core to this stability strategy. 

6.  A decreased threshold would only embolden those on council seeking to enact changes 

that run counter to the P&Z’s well-considered recommendations, knowing that the 

councilor only needs to convince three fellow councilors to side with them, rather than 

four. Such an approach would increase the potential for arbitrary decision-making, 

potentially benefiting a small number of people or special interests rather than the 

community as a whole.  A key benefit of the two-thirds (or three-fourths, or four-fifths) 

majority is to limit the potential for this abuse. Moreover, requiring five councilors to agree 

to an override ensures that at least one of these members will be up for re-election within 

two years, providing healthy public accountability for their decision to countermand the 

Planning and Zoning Commission.  

7. I do not believe that the current two-thirds majority presents an overly taxing threshold for 

an override of perceived “bad recommendations” by the Planning and Zoning 

Commission. Any ill-considered or obviously faulty decision from the Planning and Zoning 

Commission (whether through a conflict of interest, personal grudges, 

misinformation/disinformation, or other cause) can still be corrected through the 

agreement of five councilors, and four councilors together can vote to prevent any 

offending members’ reappointment at the end of the five-year term.  Four councilors could 

also prevent an undesired citizen from being appointed in the first place. Finally, four 

councilors could vote to change Sec. 18-21 to reduce term lengths, increasing the 

frequency that a member’s suitability for continued service can be evaluated. In short, 

other remedies exist for addressing the council’s stated concerns --- remedies that would 

be wiser than reducing the override threshold from ‘two-thirds’ to ‘simple majority’.  

8. For these reasons, I am vetoing Ordinance #3021 and #2022 and I respectfully request 

that the City Council uphold this decision. 

 

 Xc:  City Administrator 

           City Clerk 

  Chair, Planning and Zoning Commission 

 

### 356

Item 6.



Prepared by: Stephanie Sheetz, Director of Community Development, City of Cedar Falls, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa 
(319) 273-8600 

 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 3021 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO REMOVE A 2/3 MAJORITY VOTE BY THE 
CITY COUNCIL IN THE EVENT THE PLANNING AND ZONING 
COMMISSION RECOMMENDS DENIAL OF A COMPREHENSIVE 
PLAN ADOPTION OR SUBSTANTIAL AMENDMENT BY 
AMENDING SECTION 18-23, POWERS AND DUTIES, UNDER 
ARTICLE II, PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION, ALL WITHIN 
CHAPTER 18, PLANNING, OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF 
THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council discussed changes to the Planning Chapter of the 

Municipal Code of Ordinances at the September 19, 2022 Community Development 
Committee meeting; 

 
WHEREAS, a public hearing was held October 17, 2022 by the City Council; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council approved an amendment to Section 18-23 of the Code 

of Ordinances after public hearing. 
 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, THAT: 
 

Subsection 5 of Section 18-23 Powers and Duties, within Article II, Planning and Zoning 

Commission, of Chapter 18, Planning, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar 
Falls, Iowa, is hereby deleted and the following substituted in lieu thereof:  
 

(5) For the purpose of making a comprehensive plan for the physical development of 
the city, the commission shall make careful and comprehensive studies of the 
present conditions and future growth of the city, with due regard to its relation to 
neighboring territory. The plan shall be made with the general purpose of guiding 
and accomplishing a coordinated, adjusted and harmonious development of the 
city and its environs which will, in accordance with present and future needs, best 
promote health, safety, order, convenience, prosperity and general welfare, as 
well as efficiency and economy in the process of development. Before adopting a 
comprehensive plan or any part of it, or any substantial amendment thereof, the 
commission shall hold at least one public hearing thereon, notice of the time of 
which shall be given by one publication in a newspaper of general circulation in 
the city, not less than seven and not more than 14 days before the hearing. The 
adopting of the plan or part or amendment thereof shall be by resolution of the 
commission carried by the affirmative vote of not less than two-thirds of all of the 
members of the commission. When such comprehensive plan has been adopted 

357

Item 6.



as provided for in this subsection, no substantial amendment or modification 
thereof shall be made without such proposed change being first referred to the 
commission for its recommendation. Amendments or modifications to the 
comprehensive plan shall not become effective except by the favorable vote of a 
majority of all the members of the city council. 

 

INTRODUCED:     November 7, 2022   

PASSED 1ST CONSIDERATION:   November 7, 2022   

PASSED 2ND CONSIDERATION:   November 21, 2022   

PASSED 3RD CONSIDERATION:   December 5, 2022   

ADOPTED:      December 5, 2022   

VETOED:       December 13, 2022   

 
 

____________________________ 
       Robert M. Green, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
________________________________ 
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk  
 

358

Item 6.



 MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN  

  
 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA   
 220 CLAY STREET | CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 

 PHONE 319-273-8600 

 www.cedarfalls.com 
 
 

 

 FROM: Mayor Robert M. Green 

 TO: Cedar Falls City Council 

 DATE: December 13, 2022 

 SUBJECT: Mayoral Veto of Ordinances #3021 and #3022 

1. By the authority granted in Iowa Code 380.5 and Section 287(b)(3) of the City Code of 

Ordinances, I am vetoing Ordinance #3021 and #3022. These ordinances passed via 4-

to-3 majority votes at the City Council meeting on December 5, 2022. These ordinances 

would remove the ‘two-thirds’ majority requirement to overrule Planning & Zoning 

Commission recommendations regarding amendments to the comprehensive plan, the 

zoning map, and zoning regulations.  

2. The current balance of authority has served Cedar Falls well for decades. Mandated by 

Iowa Code 414.6, the Planning and Zoning Commission in every city is the public body 

entrusted to develop zoning expertise and to weigh the pros and cons of zoning changes 

with a focus on long-term benefits for the city. The recommendations from this appointed 

body should be free from (or at least minimize) the undue influence of short-term political 

pressures. The commission’s intended purpose is to be an apolitical body of informed 

citizens willing to put significant effort into thoughtful and well-articulated 

recommendations to the City Council for final consideration and approval. Were this not 

the intent of the Legislature, then all zoning matters could theoretically be brought directly 

to the City Council for  the most politically expedient decision, without having to first pass 

through a ‘planning and zoning commission’ gateway. 

3. There is no inherent requirement that a simple council majority should prevail in zoning 

matters. Of Iowa’s fifty largest cities, fully half maintain a more stringent requirement than 

Cedar Falls --  a ‘three-fourths’ requirement to override planning and zoning commission 

recommendations for the comprehensive plan, zoning map updates and/or regulation text 

changes.  Two other cities maintain the lower-threshold ‘two-thirds’ requirement, including 

Cedar Falls. This means that a simple majority override is not prevalent among Iowa 

cities containing populations between 7.5K (Webster City) and 214K (Des 

Moines).  Notably, Ankeny, Waukee, Clive, and Grinnell each require a far more stringent 

‘four-fifths’ override.  While we certainly should not base our direction solely on what other 

municipalities in Iowa are doing, we would also be unwise to disregard the collective 

experience of these cities in how they have chosen to order their zoning processes. 

359

Item 7.



4. I do agree that a three-fourths requirement (wherein any overrides would need 6 of 7 

councilors in support) would be overly restrictive. On the other hand, a simple majority (4 

of 7 councilors) appears overly lax. A simple majority would risk destabilizing the city’s 

zoning regulations by enabling wholesale modifications to the code every other year 

(regardless of Planning and Zoning Commission input) through just a single council seat 

change every election. 

5. Retention of the two-thirds majority requirement will ensure that the zoning maps and 

regulations of the city enjoy considerable support from the Council, and would ensure that 

any Council override would overcome a mayoral veto. Such stability and predictability is 

essential for a healthy economic development climate in any city.  My understanding is 

that developers are less concerned with what the zoning regulations are, than that they 

are clear, consistent, predictable, steady, and evenly enforced. The two-thirds majority is 

core to this stability strategy. 

6.  A decreased threshold would only embolden those on council seeking to enact changes 

that run counter to the P&Z’s well-considered recommendations, knowing that the 

councilor only needs to convince three fellow councilors to side with them, rather than 

four. Such an approach would increase the potential for arbitrary decision-making, 

potentially benefiting a small number of people or special interests rather than the 

community as a whole.  A key benefit of the two-thirds (or three-fourths, or four-fifths) 

majority is to limit the potential for this abuse. Moreover, requiring five councilors to agree 

to an override ensures that at least one of these members will be up for re-election within 

two years, providing healthy public accountability for their decision to countermand the 

Planning and Zoning Commission.  

7. I do not believe that the current two-thirds majority presents an overly taxing threshold for 

an override of perceived “bad recommendations” by the Planning and Zoning 

Commission. Any ill-considered or obviously faulty decision from the Planning and Zoning 

Commission (whether through a conflict of interest, personal grudges, 

misinformation/disinformation, or other cause) can still be corrected through the 

agreement of five councilors, and four councilors together can vote to prevent any 

offending members’ reappointment at the end of the five-year term.  Four councilors could 

also prevent an undesired citizen from being appointed in the first place. Finally, four 

councilors could vote to change Sec. 18-21 to reduce term lengths, increasing the 

frequency that a member’s suitability for continued service can be evaluated. In short, 

other remedies exist for addressing the council’s stated concerns --- remedies that would 

be wiser than reducing the override threshold from ‘two-thirds’ to ‘simple majority’.  

8. For these reasons, I am vetoing Ordinance #3021 and #2022 and I respectfully request 

that the City Council uphold this decision. 

 

 Xc:  City Administrator 

           City Clerk 

  Chair, Planning and Zoning Commission 

 

### 360

Item 7.



 
Prepared by: Stephanie Sheetz, Director of Community Development, City of Cedar Falls, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa 
(319) 273-8600 

 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 3022 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO REMOVE A 2/3 MAJORITY VOTE BY THE 
CITY COUNCIL IN THE EVENT THE PLANNING AND ZONING 
COMMISSION RECOMMENDS DENIAL OF AN AMENDMENT, 
SUPPLEMENT OR CHANGE BY AMENDING SECTION 26-4, 
AMENDMENTS TO CHAPTER, UNDER ARTICLE I, IN GENERAL; 
ALL WITHIN CHAPTER 26, ZONING, OF THE CODE OF 
ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council discussed changes to the Zoning Chapter of the 

Municipal Code of Ordinances at the September 19, 2022 Community Development 
Committee meeting; and 

 
WHEREAS, a public hearing was held October 17, 2022 by the City Council; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council approved an amendment to Section 26-4 of the Code 

of Ordinances after public hearing. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, THAT: 
 

Subsection (c) of Section 26-4 Amendments to Chapter within Article I, In General, of 
Chapter 26, Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is 
hereby deleted and the following substituted in lieu thereof:  
 

(c) In case a written protest against a proposed amendment, supplement or change 
is filed with the city clerk duly signed by the owners of 20 percent or more of the 
area of the lots included in such proposed change, or by the owners of 20 
percent or more of the property which is located within 200 feet of the exterior 
boundaries of the property for which the amendment, supplement or change is 
proposed, such amendment shall not become effective except by the favorable 
vote of at least three-fourths of all the members of the city council. Whenever any 
petition for an amendment, supplement or change of the zoning or regulations 
contained in this chapter or subsequently established shall have been denied by 
the city council, then no new petition covering the same property or the same 
property and additional property shall be filed with or considered by the city 
council until six months shall have elapsed from the date of the filing of the first 
petition. 

 

 

361

Item 7.



INTRODUCED:     November 7, 2022   

PASSED 1ST CONSIDERATION:   November 7, 2022   

PASSED 2ND CONSIDERATION:   November 21, 2022   

PASSED 3RD CONSIDERATION:   December 5, 2022   

ADOPTED:      December 5, 2022   

VETOED:       December 13, 2022   

 
 

____________________________ 
       Robert M. Green, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
________________________________ 
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk  
 

362

Item 7.



   ROBERT M. GREEN 

 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8600 

FAX 319-268-5126 
M E M O R A N D U M 

Office of the Mayor 
  

  

 FROM: Mayor Robert M. Green 

 TO: City Council  

 DATE: December 14, 2022 

 SUBJECT: Designation of Mayor Pro Tem for CY 2023 

 REF: (a) Iowa Code 372.14:  The mayor – the mayor pro tem  

  (b) Code of Ordinances, City of Cedar Falls §2-1879(b)(9) 

  (c) City Multi-Hazard Emergency Operations Plan dated September 2021 

 
1. In accordance with references (a) and (b), I hereby designate Council Member 

Simon Harding to continue as mayor pro tem for CY2023. 

2. As mayor pro tem, Councilor Harding shall be the vice president of the council as 
specified in reference (a), and shall perform the duties of the mayor in cases of 
my absence or incapacity, with the exceptions noted in reference (b).  

3. Additionally, as mayor pro tem, Councilor Harding shall continue to work to gain 
familiarity with the requirements of the city’s Emergency Operations Plan 
(reference (c)) in order to effectively serve as the city’s chief executive as next in 
the line of succession. 

 
Xc: City Administrator 
 

### 

 

363

Item 8.



   ROBERT M. GREEN 

 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8600 

FAX 319-268-5126 
M E M O R A N D U M 

Office of the Mayor 
  

 

   

 FROM: Mayor Robert M. Green 

 TO: City Council 

 DATE: December 14, 2022 

  

 SUBJECT: Annual Appointment of Standing Committees for CY 2023 

  

 REF: (a) Code of Ordinances, City of Cedar Falls, Iowa §2-68 

  (b) CFD 1121.22b: Council Meeting Procedures, Rule 6.4 & 6.5 

 

1. In accordance with reference (a) and (b), I hereby appoint the following standing 

committees of the Cedar Falls City Council for Calendar Year 2023: 

1. Committee of the Whole: Simon Harding, Susan deBuhr, Kelly Dunn, Dustin 

Ganfield, Daryl Kruse, Gil Schultz, Dave Sires. 

2. Finance & Business Operations Committee: Kelly Dunn, Susan deBuhr, 

Dustin Ganfield, Simon Harding, Daryl Kruse, Gil Schultz, Dave Sires. 

3. Public Safety Committee: Dustin Ganfield, Susan deBuhr, Kelly Dunn, Simon 

Harding, Daryl Kruse, Gil Schultz, Dave Sires. 

4. Public Works: Gil Schultz, Susan deBuhr, Kelly Dunn, Dustin Ganfield, Simon 

Harding, Daryl Kruse, Dave Sires. 

5. Community Development Committee: Simon Harding, Susan deBuhr, Kelly 

Dunn, Dustin Ganfield, Daryl Kruse, Gil Schultz, Dave Sires. 

6. Administration Committee: Daryl Kruse, Susan deBuhr, Kelly Dunn, Dustin 

Ganfield, Simon Harding, Gil Schultz, Dave Sires. 

2. The first person named on each committee shall be the chair of that committee.  

Xc:  City Administrator 

  City Clerk 

 

### 

364

Item 9.



   ROBERT M. GREEN 

 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8600 

FAX 319-268-5126 
M E M O R A N D U M 

Office of the Mayor 
 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 FROM: Mayor Robert M. Green 

 TO: City Council  

 DATE: December 23, 2022 

 SUBJECT: Elected Official Conflict of Interest Annual Responses – December 2022 

 REF: (a) Iowa Code §362.5: Interest in public contract prohibited 

  (b) Cedar Falls Personnel Policy 807: Conflicts of Interest 

  (c) Cedar Falls Purchasing Manual Section 19: Conflict of Interest 

 

1. The Disclosure of Potential Conflicts of Interest form is a basic safeguard against 

corruption and self-dealing by government officials, and is a common requirement at all 

levels of American government.  Reference (a) specifically requires that: 

“A city officer or employee shall not have an interest, direct or indirect, in any contract or 

job of work or material or the profits thereof or services to be furnished or performed for 

the officer’s or employee’s city. A contract entered into in violation of this section is void.” 

2. The City’s Conflicts of Interest Policy (reference (b)) is a City Council policy, approved 

on January 1, 2008 and most recently amended on July 6, 2020. The City Council 

requires all elected officials to sign an annual declaration of compliance:  

“It is the policy of the City of Cedar Falls to prohibit its elected and appointed officials 

and all employees from engaging in any activity, practice, or act that unlawfully conflicts 

with, or appears to conflict with, the interests of the City. To comply with State law, the 

City of Cedar Falls requires all full-time, permanent part-time and certain special 

purpose employees and elected and appointed City officials to sign an annual 

declaration of compliance with this Conflicts of Interest Policy.” [emphasis added] 

3. The conflicts of interests of the city’s elected officials, as declared on their Conflict of 

Interest forms are noted here and attached as enclosure (1): 

POSITION FULL NAME ALL POTENTIAL CONFLICTS OF INTEREST ARE AS FOLLOWS: 

Mayor Robert Green “Civil Air Patrol (Major @ Waterloo Airport Squadron)” 

Ward 1 Gil Schultz “None” 

Ward 2 Susan deBuhr “Owner, Color Glo” 

Ward 3 Daryl Kruse “None Known” 

Ward 4 Simon Harding “Possible gigs at CF Events” 

Ward 5 Dustin Ganfield 
“My wife is a part time Rec Center employee in the fitness 
instruction arena” 

At Large Kelly Dunn “None” 

At Large David Sires DID NOT RETURN FORM 

365

Item 10.



 

 

4. I must advise the City Council that At-Large Council Member Dave Sires has not 

returned the Potential Conflict of Interest Disclosure Form for any year required, totaling 

four years (12/2019, 12/2020, 12/2021, and 12/2022).  He has been made aware of this 

requirement each year, and has been provided the mandatory form to complete each 

year, but has failed to do so. 

5. Please contact with me with any concerns or questions about this memo. 

Encl: (1)  Disclosure of Potential Conflicts of Interest Form for Robert Green dtd 12/7/2022 

         (2)  Disclosure of Potential Conflicts of Interest Form for Gil Schultz, dtd 12/9/2022 

         (3)  Disclosure of Potential Conflicts of Interest Form for Susanna deBuhr, dtd 12/5/2022 

         (4)  Disclosure of Potential Conflicts of Interest Form for Daryl Kruse, dtd 12/5/2022 

         (5)  Disclosure of Potential Conflicts of Interest Form for Simon Harding, dtd 12/7/2022 

         (6)  Disclosure of Potential Conflicts of Interest Form for Dustin Ganfield, dtd 12/5/2022 

         (7)  Disclosure of Potential Conflicts of Interest Form for Kelly Dunn, dtd 12/5/2022 

Xc: City Administrator 

      City Clerk 

      City Attorney 

### 

 

366

Item 10.



367

Item 10.



368

Item 10.



369

Item 10.



370

Item 10.



371

Item 10.



372

Item 10.



373

Item 10.



374

Item 10.



375

Item 10.



376

Item 10.



377

Item 10.



378

Item 10.



379

Item 10.



380

Item 10.



Cedar Falls FY 2024 Goal Setting | November 15 & 17, 2022 | Final Report | Page 1 
 Facilitated by Aimee Viniard-Weideman | Iowa State University Extension | aimeevw@iastate.edu  

 

Cedar Falls City Council | FY24 Goal Setting  
WORK SESSIONS REPORT 
 

November 15 & 17, 2022 
 
 
Overview 
 
The City of Cedar Falls held goal setting work sessions on November 15 and 17, 2022, to discuss and 
prepare the council goals, work program and financial plan for FY 2024.  
 
In attendance were Mayor Rob Green and city council members Susan DeBuhr, Kelly Dunn, Dustin 
Ganfield, Simon Harding, Daryl Kruse, Gil Schultz and Dave Sires. Also attending were city staff: Ron 
Gaines, city administrator; Jennifer Rodenbeck, director of finance and business operations; Stephanie 
Houk Sheetz, director of community development; Craig Berte, public safety director/police chief; 
Chase Schrage, director of public works, and Mike Soppe, recreation and community programs 
manager.  
 
 
Preparation 
 
In preparation for the work sessions, the following questions were sent to all city council members to 
reflect on and respond to in writing and during scheduled individual interviews with the professional 
facilitator and city’s director of finance and business operations:  
 

1. From your perspective, what are you most proud of that Cedar Falls has done? 
2. In your opinion, what are the key issues of paramount importance to the City of Cedar Falls 

that need to be addressed? 
3. What specific issues or concerns would you like to see addressed at the council goal setting 

session? 
4. Are there specific major projects that are currently under consideration by the City Council 

that you would like to see completed?  If so, please identify them. 
5. What new priority initiatives, programs, or policies would you like the council to consider as 

part of this year’s goal setting process? 
6. Are there any issues regarding organizational effectiveness, decision-making processes, 

teamwork or related issues you would like to have discussed during goal setting? 
7. Other comments 

Their responses, along with input from city staff, informed the agenda for the work sessions.   
 
 
  

381

Item 11.



Cedar Falls FY 2024 Goal Setting | November 15 & 17, 2022 | Final Report | Page 2 
 Facilitated by Aimee Viniard-Weideman | Iowa State University Extension | aimeevw@iastate.edu  

Previous Accomplishments 
 
Based on responses from the city council members and city staff, the following accomplishments were 
highlighted at the start of the work session: 
 

 Maintain AAA bond rating 
 Cedar River Recreational Project – US EDA grant 
 Completed Employee Climate Assessment Survey 
 Completed W 1st St (3-year project) 
 Completed Downtown Streetscape (4-year project) 
 Cedar Heights Drive Reconstruction 
 Center Street stormwater & amenity enhancements 
 City Hall Remodel 
 Place 2 Play – parking and safety improvements 
 Industrial Park – Certified Site, purchase, annexation & development 

 
Aspirations 
 
Participants were asked to respond to the following two questions at the start of the work sessions. 
The tables list the responses to the questions and the visuals were created from their responses.  
 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 
 

What type of community do you want to be? 

 Welcoming 
 Progressive 
 Stable 
 Forward thinking 
 Safe and vital 

 Inclusive 
 Growing 
 Safe 
 Vibrant 
 Great amenities 

 

What type of employer do you want to be? 

 Fair 
 Team-oriented 
 Innovative 
 Inclusive 
 Empowering 
 Trusted 
 Open 

 

 Supportive 
 Inspiring 
 Place where people strive to work 
 Trusting 
 Welcoming 
 Flexible  

 

382

Item 11.



Cedar Falls FY 2024 Goal Setting | November 15 & 17, 2022 | Final Report | Page 3 
 Facilitated by Aimee Viniard-Weideman | Iowa State University Extension | aimeevw@iastate.edu  

Agreements  
 
1) The Mayor and City Council members reviewed, discussed and reached consensus on the following 

changes, additions and deletions to the FY2023 plan to create CFD 1101: Council Goals, Work 
Program and Financial Plan for FY2024. (See pp 3-11.) This report documents changes to the 
FY2023 Plan agreed upon during the work sessions. (See CFD 1101 for the full FY2024 plan.) 

 
 
2) Consensus was reached on the following items that are not listed in the plan: 
 

 Continue with pro-active code enforcement efforts 
 Allocate the following amounts in support of Public and Private Economic Development:   

o Cedar Falls Economic Development Corporation $30,000 + $32,000 incentive 
o Grow Cedar Valley $30,000 + $32,000 incentive  
o Community Main Street $12,000 + $6,000 façade  
o College Hill Partnership $4,500 

 
 Proceed with Major Thoroughfare Plan 
 Proceed with Royal-Seerley One Way planning 
 Review Comprehensive Plan in FY2024 and prepare to create a new plan that begins in 2029-30 
 Allocate $100,000 for the Rental to Owner Conversion Program (plus review in committee)  
 Proceed with South Main Sewer project  
 Move forward with final design of Prairie Parkway/Viking Road Roundabout  
 Streets are the first priority during snow events, trails will be cleared following street priority 
 Approved the Bike Ped Committee request to become an official commission by the City 
 Budget $50,000 to Historical Society Expansion as local match for the Enhance Iowa grant 

request 
 Commit $3M ($1M/year over 3 years) to UNI Dome Renovations  
 Review the Comprehensive Plan annually  
 Add the following positions 

o Property Acquisition Specialist 
o Librarian 1 PT to 1 FT 
o Library Assistant 
o Fitness Coordinator 1 PT to 1 FT 
o Code Enforcement Officer 
o Public Safety Officer 
o Signal Technician PT to FT 
o PT Laborer to FT Maintenance Worker (Refuse) 
o Mechanic PT to FT (Refuse/Vehicle Maintenance) 

 
 Make specific/targeted market adjustments mid-year for pay grade 12 and under at 

approximate cost of $150,000 
 Implement the Police K9 program  
 

 
 

383

Item 11.



Cedar Falls FY 2024 Goal Setting | November 15 & 17, 2022 | Final Report | Page 4 
 Facilitated by Aimee Viniard-Weideman | Iowa State University Extension | aimeevw@iastate.edu  

3) The following items were recommended for committee and/or council work sessions in 2023: 
 

 Community-wide Strategic Plan - hold a work session in FY2024 to create a 2025-2030 plan 
 Community Resiliency Objectives - review proposed additions (not included in FY24 plan) in 

future work sessions, refer and add as amendments if needed 
 Council Pay Increase – ask committee for review and recommendations 
 College Hill vision and plan – review vision with full council and determine next steps  
 College Hill Prevention/Deterrence Efforts - review with Chief Berte 
 Develop a performance review process for the city administrator to be used annually  
 Rental to Owner Conversion Program, including recommendations by Single Family Conversion 

task force - review in committee 
 Review public safety plan and data  
 Review Housing Needs Assessment from CVED 
 TIF districts 
 Falls Fees Proposal  

 
 
4) And the following items were discussed: 
 

 Mayor will no longer be proposing/making proclamations, City Council members may propose 
proclamations 

 Fire Truck 
 Parks and Recreation committee will make a recommendation to the City Council about trick or 

treat night  
  

384

Item 11.



Cedar Falls FY 2024 Goal Setting | November 15 & 17, 2022 | Final Report | Page 5 
 Facilitated by Aimee Viniard-Weideman | Iowa State University Extension | aimeevw@iastate.edu  

CFD 1101: Council Goals, Work Program and Financial Plan for FY 2024 
 
MISSION OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS: 
Continuously improve the safety and desirability of Cedar Falls through efficient delivery of public 
services, with open communication between Citizens, Council, Mayor and City Staff.   
 
GOALS AND OBJECTIVES: 
 
1. GOAL #1: Deliver Responsible Local Government.  
 

A. Supporting Council Policies. 
 

1) Provide broad direction to the City Administrator, who in turn formulates management 
decisions to provide efficient service offerings and operations. 

 
3) Continue to provide a forum for active public engagement related to City actions through 

open public meetings, hearings, committees, commissions, task forces and broadcast 
media. 

 
4) Encourage active public input into the City’s various boards, commissions, task forces, and 

other advisory bodies.  
 

4)   Continually explore and evaluate improved methods of communication with citizens to    
       inform them of City activities and accomplishments. 
 

B. Long-Term and Ongoing Objectives. 
 

7. Continue to support the development of a five-year Community-Wide Strategic Plan (CFD 
4005) to help coordinate the long-term efforts of the City’s many stakeholders, including a new 
plan for 2025-2030. 

 
C. FY2024 Detailed Objectives. 

 
1) City of Waterloo Objectives. 

 
c. Support cooperative efforts to upgrade the County Consolidated Communications 
Center (911 dispatch) while exploring options to minimize costs assessed to Cedar Falls. 

 
5) Community Resiliency Objectives. 
 
7) General Governance Objectives. 

 
e. Develop a long-term participation protocol for public meetings, including 
videoconferencing options. 

385

Item 11.



Cedar Falls FY 2024 Goal Setting | November 15 & 17, 2022 | Final Report | Page 6 
 Facilitated by Aimee Viniard-Weideman | Iowa State University Extension | aimeevw@iastate.edu  

e. Hold city council committee meetings or work sessions on council meeting Mondays 
to discuss complex or potentially contentious matters.  

 
 
2.   GOAL #2: Ensure Government Efficiency and Effectiveness.  
 

A. Supporting Council Policies. 
 

8) Deposit funds in excess of annual operations expenses (including released TIF funds) in a 
capital reserve account for projects, economic development, public land acquisition, 
redevelopment, health insurance fund support or other one-time allocations approved by the 
City Council. 

 
C.  FY2024 Detailed Objectives. 

 
2) Public Safety Objectives. 

 
c. Continue to review staffing levels to ensure the most efficient use of Public Safety 
funds and personnel. 

 
d. Actively solicit Public Safety Services Department employees to participate in the POC 
and PSO programs to increase their availability for service. 

 
e. Expand the use of PSOs, part time staff, and POCs to adequately staff fire stations 
without adding full-time staff or overtime expenses. 

 
g. Ensure that weekends and holidays are fully-scheduled productive workdays for shift 
personnel. 

 
h. Minimize fire shift overtime, using volunteers, PSOs, POCs, part-time staffing or other 
cross trained positions to reduce callbacks and staff scheduling expenses. 

 
k. Pursue the establishment of a new public safety station along W. 1st Street / Highway 
57.  

 
l. Maintain a fire station staffing plan that directs personnel to stations where the 
highest number of calls for service occurs. 

 
n. Continue placing firefighting ensembles in police vehicles for faster response times. 

 
o. Continue deploying CAFS equipment in select police vehicles to provide faster fire 
suppression response times. 

 
p. Staff fire stations whenever possible with a combination of career, PSO, POC, PT, 
ambulance and volunteer staff to maintain readiness while reducing staffing costs. 

 

386

Item 11.



Cedar Falls FY 2024 Goal Setting | November 15 & 17, 2022 | Final Report | Page 7 
 Facilitated by Aimee Viniard-Weideman | Iowa State University Extension | aimeevw@iastate.edu  

q. Continue to assign Minimum Rental Housing, Section 8 Rental and Commercial 
Inspection duties to fire shift personnel whenever possible. 

 
r. Continue annual smoke detector inspections in businesses and residences, recognizing 
that smoke detectors identify fire hazards as early as possible. 

 
n. Support Public Safety staff review and implementation of viable Racial Equity 
Taskforce recommendations for policing.  

 
3) Code Enforcement Objectives. 

 
a. Continue to be proactive in code enforcement activities.  
 
c. Continue the full-time Code Enforcement Officer position to enforce property 
maintenance, snow removal, zoning, housing, building and nuisances.  

 
n. Employ traffic calming devices, when appropriate, to address neighborhood traffic 
concerns. 

 
o. Consider ordinance changes recommended by the Single Family Conversion task force 
to limit the number of converted single family homes in neighborhoods. 

 
4) Fire Prevention and Suppression Programs Objectives. 

 
a. Continue to assign Minimum Rental Housing, Section 8 Rental and Commercial Inspection 

duties to Fire shift personnel whenever possible. 
 

b. Continue annual smoke detector inspections in businesses and residences, recognizing 
that smoke detectors identify fire hazards as early as possible. 
 

c. Staff fire stations whenever possible with a combination of career, PSO, POC, PT, 
ambulance and volunteer staff to maintain readiness while reducing staffing costs. 
 

d. Continue placing firefighting ensembles in police vehicles for faster response times. 
 

e. Continue deploying CAFS equipment in select police vehicles to provide faster fire 
suppression response times. 
 

f. Encourage the Fire Chief to exercise management authority in implementing fire station 
staffing plans and encourage the Battalion Chiefs to use management discretion in 
determining daily staffing levels using alternative staff. 

4) Yard Waste, Refuse and Transfer Station Objectives. 
 

f. Continue to plan for future relocation of transfer station outside of the floodplain. 
 

 

387

Item 11.



Cedar Falls FY 2024 Goal Setting | November 15 & 17, 2022 | Final Report | Page 8 
 Facilitated by Aimee Viniard-Weideman | Iowa State University Extension | aimeevw@iastate.edu  

5) Stormwater and Wastewater Objectives. 
 

c. Actively enforce Municipal Separate Storm Sewer (MS4) Permit requirements 
 

6) General Legislative Objectives. 
 

b. Continue to oppose changes to TIF laws that would impair the use of TIF as an 
economic development tool. 
 
c. Continue to support property tax reform initiatives that eliminate the rollback formula 
that shifts burdens among classes of property. 

 
d. Develop and annually update policies to communicate the City’s goals and desires to 
the federal and state legislatures.  

 
8) State Legislative Objectives. 

 
a. The November 2020 elections resulted in no changes in the political party that will 
control the Iowa House and Iowa Senate, along with the Governor’s office; Republicans 
will maintain “trifecta” control of these three institutions for both the 2022 legislative 
session.  There will be redistricting impacts on Cedar Falls.  

 
b. State Legislative Concerns.  

 
(1) Tax Cut/Tax Reform. Expect a wide-ranging discussion of ways to significantly 
lower income taxes in Iowa.  One of those discussion items will be a review of 
the local option sales tax the cities currently collect.  Local governments will 
need to forcefully advocate protecting the continuance of this funding.  
 
(2) Restrictions on the use of Tax Increment Financing (TIF) and Tax Credits. 
House File 849 was passed in the 2021 session that put 20-year sunsets on all TIF 
districts and may bring more discussion in 2022.  Cedar Falls supports the 
continuation of TIF as the primary tool for communities to promote economic 
development.  
 
(3) Restrictions on Local Control of Decision-making. Such legislation runs 
contrary to the intent of the Iowa Constitution’s Home Rule Amendment.   
 
(4) Other Concerns. Cedar Falls will continue to oppose any unfunded mandates, 
reserve restraints ($8.10 levy, rollback, 411 pensions, recouping of legal costs 
associated with public record requests, etc.) erosions of Home Rule Amendment  
authority, and elimination of state tax credits used for economic development. 

 
c. State Legislative Opportunities. 

 

388

Item 11.



Cedar Falls FY 2024 Goal Setting | November 15 & 17, 2022 | Final Report | Page 9 
 Facilitated by Aimee Viniard-Weideman | Iowa State University Extension | aimeevw@iastate.edu  

(1) Housing.  Cedar Falls supports state efforts to provide additional resources to 
communities for housing construction, including more state support of local 
housing trust funds and expansion of the Workforce Housing Tax Credits. An 
Economic Recovery Advisory Board was created in 2020 to make 
recommendations for helping Iowa recover from COVID-19.  Part of their 
recommendations will include several to increase funding for workforce housing 
tax credits and the State Housing Trust Fund.  Passage of these 
recommendations might provide an opportunity for the City of Cedar Falls to 
secure financial assistance for housing initiatives in the city. 
 
(2) Water and Wastewater Infrastructure. Cedar Falls supports state efforts to 
provide additional funding sources and flexible policies related to water, 
wastewater, and storm water infrastructure; these changes are necessary to 
meet the demands of increasing environmental regulation of cities. Funding for 
local government water and wastewater infrastructure may come through the 
State’s ARPA, Infrastructure, and COVID relief funds.    
 
(3) University of Northern Iowa. During the 2021 legislative session, the City of 
Cedar Falls provided support for UNI’s legislative priorities, and would expect to 
do so again in 2022.   

 
9) Federal Legislative Objectives. 

 
a. Continue to request federal transportation funding support for major street projects, 
including the Greenhill and Highway 58 interchange, including a city funding match. 
 
b. Request federal funding for EPA mandated treatment plant improvements. 
 
c. Support CFU in securing federal grants for utility or telecommunication infrastructure 
projects which will benefit citizens through improved reliability, security, efficiency, 
accessibility, or environmental impacts.  

 
 
3.   GOAL #3: Promote Economic Development.  
 

C) FY2024 Detailed Objectives. 
 

1) General Economic Development Objectives. 
 

c. Continue to use TIF funds to acquire land for development into marketable industrial 
lots. 
 
d. Continue to use TIF funds to provide cash incentives to developers and business 
owners when consistent with City economic development policies. 
 
e. Explore the establishment of a University Avenue Corridor TIF district.  

389

Item 11.



Cedar Falls FY 2024 Goal Setting | November 15 & 17, 2022 | Final Report | Page 10 
 Facilitated by Aimee Viniard-Weideman | Iowa State University Extension | aimeevw@iastate.edu  

 
g. Continue to provide property tax abatement (based on current schedules) for projects 
meeting adopted job creation and tax base growth criteria.  
j. Continue to explore options for city support of expanded day-care options in Cedar 
Falls. 
 
l. Explore the establishment of an incentive policy for residential districts.  

 
2) Regional Economic Development Organization Objectives. 

 
b. Monitor economic development cash subsidies (to CMS, CHP, GCV & CFEDC) to 
determine value to Cedar Falls citizens and businesses.  

 
4) Comprehensive Planning, Engineering and Building Objectives. 

 
b. Continue to implement the Comprehensive Plan (CFD 4101.12) with emphasis on: 
 

(7) Evaluate one-way streets an traffic flow.  
 

5) Zoning Ordinance Economic Development Objectives. 
 

a. Support the development of a comprehensive new Zoning Ordinance to update the 
Zoning Ordinance first adopted in 1970.  

 
f. Consider developing, as a part of the new Zoning Ordinance, a new zoning map which 
includes pre-zoned areas.  

 
h. Annex lands into the city (if requested by property owners) to support community 
growth and development consistent with the Comprehensive Plan (CFD 4101.12). 

 
6) Affordable Housing Development Objectives. 

 
f. Consider the results of the Housing Needs Assessment, focusing on how to provide 
housing variety to promote housing options for all. 

 
j. Continue the forgivable loan program for conversion of rental properties to owner-
occupied, expanded service area, and more qualifying expenses. 

 
7) Commercial and Office Economic Development Objectives. 

 
b. Implement diagonal on-street parking where feasible and where parking deficiencies 
can be solved with this approach. 

 
d. Study the future use, ownership and corporate jurisdiction of land along the Highway 
20 corridor, including cooperative arrangements with the City of Hudson if petitioned by 
property owners for annexation. 

390

Item 11.



Cedar Falls FY 2024 Goal Setting | November 15 & 17, 2022 | Final Report | Page 11 
 Facilitated by Aimee Viniard-Weideman | Iowa State University Extension | aimeevw@iastate.edu  

 
8) College Hill Economic Development Objectives. 

a. Proceed with the development of the new College Hill Character District zoning 
ordinance to spur economic development and revitalization on College Hill. 

 
9) Northern Cedar Falls Economic Development Objectives. 

 
a. Continue to enact the recommendations of the Northern Cedar Falls Visioning 
Committee Report (CFD 4108.08). 

 
10) Downtown Area Economic Development Objectives. 
 

b. Plan for the site development of the MercyOne – Cedar Falls Medical Center property 
using the Health Trust Fund.  

 
 11) Industrial Economic Development Objectives. 
 

c. Continue to repay Industrial Park TIF debt owed to the City debt service, economic 
development and capital project funds. 

 
  12) MercyOne – Cedar Falls Hospital Economic Development Objectives. 
 

a. Plan for site development using current Health Trust Fund monies.  
 
b. Organize a staff/council committee to determine options and best uses for the 
original Sartori Hospital site once a new hospital is constructed elsewhere. 

  
12) Flood Control, Storm Water, Sanitary Sewer and Water Improvement Objectives. 

 
a. Complete priority wastewater treatment system improvements: 

 
13) Street Improvement Objectives. 

 
(2) Greenhill Road/Highway 58 – Use TIF funding as City match to Iowa 
Department of Transportation’s project in FY2027. 
 
(4) Ridgeway & 58 – Use TIF funding as City match to Iowa Department of 
Transportation’s project in FY2024-FY2025.  

 
(5) Prairie Parkway & Viking Road Intersection Improvements – Use TIF, LOST, 
and RUT for construction in FY2024-2025. 

 
   (6) Northern Cedar Heights Area – Use LOST and SCF to complete this project 

 
b. Explore and establish agreements with developers to complete the connection of the 
following streets: 

391

Item 11.



Cedar Falls FY 2024 Goal Setting | November 15 & 17, 2022 | Final Report | Page 12 
 Facilitated by Aimee Viniard-Weideman | Iowa State University Extension | aimeevw@iastate.edu  

 
(5) West 27th Street Improvements – Use LOST, RUT, and GO bonds to complete 
this project in FY2022-2024. 

 
 
4. GOAL #4: Enhance Community Quality of Life.  
 

A. Supporting Council Policies 
 
3) Continue evaluating and implementing pedestrian safety measures. 

 
B. Long-Term and Ongoing Objectives. 

 
2) Update the Park Master Plan (CFD 8601.06) to account for city growth, changing needs and 
desires of the public, and updating of equipment and facilities. 

 
C. FY2024 Detailed Objectives. 

 
6) Update the Park Master Plan (CFD 8601.06) to account for city growth, changing needs and 
desires of the pubic and updating of equipment and facilities.  

 
15) Implement facility improvement to Seerley Park.  
 
16) Design and develop facility improvements to various City parks.  

 
18) Have a work-session to develop an ordinance to address political campaigning (federal, 
state and local) within the city’s parks. 
 
19) Implement the Bike Network Plan as funding and construction allows. 

  
20) Continue evaluating and implementing pedestrian safety measures. 

 
20) Consider potential for new quality of life projects 

Eco Loop 
Campground/RV Park in Northern Cedar Falls 
Trail Connection (behind CFU, contingent upon railroad grant)  
Pickleball Courts 
Birdsall Park Renovations 
Historic Reconnaissance Survey of Overman Park Neighborhood 

 
21) Consider funding for quality of life projects with other entities 

Historical Society 
UNI Dome Renovations 
Additional ask for High School Pool 
Cedar Valley Placemaking Project (bridge lighting) 

 

392

Item 11.



Cedar Falls FY 2024 Goal Setting | November 15 & 17, 2022 | Final Report | Page 13 
 Facilitated by Aimee Viniard-Weideman | Iowa State University Extension | aimeevw@iastate.edu  

 
5. GOAL #5: Foster Organizational Excellence.  
 

A. Supporting Policies. 
 

1) Ensure that employee wages and benefits are competitive with other municipalities in the 
state of Iowa and private enterprise in the metro area. 
 
6) Conduct employee survey every two years.  

 
C. FY2024 Detailed Objectives. 

 
1) Review results and consider policy changes from the workforce climate assessment / 
employee satisfaction survey to improve human resources management and employee 
relations. 
 
4) Maintain multi-year staffing and succession plans. 
 
5) Continue to fund the City’s employee educational assistance program (CFD 2254).  
 
9) Develop a review standard to annually evaluate the performance of the City Administrator.  

 
 
6. FY2024 Short Term Financial Plan. 
 

A. FY2024 Budget Policies. 
 

B. FY2024 Budget Contingency Policies. 
 

C. FY2024 Cash Reserves Policy. 
 
D. FY2024 Revenues Policy. 

 
E. FY2024 Expenditures Policies. 
 
F. FY2024 Long Term Debt Policies. 
 
G. FY2024 Capital Improvements Program Policies. 

 
 
18. FY24 Capital Improvements Program Approved Projects: (To be updated after approval of CIP) 
 
 
 

393

Item 11.



 MEETING OF STANDING COMMITTEES 
City Hall, 220 Clay Street 

December 19, 2022 
 

The meeting of Standing Committees met at City Hall at 5:15 p.m. on December 19, 2022, with the 
following Committee persons in attendance: Councilmembers Susan deBuhr, Kelly Dunn, Simon 
Harding, Daryl Kruse, Dustin Ganfield, Gil Schultz, and Dave Sires. Staff members from all City 
Departments and members of the community attended in person.   
 
Finance & Business Operations Committee: 
Chair Dunn called the meeting to order and introduced the only item on the Finance & Business 
Operations Committee Agenda, Capital Improvements Program (CIP) and introduced City 
Administrator, Ron Gaines.  Mr. Gaines gave introductory comments and then introduced Finance & 
Business Operations Director, Jennifer Rodenbeck. Ms. Rodenbeck stated the CIP is a planning 
document and does not authorize or fund projects. Funding of projects will be coordinated with the 
annual budget process. There are 212 projects on the CIP for a total of approximately $460 million 
and approximately 50 different funding sources. Major projects impacting the CIP are Main Street, 
Cedar River Recreation Project, Aldrich School Connection, High School pool and the UNI Dome 
renovation. Chair Dunn opened the meeting for council discussion.  Councilmembers asked if item 
#36 (Parking Lot: Downtown Parking Structure) was new, yes, its additional for 2023. 
Councilmembers expressed concerns with item #35 (Parking Lot: Downtown Parking Ramp Study). 
Ms. Rodenbeck explained this would include a feasibility study that could include, location, pricing, 
and type of structure. It was moved by Ganfield and seconded by Kruse to move the funding for 
each year, item #36 back one year. The motion was put to vote. Aye: deBuhr, Dunn, Harding, Kruse, 
Ganfield, Shultz, and Sires; Nay: None. Councilmembers and staff also referenced previous 
direction from Council pertaining to the location of a parking ramp. Councilmembers discussed item 
#58 (Community-wide Strategic Plan). It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Ganfield to move 
funding from FY2028 to FY2024 & FY2025. The motion was put to vote. Aye: deBuhr, Kruse, 
Ganfield, Shultz, and Sires; Nay: Dunn and Harding. Councilmembers discussed item #59 
(Comprehensive Plan & Zoning Code Updates); no changes. Councilmembers asked about 
removing the UNI funding amount portion shown in item #53 (UNI Done Renovation). It was moved 
by Harding and seconded by Ganfield to include an asterisk in UNI’s funding portion. The motion 
was withdrawn by Harding. Councilmembers discussed adding asterisks to the revenue sources 
page of the CIP (page 9). It was moved by Ganfield and seconded by Kruse to add asterisks to page 
9. The motion was put to vote. Aye: deBuhr, Dunn, Harding, Kruse, Ganfield, Shultz, and Sires; Nay: 
None. Councilmembers discussed the purchases previously bought with funds from item #64 
(Resilience Initiatives). It was moved by deBuhr and seconded by Schultz to remove item #64 from 
FY2024. There was discussion about changing the name of the item, but this was not included in the 
motion. The motion was put to vote. Aye: deBuhr, Kruse, Ganfield, Shultz, and Sires; Nay: Dunn and 
Harding. Councilmembers discussed item #184 (P511 Replacement Aerial Truck), no changes. 
Councilmembers discussed item #203 (Replacement of Thermal Imaging Units), no changes. Ms. 
Rodenbeck stated the changes will be included at the City Council public hearing on January 3, 
2023.  
 
Committee of the Whole: 
Chair Harding called the meeting to order and introduced the only item on the Committee of the 
Whole Agenda, Format of FY2024 City Council Goals, Work Program and Short-Term Financial Plan 
document and introduced Mayor Robert Green. Mayor Green requested to move “Foster 
Organizational Excellence” from its current position as Goal #5 to Goal #1, relocate the Short-Term 
Financial Plan from “Section 6” to its own new part and expand the “Promote Economic 
Development” goal descriptor. It was moved by Ganfield and seconded by Dunn to move forward 
with the above recommended changes as requested by Mayor Green in the memo dated December 
13, 2022, to the January 3, 2023, City Council meeting. The motion was put to vote. Aye: Dunn, 
Harding, Kruse, Ganfield, Shultz, and Sires; Nay: deBuhr. Councilmembers discussed removing goal 
#1, section 5, line f, (Continue to support the development of a city Resilience Plan to identify 
opportunities for increased city resiliency & sustainability). It was moved by Ganfield and seconded 
by Kruse to remove line f. The motion was put to vote. Aye: deBuhr, Dunn, Harding, Kruse, Ganfield, 
Shultz, and Sires; Nay: None.  
 
Meeting adjourned at 6:27 p.m. 
 
Minutes by Kim Kerr, Administrative Supervisor 

394

Item 12.



   ROBERT M. GREEN 

 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8600 

FAX 319-268-5126 
M E M O R A N D U M 

Office of the Mayor 
 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 FROM: Mayor Robert M. Green 

 TO: City Council  

 DATE: December 23, 2022 

 SUBJECT: Issuance of CFD 1123.22: Council Meeting Security and Good Order  

 

1. In early 2020, I collaborated with city staff to develop a clear policy and a script for the 

restoration of order, should a council meeting be disrupted.  Of particular concern was a 

scenario where a public speaker refuses to yield the podium, once directed to do so by 

the presiding officer.  

2. This protocol has fortunately not been required during my three years as Mayor, but it is 

important to have one.  Dynamic situations in the Council Chambers are best handled with 

significant forethought and training, to ensure citizens’ rights are preserved while 

maintaining good order. 

3. After consulting with the Executive Management Team, I do not believe that this policy 

meets the threshold for confidentiality under Iowa Code §22.7(50), in that the policy does 

not contain specific law enforcement or security tactics where “disclosure could be 

reasonably be expected to jeopardize…life or property.” 

4. In the interest of transparency, I have converted this informal protocol into a standard 

policy document, and am submitting it for the public record as a ‘receive and file’ item. 

5. I am always amenable to suggestions from the council, staff and public for improving this 

policy; please contact me at mayor@cedarfalls.com. 

Encl: (1)  CFD 1123.22: Mayor Policy – Council Meeting Security and Good Order  

 

Xc:  City Clerk 

### 

 

395

Item 13.



CFD 1123.22:  Mayor Policy – Council Meeting Security and Good Order CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 1 of 3 

CFD 1123: Mayor Policy – Council Meeting Security and Good Order 
Issued December 22, 2022 by Rob Green, Mayor of Cedar Falls  

PURPOSE:  

To provide guidance for the establishment, maintenance and restoration of good order, public 
safety and security during meetings of the Cedar Falls City Council.  

POLICY:   

It is the policy of the Mayor to ensure that all participants in meetings of the Cedar Falls City 

Council (whether council, staff, public speaker or guest) are maintain civility and decorum, and to 

provide presiding officers with a script for the restoration of order. 

PROCEDURES: 

1. Authority of the Presiding Officer. 

A. The Iowa Open Meetings Law (Chapter 21) requires that all public members have access 

to open sessions of Iowa’s governmental bodies. This requirement allows in reference (a) 

that “Nothing in this chapter shall prevent a governmental body from making and enforcing 

reasonable rules for the conduct of its meetings to assure to assure those meetings are 

orderly and free from interference or interruption by spectators.” 

B. Council meeting disruption is a violation of Iowa Code §723.4.d: Disorderly Conduct, which 

states that a person commits a simple misdemeanor when “Without lawful authority or color 

of authority, the person disturbs any lawful assembly or meeting of persons by conduct 

intended to disrupt the meeting or assembly.” 

C. The Council Meeting Procedures (CFD 1121) in Section 10 provides guidelines for public 

participation in City Council meetings, which shall be enforced by the presiding officer. 

D. Robert’s Rules of Order (12th Edition) provides general guidance on 61:19, in that  

“an assembly has the right to protect itself from annoyance by nonmembers, and its full 

authority in this regard – as distinguished from cases involving disorderly members – can 

be exercised by the chair acting alone. The chair has the power to require non-members to 

leave the hall, or to order their removal, at any time during the meeting, and the 

nonmembers have no right of appeal from such an order of the presiding officer. However, 

such an order can be appealed by a member. That appeal is undebatable.” 

E. In keeping with the guidance and spirit of 61:20, if a disruptive person refuses to leave the 

council chambers, “the chair should take necessary measures to see that the order is 

enforced, but should be guided by a judicious appraisal of the situation” and such action will 

be a last resort to restore order to the meeting. 

2. Role of the Sergeant At Arms. 

A. The Sergeant At Arms shall maintain order during City Council meetings at the direction of 

the presiding officer. If meeting attendees are disruptive, the Sergeant may warn them and, 

in extreme cases, escort them out of the meeting.  

396

Item 13.



CFD 1123.22:  Mayor Policy – Council Meeting Security and Good Order CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 2 of 3 

B. The Sergeant At Arms is responsible for security during the meeting, and shall be located in 

the chamber so as to provide visibility of both the council chamber and foyer. 

C. The Chief of Police shall serve as the Sergeant At Arms; if absent, another uniformed police 

officer shall be designated by the Police Chief or Public Safety Director for this duty. 

D. The Sergeant At Arms has the authority and discretion to immediately direct the removal of 

an attendee who becomes violent or is deemed to be a threat to any other meeting 

attendee, without prompting by the presiding officer. 

3. Progressive declarations and actions. 

A. If a public speaker is out of order, the mayor will state, “Sir/madam, your behavior is out 

of order, and I advise you to <corrective action required>”.   

B.  If the speaker is out of order a second time, the mayor will state, “Sir/madam, your 

behavior again of order, and I advise you to <corrective action required>, or you will 

be required to yield the floor.”   

C.  If the speaker is out of order once more, the mayor will state, “Sir/ma’am, you have been 

ruled out of order a third time. By Council Meeting Rule 10.2.d, you will not be 

allowed to speak for the remainder of this meeting. Please be seated.”   

D. If a speaker will not yield the floor, the mayor will state, “Sir/ma’am, if you do not yield 

the floor, I will have you removed from these chambers. Will you not yield, 

sir/ma’am?” 

E. If the speaker continues to refuse to yield, or if an attendee is otherwise continually 

disruptive, the mayor will state, “I will now call a short recess to remove a disruptive 

person from this meeting. We will pause the broadcast from the council chambers at 

this time.” <gavel strike>. 

1). Cedar Falls Channel 15 will replace the livestream video feed with a static graphic and 

mute the sound; if possible, the recording will continue for law enforcement purposes. 

2). A uniformed law enforcement officer will begin recording with issued body camera and 

will move to escort the disruptor from the Council Chambers. 

3). If the disruptor leaves willingly, the officer will provide escort to the lobby area and 

prevent re-admittance. 

F. If the attendee fails to depart the Council Chamber, the mayor will state, “If you do not 

leave these chambers immediately, you will be removed by law enforcement, and 

may be charged with a crime under Iowa Law.” 

G. If the attendee refuses to depart the Council Chamber after being warned, the mayor will 

state, “Sergeant At Arms, please remove this lady/gentleman from the Council 

Chambers.” 

1). The Sergeant at Arms will take position to remove the disruptive person. 
397

Item 13.



CFD 1123.22:  Mayor Policy – Council Meeting Security and Good Order CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 3 of 3 

2). A second uniformed officer shall normally be called in to assist, at the discretion of the 

Sergeant At Arms. The Public Safety Director should not engage directly with the 

speaker, but instead should monitor and advise as needed. 

3). The uniformed law enforcement officers shall remove the attendee (physically if 

necessary) to the outside of the west entrance of City Hall for further action. Physical 

force will be the minimum necessary for compliance. 

H. Once the speaker is removed from the council chambers, the mayor will state: 

“Ladies and gentlemen, please return to your seats. As the presiding officer, I am 

required to maintain order in these proceedings. I have removed a disruptive 

meeting attendee in accordance with Iowa Code 723.4, which makes it unlawful for a 

person to disturb a lawful meeting by conduct intended to disrupt the meeting. With 

order restored, we will now resume broadcasting, and I will reconvene our meeting 

from recess.”  

I. Once the broadcasting is confirmed, the mayor will strike the gavel and state, “I now call 

this meeting to order from recess. Our next item of business on the agenda is...” 

ADOPTED / AMENDED: 2/10/20, 11/30/22 

398

Item 13.



   ROBERT M. GREEN 

 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8600 

FAX 319-268-5126 
M E M O R A N D U M 

Office of the Mayor 
 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 FROM: Mayor Robert M. Green 

 TO: City Council  

 DATE: December 28, 2022 

 SUBJECT: CFD 1129: Administrator Performance Evaluation for Receive and File 

 

1. I am enclosing the first implementation of a new policy for the Administrator Evaluations 

process.  Up until now, no written guidance has existed for the process, and during our 

Council Goal Setting work session, I volunteered to create one.   

2. I have considered two dozen different templates for the evaluation, and believe that the 

example from Lexington, NC provides the enough detail for Performance Area feedback 

without bogging down the reviewer in minutia.  

3. I have also reviewed the process at length with the City Administrator, and he has 

expressed no concerns with the proposed process.  

4. For the next evaluation, which will be completed by March 1, I will use the attached 

process for the timeline, to obtain council input, and to create the final evaluation. 

5. Once this year’s process has completed, I will solicit the Council’s and Administrators 

feedback to make any desired change to the process, and then will send it forward again 

as a Council Policy. The council’s approval and adoption of the Administrator 

Performance Evaluation policy will help to ensure that future mayors adhere to its 

provisions, as a formal direction from the City Council. 

6. Please contact with me with any concerns or questions about this memo. 

Encl: (1) CFD 1129.22: Mayor Policy -- Administrator Performance Evaluation 

Xc:  City Administrator 

### 

 

399

Item 14.



CFD 1129.22:  Mayor Policy –  Administrator Performance Evaluation CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 1 of 6 

CFD 1129: Mayor Policy – Administrator Performance Evaluation 
Adopted December 28, 2022 by Rob Green, Mayor of Cedar Falls  

PURPOSE:  

To establish and maintain a consistent annual City Administrator performance evaluation process. 

POLICY:   

It is the policy of the Mayor to provide an annual performance evaluation of the City Administrator 

in accordance with the Cedar Falls Code of Ordinances, and to do so using a standardized, written 

process which will be continuously improved upon. 

PROCEDURES: 

1. Authorities.  The City Code states in Sec. 2-217 that, “The mayor shall supervise and 

evaluate the performance of the city administrator, with input of the council. Said evaluation 

shall be available for review by the council. The city administrator may request a closed 

meeting with the city council to discuss performance annually, as provided by state statute.”    

2. Period of Evaluation. Each evaluation shall cover one full calendar year (Jan 1 – Dec 31). 

3. Administrator Support Form.  

A. Each December, the Administrator is invited and encouraged to provide a support form 

listing significant accomplishments in the following performance areas: 

1). Management of the organization. 

2). Execution of policy. 

3). Financial management. 

4). Relations with the Council. 

5). Community relations and engagement. 

6). Communications. 

7). Leadership. 

8). Professionalism. 

9). Vision, initiative, and plan execution. 

B. Detailed explanations of the expectations for these performance areas are contained on the 

attached City Administrator Performance Evaluation.1 

4. Solicitation of Input from the City Council.  

A. The Mayor shall distribute blank paper copies of the City Administrator Performance 

                                                

1 Performance areas derived from the City of Lexington, NC City Manager Evaluation Form; re-used with permission. 

400

Item 14.



CFD 1129.22:  Mayor Policy –  Administrator Performance Evaluation CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 2 of 6 

Evaluation (attached) to all city councilors at the first meeting of January. 

B. Councilors shall be provided one month complete and return their performance evaluation 

input form.  Completed forms should be returned to the Mayor no later than the evening of 

the first regular Council Meeting in February, in order to be included in the Mayor’s review. 

C. Comments made by council members on input forms may be included on the Mayor’s final 

evaluation, at the Mayor’s discretion. 

D. If the Mayor will leave office at the end of the evaluation period, the outgoing Mayor shall 

provide an input form to the incoming Mayor for consideration, no later than December 31. 

E. All councilor input forms shall be made available to the Administrator for review, and shall 

be retained by the Mayor for a period of one year. These councilor input forms shall not be 

considered part of the written performance evaluation.  These forms, when filled, are 

confidential records under Iowa Code 22.7 and shall be handled accordingly. 

5. Written Evaluation Preparation and One-on-One Counseling. 

A. The Mayor shall complete the written performance evaluation and counsel the Administrator 

using the completed evaluation no later than March 1. The Administrator shall sign the 

completed form as having been counseled, regardless of any agreement or disagreement 

with the marks and comments contained on the form.  

B. The Administrator shall have the opportunity to respond in writing to the evaluation; this 

response shall be attached to the evaluation, and shall be considered part of the 

evaluation. The Mayor may reply in writing to this response, as desired. 

C. A copy of the final City Administrator Performance Evaluation, signed and dated by the 

Administrator, shall be retained by the Mayor for the duration of the Administrator’s term, 

for the inspection of the City Council and following mayors. The Mayor shall ensure that this 

copy is properly secured and protected as a confidential record under Iowa Code 22.7. An 

additional copy shall be provided to the Human Resources Manager for personnel records. 

6. Discussion with Council of Administrator Performance and Annual Pay Adjustment. 

A. At the first or second March regular City Council meeting, the Mayor shall convene an 

executive session to discuss the completed and signed performance evaluation and to 

provide an opportunity for individual council member feedback and group discussion with 

the Administrator. This meeting shall satisfy Sec. 2-217, to offer a closed meeting with the 

City Council to the City Administrator to discuss performance annually. 

B. At this Executive Session, the City Council shall also determine via consensus the desired 

annual pay adjustment percentage for the Administrator’s salary, taking into account the 

Consumer Price Index (CPI) and any merit and longevity increases.  The Mayor shall then 

notify the Director of Finance and Business Operations via memo the agreed adjustment. 

ADOPTED / AMENDED:  XX/XX/XX 

 
401

Item 14.



CFD 1129.22:  Mayor Policy –  Administrator Performance Evaluation CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 3 of 6 

CITY ADMINISTRATOR PERFORMANCE EVALUATION 

Reviewer: __________________________     Administrator: ____________________________ 

Evaluation for Period:  ___ / ___ / ___  to  ___ / ___ / ___         Date Submitted:  ___ / ___ / ___ 

 

                                                                   

PERFORMANCE AREA 1 - MANAGEMENT OF THE ORGANIZATION: Effectively runs the operations of 

the organization. Creates a collaborative, team building environment for staff as a Workplace of Choice. 

Recognizes the accomplishments of staff and other agencies working on behalf of the City. Supports a 

commitment to professional growth, succession planning, diversity/inclusion, and opportunity within the 

organization. Accepts full accountability for staff and the outcome of City projects or decisions. Actively 

addresses mission critical services, identifies organizational problems and takes remedial action. 

 

      
1 

Does not meet 

expectations 

2 

 

3 

Meets  

expectations 

4 

 

5 

Exceeds 

expectations 

 

Unable to Rate 

General comments and suggestions for improvement in this category: 

 

 

 

                                                                   

PERFORMANCE AREA 2 - EXECUTION OF POLICY: Understands and complies with ordinances, policies 

and procedures governing the City including Federal and State legislation and directives. Implements City 

policy, fairly and consistently, based upon Council decisions, initiatives, and applicable laws and regulations. 

Presents matters in a factual, analytical way. Coordinates Council policy decisions to staff, other 

organizations and the community. 

      
1 

Does not meet 

expectations 

2 

 

3 

Meets  

expectations 

4 

 

5 

Exceeds 

expectations 

 
Unable to Rate 

General comments and suggestions for improvement in this category: 

 

 

 
  

402

Item 14.



CFD 1129.22:  Mayor Policy –  Administrator Performance Evaluation CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 4 of 6 

PERFORMANCE AREA 3 - FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT: Properly prepares and manages the budget. 

Demonstrates ingenuity and creativity in approaching budgetary matters, including long-range financial 

needs, monitoring and adaptation for the organization. Incorporates evolving role of technology in service 

provision. Actively works to sustain cost-competitive government services. 

      
1 

Does not meet 

expectations 

2 

 

3 

Meets  

expectations 

4 

 

5 

Exceeds 

expectations 

 
Unable to Rate 

General comments and suggestions for improvement in this category: 

 

 

                                                                   

PERFORMANCE AREA 4 - RELATIONS WITH THE COUNCIL: Makes an effort to be accessible to Council 

members. Handles issues that are brought by the Council in a consistent and timely manner. Maintains an 

honest, truthful and professional relationship with each Council member. Keeps a positive attitude and 

approach to new ideas, issues and complaints raised by Council members. 

      
1 

Does not meet 

expectations 

2 

 

3 

Meets  

expectations 

4 

 

5 

Exceeds 

expectations 

 
Unable to Rate 

General comments and suggestions for improvement in this category: 

 

 

                                                                   

PERFORMANCE AREA 5 - COMMUNITY RELATIONS AND ENGAGEMENT: Makes an effort to 

understand issues, concerns, and the values of the community. Meets with and listens to members of the 

community to discuss concerns and strives to understand their interests. Leverages public engagements and 

community interactions to educate and advocate on City initiatives and services. Represents the City well 

and in a professional and positive manner. Works proactively and maintains a nonpartisan professional 

approach with the media and press. Professionally leverages social media. Works effectively and synergizes 

collaboration with partner agencies, neighboring jurisdictions and community organizations 

      
1 

Does not meet 

expectations 

2 

 

3 

Meets  

expectations 

4 

 

5 

Exceeds 

expectations 

 
Unable to Rate 

General comments and suggestions for improvement in this category: 

 

 

 

 403

Item 14.



CFD 1129.22:  Mayor Policy –  Administrator Performance Evaluation CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 5 of 6 

PERFORMANCE AREA 6 - COMMUNICATIONS: Ensures that Council members receive important 
information in a timely and effective manner. Provides regular updates to the Council, keeping them informed 
about current and critical issues. Presents the Council and community with clear and accurate reports and 
correspondence. Responds to correspondence, requests and complaints, timely and appropriately. 
Facilitates open two-way communication and encourages mutual honesty and respect with Council, staff and 
the community. 

      
1 

Does not meet 

expectations 

2 

 

3 

Meets  

expectations 

4 

 

5 

Exceeds 

expectations 

 
Unable to Rate 

General comments and suggestions for improvement in this category: 

 

 

                                                                   

PERFORMANCE AREA 7 - LEADERSHIP: Provides the Council and the organization with solutions and 

creative alternatives to issues and problems that reflect the values of the community. Anticipates and 

responds to issues. Assures that recommendations are thought out, objective, consistent with past practices 

and legal/ethical. Makes use of sound administrative practices. Positively leads through collaboration, 

mentoring, coaching and motivation. Positively represents the organization as a City ambassador. 

      
1 

Does not meet 

expectations 

2 

 

3 

Meets  

expectations 

4 

 

5 

Exceeds 

expectations 

 
Unable to Rate 

General comments and suggestions for improvement in this category: 

 

 

                                                                   

PERFORMANCE AREA 8 - PROFESSIONALISM: Deals effectively and appropriately with the public and 

other organizations. Devotes time and energy to the job. Demonstrates high ethical standards and integrity. 

Works to keep “politics” and personal perspectives out of the decision making process. Stays abreast and 

active in professional organizations and current issues. 

      
1 

Does not meet 

expectations 

2 

 

3 

Meets  

expectations 

4 

 

5 

Exceeds 

expectations 

 
Unable to Rate 

General comments and suggestions for improvement in this category: 

 

 

 

  
404

Item 14.



CFD 1129.22:  Mayor Policy –  Administrator Performance Evaluation CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 6 of 6 

PERFORMANCE AREA 9 - VISION, INITIATIVE, AND PLAN EXECUTION: Sets an example that urges the 

organization and the community toward innovation, problem solving and solution-oriented action. Actively 

works to envision a future state resisting the status quo and develops new ideas and initiatives for 

consideration. Adapts to evolving technological advancements and social media platforms. Leverages City 

Council Goal Setting Work Sessions to identify priorities for the Annual Budget and work plan and accepts 

responsibility for the results. Offers professional recommendations and implements Council’s vision. 

      
1 

Does not meet 

expectations 

2 

 

3 

Meets  

expectations 

4 

 

5 

Exceeds 

expectations 

 
Unable to Rate 

General comments and suggestions for improvement in this category: 

 

 

                                                                   

NARRATIVE EVALUATION 

1. What would you identify as the City Administrator’s strengths, expressed in terms of the 

principal results achieved during the rating period? 

 

 

 

 

2. What performance areas listed above would you identify as most critical for improvement? 

 

 

 

 

 

3. What suggestions or advice can you offer the City Administrator? 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4. What other comments to you have for the City Administrator (for example, about priorities, 

expectations, or specific objectives for the next year)? 

405

Item 14.



406

Item 15.



407

Item 16.



408

Item 16.



409

Item 16.



410

Item 16.



411

Item 16.



412

Item 16.



413

Item 16.



414

Item 16.



415

Item 16.



416

Item 16.



417

Item 16.



418

Item 16.



419

Item 16.



420

Item 16.



421

Item 16.



422

Item 16.



423

Item 16.



424

Item 16.



425

Item 16.



426

Item 16.



427

Item 16.



428

Item 16.



429

Item 16.



430

Item 16.



431

Item 16.



432

Item 16.



433

Item 16.



434

Item 16.



435

Item 16.



436

Item 16.



437

Item 16.



438

Item 16.



   DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY SERVICES 

  POLICE OPERATIONS 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 

  4600 SOUTH MAIN STREET 
  CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
 

  319-273-8612 
 

MEMORANDUM 

To:  Mayor Green and City Councilmembers 

From:  Craig Berte, Public Safety Services Director 

  Mark Howard, Police Chief 

Date:  December 22, 2022 

Re:  Retail Alcohol License Applications 

Police Operations has received applications for retail alcohol licenses. We find no 
records that would prohibit these licenses and recommend approval. 

Name of Applicants:  

a) Huhot Mongolian Grill, 6301 University Avenue, Special Class C retail alcohol - 
renewal. 

b) Hy-Vee Market Grille, 6301 University Avenue, Class C retail alcohol – change in 
ownership. 

c) Hy-Vee Food Store, 6301 University Avenue, Class E retail alcohol – change in 
ownership. 

d) AmericInn by Wyndham, 5818 Nordic Drive, Class B retail alcohol – new. 

e) Holiday Inn Express & Suites, 1614 Technology Parkway, Class B retail alcohol – 
new. 

f) Second State Brewing, 203 State Street, Class C retail alcohol & outdoor service – 
new. 

439

Item 17.



CFD 1101.XX – Council Goals, Work Program, and Financial Plan for FY2024 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 1 of 38 

  
 

CFD 1101: Council Goals, Work Program, and Financial Plan for FY2024 
Adopted January 3XXXX, 2023 by the Cedar Falls City Council 

 

MISSION OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS: 

Continuously Maintain and improve the safety and desirability of Cedar Falls through the efficient 
delivery of public services, withand the ongoing practice of open communication between Citizens, 
among Council, Mayor, and City Staff, Mayor, and Citizens.   

SHORT TERM FINANCIAL PLAN: 

 

A. FY2024 Budget Policies. 

1). Limit tax increases to no more than the rate of inflation on residential properties for 
controllable costs. 

2). City staff members are directed to certify the maximum amount of legally incurred TIF debt 
annually by December 1st for all completed City and CFU construction work within the TIF 
Districts to better position the City and CFU financially. Continue to transfer TIF release 
funds to economic development fund to cash-flow economic development projects.   

3). Use State aid (including backfill if provided) only to fund one-time capital expenditures or 
non-reoccurring expenses, rather than for operating expenses. 

4). Requests for aid from any group will only be considered once annually during the annual 
budget process. Mid-year requests will be deferred to the next fiscal year unless they are 
emergency in nature. Financial aid will only be provided if there is not financial hardship on 
City offered essential services and the services proposed are not duplicated. 

5). Applications for City funding support from UNI will only be accepted from the Vice President 
of Administration and Finance once annually. This process ensures that all UNI projects or 
programs seeking City financial aid have been approved by UNI management and 
prioritized. 

6). All outside agencies seeking City financial support shall submit formal applications for 
review by a committee of staff members with recommendations forwarded to the Mayor 
and City Council; considerations for approval shall include timely reporting, performance, 
public benefit, funding options and service priority. 

7). Escrow Fund Policies. 

a. The City will escrow funds annually to pay accrued liabilities.  

b. The City will address annually these commitments by budgeting and depositing in a 
restricted account funds to pay these liabilities when they occur.  

440

Item 19.



CFD 1101.XX – Council Goals, Work Program, and Financial Plan for FY2024 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 2 of 38 

  
 

c. The City will not un-fund liabilities in escrow accounts; these include severance, payroll, 
liability insurance, vehicle replacement, data processing, workmen's compensation, 
long-term disability and all pensions. 

8). Continue to assess user fees for specific City services at rates approved by Council. 

9). Explore the use of State authorized tax levies for statutory services, if the General Fund 
experiences financial limitations. 

10).The Cedar Falls Health Trust Fund shall only budget expenditure of interest income 
generated by the fund minus an interest income contribution into the fund’s principal equal 
to the rate of inflation in health care. Principal should only be used in negotiating a 
development agreement for a new hospital or a health care provider.  

11).Interest income generated from the 411 Pension reserve fund shall be used to pay the 
required City contribution to annual 411 expenses. No portion of the principal shall be used 
for operating purposes. 

12).Road Use taxes shall only be deposited in the Street Construction fund with their use 
limited to street operations and maintenance purposes. 

13).Consider adding General Fund financial support for annual maintenance expenses to 
better landscape public roadways. 

14).Maintain capital and maintenance reserve accounts generated from user fees set aside to 
pay for future capital repairs or facility replacement of benefit to the users contributing 
(examples include the Recreation Center, Aquatic Center, Hearst Center, Beach House, 
Big Woods Campground and golf courses). 

15).The CFU transfer made to the City in lieu of property taxes shall be deposited in the 
General Fund to off-set the cost of supplying City services. Transfer funds shall also be set 
aside in a capital account to finance various one-time capital projects. 

16).Maintain liability, work compensation and health insurance reserves as required by law or 
policy to support the City’s self-insurance programs. 

17).Evaluate annually the ability of the Library Board to utilize Community Foundation Trust 
accounts to support select programs, operations and capital needs. 

18).TIF-qualified SSMID funds collected from Downtown and College Hill SSMID District will 
be allocated to Community Main Street and College Hill Partnership rather than for City TIF 
debt payments. 

19).Coordinate and centralize all requests for grants, including the Black Hawk County Gaming 
Association. 

B. FY2024 Budget Contingency Policies. 

1). Prioritize all city services if budget reductions are required; this will allow for the most cost 

441

Item 19.



CFD 1101.XX – Council Goals, Work Program, and Financial Plan for FY2024 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 3 of 38 

  
 

effective use of Federal Aid to pay eligible ‘essential’ service operating expenses as, if the 
operating expenses are not reoccurring or if more efficient staffing can be achieved.  

2). Reduce City financial aid to outside agencies if funding shortfalls risk damaging the 
provision of essential services; annually notify agencies if funding reductions are 
anticipated for the next fiscal year. 

C. FY2024 Cash Reserves Policy. 

1). 1.The City will maintain an unreserved balance at year-end at a level determined by Council 
to meet cash flow requirements, emergency needs, and bond rating criteria.  
 

Fund Type Percent Minimum Absolute Minimum 

General Fund 15-25%1 Not specified 

Refuse Fund 20-30% $500,000 

Sewer Fund 65-75% $1,500,000 

Street Fund 20-30% $1,000,000 

Storm Water Fund 10-20% $200,000 

Emergency Reserve Fund N/A $1,500,000 - $2,000,000 

 

D. FY2024 Revenues Policy. 

1). Description. The revenue projection process starts with estimates submitted by the 
departments for their specific areas. Finance reviews those estimates and makes informed 
judgments on all revenues City-wide. Prior year’s actual and current year-to-date amounts 
are used to project both the current year and next year's revenues. Information received 
from the State, County, and Iowa League of Cities is utilized to project revenue trends and 
anticipated amounts. 

2). Approval. Finance will use conservative interest rate projections, current balances and 
interest accrual information, projects interest earnings. The Mayor and City Administrator 
will review revenues, expenditures and ending fund balances to determine if any revenue 
adjustments need to be made. 

3). Revenue Source Policies.  

a. Property Taxes. The budget of the City of Cedar Falls shall be drawn so that the general 
tax levy does not exceed limits established by State law. 

b. Debt Service Levy. Taxes shall be levied each year under the Debt Service Levy in the 

 

1 The City Council established Resolution 9054 that the General Fund balance be maintained between 15 and 25% and 
preferably at the 20-25% level, allowing for the seasonal cash flows. Work towards closer to 25%. 

442

Item 19.



CFD 1101.XX – Council Goals, Work Program, and Financial Plan for FY2024 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 4 of 38 

  
 

amount equal to the general obligation principal and interest due in that same year, 
minus the portion paid by the enterprise funds and CFU. 

c. Tort Liability Levy. The City may levy for the expected costs of property and liability 
insurance policies and estimated claims losses held by the City. 

d. Employee Benefits Levy. The City's share of contributions to police and fire pension 
and retirement systems, at rates determined by the State of Iowa, for currently 
employed sworn officers. The City’s share of contributions for employee benefits 
budgeted under the General Fund only if the general tax levy is at the $8.10 maximum. 
Employee benefits levy tax revenues will be receipted into the Trust and Agency Fund 
and then transferred into the General Fund. 

e. Emergency Management Levy. Levy for all dispatch, 911 and emergency operation 
costs assigned to the City of Cedar Falls. 

f. Transit Levy. Transit levy taxes shall not exceed the 95-cent limit established by State 
law. Transit levy tax revenues will be receipted into the General Fund. 

g. Band Levy. Taxes levied under the Band Levy shall not exceed the 13.5-cent limit 
established by State law. Tax revenues from the band levy will be receipted into the 
General Fund. 

h. Library Levy. Taxes levied under the library levy shall not exceed the 27-cent limit 
established by state law. Library levy tax revenues shall support the library. 
Approximately 50% of the levy will be used for new materials and services and 
approximately 50% will be used to lower general fund support to the library. 

i. Sales Tax. The City collects an additional 1% in local option sales tax. The revenues 
and expenditures under this program are recorded in a separate fund. 

j. Hotel/Motel Tax. The City currently has a 7% hotel/motel tax with 50% of the income 
generated by the imposition of the tax being devoted to the Visitors and Tourism 
Division. The other 50% is devoted to programs related to parks, lakes, trails, and 
recreational/cultural facilities. 

k. Fees and Charges. The City will establish fees and charges, in accordance with 
revenue bond requirements or for covering all or part of the related costs of providing 
the services. Fees and charges shall be reviewed at least biennially.   

l. Investments. The City will invest 100% of idle funds and will obtain the best possible 
return on all cash investments within the limits of the State law. 

m. Intergovernmental Revenue. Revenues from local, State and Federal governments will 
be used according to the restrictions or intent placed on each. 

n. Additional Revenue Sources. The City will continue searching for additional revenues 
to maintain a balanced budget. 

443

Item 19.



CFD 1101.XX – Council Goals, Work Program, and Financial Plan for FY2024 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 5 of 38 

  
 

E. FY2024 Expenditures Policies. 

1). Current Service Level: Funding will be prioritized to maintain current service levels. 

2). Cost Effective Programs: Technology and capital investment programs will be leveraged to 
reduce operating expenses whenever cost-effective. 

3). Infrastructures and Equipment: The City will maintain the scheduled level of maintenance 
and replacement for City infrastructure and equipment. 

4). Local Option Sales Tax: 100% of LOST proceeds will be spent on street repair in 
accordance with the stipulations set by the voters and City Council resolution2.  

5). Reductions: The City will attempt to avoid service reductions when balancing the budget. 
First consideration will be given to alternatives which avoid employee layoffs, resist cuts in 
service, and establish user fees. Parameters for downsizing shall ensure that (1) no essential 
service be eliminated; (2) service with high public visibility and exposure remain intact, and 
(3) reductions will first be made in internal functions. 

F. FY2024 Long Term Debt Policies. 

1). Purpose of Debt: Debt will be used to fund the design, inspection and construction of capital 
improvement projects, rather than for annual operating expenses. 

2). Debt Limit: The total GO debt will not exceed 5% of total assessed real property value.  

3). Debt Issuance: New debt issuance shall not exceed a replacement debt level. Existing debt 
should be refinanced to secure the lowest possible interest costs, whenever possible. 

4). Self-Financing: Self-financing or cash (where allowed) will be used to fund one-time 
projects if excess cash reserves exist. 

G. FY2024 Capital Improvements Program Policies. 

1). Description. The Capital Improvements Program (CIP) is a planning document and does 
not authorize or fund projects. The projects listed in the CIP are summarized in the capital 
projects program.  

2). Approvals. The CIP is prepared by the Finance & Business Operations Department for 
review by the Department Directors, City Administrator, Mayor, and Planning and Zoning 
Commission; the CIP is then submitted to the City Council for approval.  

3). The City will make all capital improvements in accordance with the adopted CIP. The City 

 
2 City Council Resolution 15,596 provides that, “Zero percent (0%) of said local sales and services tax is to be used for 
property tax relief. One hundred percent (100%) of the revenue generated in the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa during each 
fiscal year from said local sales and services tax is to be allocated for reconstruction, repair or replacement of existing 
streets, curbs, structures, storm sewers and sanitary sewers as they relate to streets within the corporate limits of the City 
of Cedar Falls, Iowa and not as replacement funds for the present funding levels, as authorized by the City Council of the 
City of Cedar Falls, Iowa. 

444

Item 19.



CFD 1101.XX – Council Goals, Work Program, and Financial Plan for FY2024 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 6 of 38 

  
 

will develop and annually update a multi-year plan for capital improvements.  

4). The City will enact an annual capital budget based on the multi-year capital improvement 
plan. Future capital expenditures necessitated by changes in population, changes in real 
estate development, or changes in economic base will be calculated and included in capital 
budget projections. 

5). The City will coordinate development of the capital improvement budget with development 
of the operating budget. Future operating costs associated with new capital improvement 
will be projected and included in operating budget forecasts.  

6). The City will use intergovernmental assistance to finance only those capital improvements 
consistent with the CIP and City priorities and where operating and maintenance costs 
have been included in operating budget forecasts. 

7). The City will maintain all assets at a level adequate to protect the City's capital investment 
and to minimize future maintenance and replacement costs. 

8). The City will project its equipment replacement and maintenance needs for the next several 
years and will update this projection each year in order to implement a maintenance and 
replacement schedule. 

9). The City will not finance equipment or projects with a projected life span less than a bond’s 
maturity through the sale of GO bonds. 

10).The City will not finance ongoing operating expenses with GO or revenue bonds. 

11).The CIP will incorporate the least costly financing method for all new projects.  

12).The City will maintain a long-term financial plan to address inadequacies in “City managed” 
infrastructure in unserved areas of the City and progressively add them to the CIP when 
cost effective (if consistent with long-range growth plans). 

13).The CIP will incorporate a debt management strategy emphasizing the protection of at 
least 25-30% of the City's debt capacity.  

14).The City will develop a plan addressing competing projects, priorities and timing to meet 
this objective jointly by soliciting input from the Planning & Zoning Commission to ensure 
that projects are timely, unduplicated and supportive of long-range plans. 

15).The issuance of new debt shall not exceed a replacement debt level, which typically ranges 
from $3.0 - $4.0 million dollars every other year; CFU uses the City’s bank qualified 
financing capacity in off bond sale years. 

a. In FY23, the City will budget for a $3.0 - $4 million dollar GO bond sale. 

b. The City will use emergency reserve funds for projects identified in the CIP, with a 
balance of $1.5-2 million for emergencies. 

445

Item 19.



CFD 1101.XX – Council Goals, Work Program, and Financial Plan for FY2024 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 7 of 38 

  
 

16).The City will incorporate when timely, properly planned, safely engineered and financially 
feasible and design appropriate street and growth concepts in the planning and design of 
all capital projects. 

17).The city will seek minimum private donation match of 25% of/for recreation & quality of life 
projects.  Funds shall be escrowed or an agreement with the City Council needs to be 
executed prior to the project bid letting.  

GOALS AND OBJECTIVES: 

1. GOAL #1: Foster Organizational Excellence. Select, train, motivate and retain highly-qualified 
employees who represent the city in a professional manner. 

A. Supporting Policies. 

1).  Ensure that employee wages and benefits are competitive with other municipalities in the 
state of Iowa and private enterprise in the metro area. 

2). Maintain clear lines and methods of communication between elected officials and staff. 

3). Treat employees with respect and expect that they, in turn, will treat citizens with respect. 

4). Encourage and management and supervisory employees to be creative and innovative in 
the delivery of city services. 

5). Promote continuous quality improvement in all city government operations. 

6). Conduct employee survey every two years.  

B. Long-Term and Ongoing Objectives. 

1). Continue to monitor the ability to attract and retain quality staff.  

2). Continue to support the Performance Based Pay (Merit Pay) Policy (CFD 2154) to reward 
superior staff performance and encourage the retention of high performers.  

3). Expand cross-training programs to improve service without increasing staffing. 

4). Seek methods to reduce employee health insurance costs by altering benefits, seeking 
greater financial contribution from employees and modify methods of employee health 
service delivery. 

C. FY2024 Detailed Objectives. 

1). Review results and consider policy changes from the workforce climate assessment / 
employee satisfaction survey to improve human resources management and employee 
relations. 

2). Continue to evaluate whether to fill an opening or proposed newly created position.  

446

Item 19.



CFD 1101.XX – Council Goals, Work Program, and Financial Plan for FY2024 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 8 of 38 

  
 

3). Explore restructuring, merging, or eliminating vacant positions. 

4). Maintain multi-year staffing and succession plans. 

5). Implement and maintain updates to the Comprehensive Pay Plan (CFD 2502.18). 

6). Continue to fund the City’s employee educational assistance program (CFD 2254).  

7). Encourage employees to use the City’s wellness program (CFD 2257) and continue to offer 
incentives for participation.  

8). Update the staffing plan to address employment attrition, retirements and the use of PT, 
PSOs, POCs, Police Reservists, volunteers or other cross-training programs to respond to 
long-term staffing needs. 

9). Develop a review standard to annually evaluate  the performance of the City Administrator.  

1.2.GOAL #21: Deliver Responsible Local Government. Continue to pProvide a representative 
system which identifies and anticipates concerns, problems, and opportunities which are 
effectively addressed with thoughtful and decisive governmental actions for the benefit of citizens. 

A. Supporting Council Policies. 

1). Set policies and guidelines, and provide Provide broad direction to the City Administrator, 
who in turn formulates management decisions to provide efficient service offerings and 
operations. 

2). As a policy-making body, interpret community needs and values and convey them to City 
staff through consistent legislative and policy actions. 

3). Continue to provide a forum for active public input engagement related to City actions 
through open public meetings, hearings, committees, commissions, task forces, local 
access cable television, and web-based media and broadcast media. 

4). Encourage active public input into the City’s various boards, commissions, task forces, and 
other advisory bodies.  

5).4).Continually explore and evaluate improved methods of communication with citizens to 
informing them of City activities and accomplishments. 

B. Long-Term and Ongoing Objectives. 

1). Continue to hold annual meetings with CFU to discuss the impacts and strategies to deal 
with the on-going transfer of Utility funds in lieu of property taxes, franchise taxes, use of 
right-of-way, TIF reimbursement, and support of entrepreneurship.  

2). Hold joint meetings with policy-making City boards such as the Library Board and the 
Planning & Zoning Commission. 

447

Item 19.



CFD 1101.XX – Council Goals, Work Program, and Financial Plan for FY2024 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 9 of 38 

  
 

3). Consider holding when timely, joint meetings with the Waterloo City Council, Black Hawk 
County Supervisors, Cedar Falls Community School District and the University of Northern 
Iowa on matters of mutual interest. 

4). Encourage the professional development of City Council members, city commissioners and 
board members through staff-facilitated work sessions, training sessions, the Iowa League 
of Cities annual conference, the Municipal Leadership Academy, and innovative project 
presentations from other cities. 

5). Expand on existing collaborations with the City of Waterloo, CFU, UNI, Black Hawk County, 
and other governmental bodies to provide high-quality public services at lower cost; 
examples include art & culture services, airport operations, public safety services, transit 
systems, economic development coordination, emergency response, sewer infrastructure, 
and shared facilities / equipment. 

6). Continue working with the Metropolitan Transit Authority and exploring other transportation 
options which meet the needs of Cedar Falls’ public transit-dependent residents at an 
affordable cost to the city.  

7). Continue to support the development of a five-year Community-Wide Strategic Plan (CFD 
4005) to help coordinate the long-term efforts of the City’s many stakeholders, including a 
new plan for 2025-2030. 

8). Continue using the city’s quarterly Currents newsletter, websites, cable television, social 
media and other technologies to provide relevant information about City services, activities, 
and schedules to residents. 

9). Continue expanding the Communication Specialist role to facilitate increased 
communications with the public about all aspects of city government. 

10).Maintain an online index of major city plans, policies, and documents for reference. 

11).Continue to expand the City’s online services to take advantage of the prevalence of 
smartphones & other mobile devices in our community, while also ensuring that the less 
digitally advantaged can fully access city services.   

12).Continue to implement the Nutrient Reduction Strategy as submitted to the IDNR to update 
the existing Wastewater Treatment Facility. 

C. FY2023FY2024 Detailed Objectives. 

1). City of Waterloo Objectives. 

a. Maintain mutual aid agreements with Waterloo for faster emergency response times 
and lower callback expenses for both cities.  

b. Support coordination with Waterloo directly and through the Iowa Northland Regional 
Council of Governments (INRCOG) on common legislative goals.  

448

Item 19.



CFD 1101.XX – Council Goals, Work Program, and Financial Plan for FY2024 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 10 of 38 

  
 

c. Support cooperative efforts to upgrade the County Consolidated Communications 
Center (911 dispatch) while exploring options to minimize costs assessed to Cedar 
Falls. 

2). University of Northern Iowa Objectives. 

a. Continue to collaborate with UNI to address public safety, parking, College Hill 
neighborhood, equitable payment for City services, sharing of facilities and elimination 
of duplicated governmental services. 

b. Continue to explore the viability of shared service contracts with UNI for policing, fire 
protection, dispatch, street maintenance, utilities, and recreational facility development 
and usage. 

c. Continue to coordinate the development of new City open field recreational uses with 
UNI to minimize the purchase of additional land; this approach will allow City funds to 
be used for site development. 

d. Engage with Iowa Workforce Development and UNI to explore opportunities to retain 
recent UNI graduates in Cedar Falls. 

e. Continue to provide paid internships to UNI students as a means to promote civic 
engagement. 

3). Cedar Falls Community School District (CFCSD) Objectives. 

a. Assist CFCSD with infrastructure improvements that create parking areas, joint 
City/Schools playgrounds, and building expansion areas. 

b. Support improvements to parking and pedestrian traffic near public schools in 
accordance with the Safe Routes to Schools Study (CFD 4106.11); examples of such 
design are Orchard Hill Elementary, Southdale Elementary, and Lincoln Elementary.  

c. Coordinate with CFCSD on the completion of the new Cedar Falls High School; identify 
local, county and state facilities, programs and property which can minimize duplication 
of services. 

d. Continue to engage directly with High School student groups to introduce students to 
civic engagement (e.g. CAPS program). 

e. Build collaboration between CFCSD and the City to highlight and celebrate the many 
cultures in the community and how they add value to our city.  

f. Create pathways and collaborative equity discussions between businesses and UNI. 

g. Participate in a community-wide equity committee. 

4). Cedar Falls Utilities (CFU) Objectives. 

449

Item 19.



CFD 1101.XX – Council Goals, Work Program, and Financial Plan for FY2024 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 11 of 38 

  
 

a. Annually consider repaying eligible CFU expenses (if excess TIF revenues exist) for 
CFU projects completed in City TIF districts.  

b. Support CFU in the implementation of water service programs, as CFU is the sole 
governmental entity authorized by code to provide these services.  Reimbursement 
would be subject to CFU maintaining a fair and updated annual transfer that equitably 
compensates the City for return on investment from City ownership, property taxes, 
franchise fees and use of city right-of-way (ROW). 

c. Implement public water special assessment programs (if requested by CFU) to install 
a public water system in un-serviced areas, if requested and financially supported by a 
majority of benefited property owners. Examples include parts of northern Cedar Falls, 
Viking Place, Horseshoe Drive and some rural properties. 

d. Use federal Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) funding (if eligible) to pay 
for water service line connection for all residents who are income-eligible and property 
taxes to pay for fire hydrant installation; CFU will pay for all water line over-sizing and 
property owners will pay all other expenses, less any other funding sources. 

e. Continue to explore sustainability and resiliency initiatives jointly with CFU. 

5). Community Resiliency and Sustainability Objectives. 

a. Continue to implement the Island Park Revitalization Plan.  

b. Continue to evaluate cost effective measures to reduce damages resulting from Cedar 
River flooding.  

c. Continue to support conversion of city buildings to LED lighting, when cost-effective, to 
reduce the City’s electricity demand. 

d. Continue to support the conversion of unused City property to native tallgrass prairie 
(when practical) to reduce storm water runoff, minimize lawn maintenance 
requirements, and provide habitat for wildlife and pollinators. 

e. Continue to support the conversion of select gravel alleys to permeable alleys (when 
funds permit) to reduce gravel erosion and pollution from storm runoff. 

f. Continue to support the development of a city Resilience Plan to identify opportunities 
for increased city resiliency & sustainability. 

6). Racial Equity and Human Rights Objectives.  

a. Invest in organizational capacity and infrastructure through hiring under Human 
Resources personnel to achieve human rights and equity goals.   

b. Continue to actively partner with the Black Hawk County Health Department, Cedar 
Falls Community School District, UNI, and Grow Cedar Valley to develop coordinated 
and supporting equity plans and initiatives. 

450

Item 19.



CFD 1101.XX – Council Goals, Work Program, and Financial Plan for FY2024 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 12 of 38 

  
 

c. Build collaboration with the Cedar Falls Community School District to highlight and 
celebrate different cultures in the community and their value to the city. 

d. Create pathways and collaborative equity discussions between businesses and UNI.  

e. Work with Human Rights Commission about forming a Diversity, Equity, & Inclusion 
(DEI) subcommittee or determine best approach to establishing a Cedar Falls Equity 
Committee. 

f. Work towards actively building capacity to create public engagement opportunities that 
are welcoming and inclusive.  

7). General Governance Objectives. 

a. Continue support for ‘Mayor’s Updates’ to inform the City Council, Cedar Falls residents 
and stakeholders of the status of Council priorities, City projects, upcoming activities 
and key information.  

b. Continue to specify in council agenda memos and presentations how a project or topic 
fits into the City Council’s stated goals and priorities. 

c. Maintain a directory of governmental units, neighborhood groups, and other 
stakeholders the City Council would periodically like to meet with to discuss common 
interests.  

d. Maintain an online calendar of civic events of relevance to city elected officials, 
published with as much advance notice as possible to facilitate attendance.  

e. Develop a long-term participation protocol for public meetings, including 
videoconferencing options. 

f.e. Hold city council committee or work sessions on council meeting Mondays to discuss 
complex or potentially contentious matters., including: 

(1) Political Campaigning (federal / state / local) within City Parks. 

(2) Resilience Plan – Final Report. 

2.3.GOAL #32: Ensure Government Efficiency and Effectiveness. Equitably deliver services in a 
cost effective, efficient, professional, and timely manner. 

A. Supporting Council Policies. 

1). Carry out the Short-Term Financial Plan (see Section 6 below).  

2). Ensure that community health, safety, and welfare are protected through provision of 
essential cost-effective, efficient, professional, and timely public services. 

3). Adopt a balanced budget reflecting the community's economic climate and needs. 

451

Item 19.



CFD 1101.XX – Council Goals, Work Program, and Financial Plan for FY2024 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 13 of 38 

  
 

4). Continue to monitor the impacts of the State of Iowa’s roll back of commercial/industrial 
taxable values without long-term guaranteed backfill funding. 

5). Maintain a budget philosophy of self-sufficiency in all major funds. 

6). Adopt a Capital Improvements Program annually which coordinates major capital 
expenditures and is responsive to property tax levies and the City's debt restrictions. 

7). Maintain a stable property tax rate relative to the consumer price index. 

8). Deposit funds in excess of annual operations expenses (including released TIF funds) in a 
capital reserve account for projects,  such as the repurposing of city hall, economic 
development, public land acquisition, redevelopment, health insurance fund support,  or 
other one-time allocations expenses approved by the City Council. 

9). Evaluate each newly proposed service to determine the cost, relative importance and value 
of each service, and to identify unnecessary duplication within City-sponsored programs. 

10).Identify and implement cost-effective methods to save energy within City operations. 

B. Long-Term and Ongoing Objectives. 

1). Continue to monitor the City's capacity to provide adequate maintenance of its growing 
infrastructure. Maintain a long-term maintenance plan, including a contingency plan to 
respond to any long-term reductions in maintenance funds if encountered in the long term.  

2). Continue to dedicate future accumulating cash generated by mid-year budget reductions 
for one-time future expenses such as capital projects. 

3). Continue to dedicate TIF release dollars generated by expired TIF areas to future economic 
development projects.  

4). Continue to explore appropriate opportunities for privatization of city services. 

5). Continue the annual street repair program using RUT and LOST revenues.  

6). Ensure that essential services (public safety, parks, sewers, roads, refuse collection) are 
offered, while constantly exploring ways to increase efficiency in delivery. 

7). Encourage civic involvement and volunteerism by citizens to reduce costs, including 
recycling, picking up leaves, moving cars to assist with efficient snowplowing, cleaning 
sidewalks, Friends of the Library, Friends of the Hearst Center, and Police Reservists.  

8). Maintain the appropriate number of alternative staff in police and fire while improving 
services and reducing overtime costs by annually recruiting, if necessary new Police 
Reservists, volunteers, PSOs and POC staff. 

9). Periodically conduct an evaluation of the costs and benefits of participation in the County 
Consolidated Communications Center and CJIS. Determine the fair share of costs that 

452

Item 19.



CFD 1101.XX – Council Goals, Work Program, and Financial Plan for FY2024 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 14 of 38 

  
 

should be assigned to Cedar Falls while exploring a "county funded" system. 

10).Maintain the Police Community Service Officer (CSO) program to help supervisory 
personnel with office duties, allowing supervisors to work closer with the public and provide 
direction in the field supervision of down-line employees. 

11).Maintain staffing levels in all departments that reduce overtime by matching staffing levels 
to specific service demands as opposed to predetermined rigid standards. 

12).Return City property to the tax base (when possible) to support revenue generation and 
economic development. 

C. FY2023FY2024 Detailed Objectives. 

1). General Cost Savings Objectives. 

a. Evaluate cost-effective alternatives to keep City departments staffed and functional. 

b. Continue the review of open positions as they occur. 

c. Continue the practice of succession planning to identify talented internal candidates 
when a vacancy is expected to occur. 

d. Continue to promote cross-training programs and alternative employment practices for 
most effective use of city staff. 

e. Continue to explore the sharing of services with other jurisdictions. 

2). Public Safety Objectives. 

a. Continue to support and provide feedback on the Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation 
Plan for Black Hawk County (CFD 5901.20) and intergovernmental emergency 
response plans. 

b. Continue to evaluate the City’s Public Safety model, ensuring cost effective and efficient 
law enforcement, firefighting, and rescue operations. 

c. Continue to review the staffing levels of the POC and Reserve programs to ensure the 
most efficient use of Public Safety funds and personnel. 

d. Actively solicit Public Safety Services Department employees to participate in the POC 
and PSO programs to increase their availability for service. 

e. Expand the use of PSOs, part time staff, and POCs to adequately staff fire stations 
without adding full-time staff or overtime expenses. 

f.d. Continue using supervisor performance measurement tools to hold first line supervisors 
accountable for daily staffing decisions.  

453

Item 19.



CFD 1101.XX – Council Goals, Work Program, and Financial Plan for FY2024 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 15 of 38 

  
 

g. Ensure that weekends and holidays are fully-scheduled productive workdays for shift 
personnel. 

h. Minimize fire shift overtime, using volunteers, PSOs, POCs, part-time staffing or other 
cross trained positions to reduce callbacks and staff scheduling expenses. 

i.e. Use the Performance Based (Merit Based) Pay Policy (CFD 2154) to reward 
supervisors who successfully respond to workload demands with decisions that 
adequately protect the safety of employees and the public while minimizing overtime 
and callback expenses. 

j.f. Exercise management rights to schedule full staffing to avoid overtime expenses on 
days where known special public events will tax personnel resources.  

k.g. Pursue the establishment of a new public safetyfire station along W. 1st Street / 
Highway 57.  

l. Maintain a fire station staffing plan that directs personnel to stations where the highest 
number of calls for service occurs. 

h. Expand the reach of the City’s marketing and promotional campaigns regarding policing 
and racial equity efforts, beyond traditional media sources. 

 Continue placing firefighting ensembles in police vehicles for faster response times. 

 Continue deploying CAFS equipment in select police vehicles to provide faster fire 
suppression response times. 

 Staff fire stations whenever possible with a combination of career, PSO, POC, PT, 
ambulance and volunteer staff to maintain readiness while reducing staffing costs. 

i. Continue to assign Minimum Rental Housing, Section 8 Rental and Commercial 
Inspection duties to Fire shift personnel whenever possible. 

m.j. Continue annual smoke detector inspections in businesses and residences, 
recognizing that smoke detectors identify fire hazards as early as possible. 

n. Support Public Safety staff review and implementation of viable Racial Equity Taskforce 
recommendations for policing.  

3). Code Enforcement Objectives. 

a. Continue to be proactive in code enforcement activities.  

a.b.Continue to identify and implement methods designed to better coordinate inspections 
while enforcing land use, property maintenance codes, rental housing, and zoning and 
nuisance ordinance violations citywide with cooperative and coordinated actions by the 
City’s departments. 

454

Item 19.



CFD 1101.XX – Council Goals, Work Program, and Financial Plan for FY2024 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 16 of 38 

  
 

b.c. Continue the full-time Code Enforcement Officer position to enforce parking, property 
maintenance, snow removal, zoning, housing, building, and nuisances. 

c.d. Enforce 48-hour parking laws in response to snow events, citizen complaints, habitual 
violations, and when public safety is compromised. 

d.e.Prioritize code enforcement on issues related to health & safety, property maintenance 
and over-crowding or over-occupancy. 

e.f. Continue rental inspections on a 3-year cycle. 

f.g. Expand building maintenance code inspections and enforcement city-wide, including in 
the College Hill area. 

g.h.Continue to coordinate and consolidate federally subsidized rental and minimum rental 
housing inspection duties.  

h.i. Continue to annually evaluate efficacy of the Landlord Accountability Ordinance. 

i.j. Implement traffic and parking controls based on public input meetings, test cases, 
sound engineering / best practices, and specific structural or safety limitations (street 
width, density, traffic flow and safety). 

j.k. Enforce laws prohibiting illegal parking on private property (front yards and non-
conforming lots). 

k.l. Enforce over-occupancy regulations. 

l.m. Enforce parking restrictions on all streets less than 31’ in width, based on the need for 
public safety vehicle accessibility. 

m. Employ traffic calming devices, when appropriate, to address neighborhood traffic 
concerns. 

n. Consider ordinance changes recommended by the Single Family Conversion task force 
to limit the number of converted single family homes in neighborhoods. 

4). Fire Prevention and Suppression Programs Objectives. 

a. Continue to assign Minimum Rental Housing, Section 8 Rental and Commercial 
Inspection duties to Fire shift personnel whenever possible. 

b. Continue annual smoke detector inspections in businesses and residences, 
recognizing that smoke detectors identify fire hazards as early as possible. 

c. Staff fire stations whenever possible with a combination of career, PSO, POC, PT, 
ambulance and volunteer staff to maintain readiness while reducing staffing costs. 

d. Continue placing firefighting ensembles in police vehicles for faster response times. 

455

Item 19.



CFD 1101.XX – Council Goals, Work Program, and Financial Plan for FY2024 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 17 of 38 

  
 

e. Continue deploying CAFS equipment in select police vehicles to provide faster fire 
suppression response times. 

f. Encourage the Fire Chief to exercise management authority in implementing fire station 
staffing plans, and encourage the Battalion Chiefs to use management discretion in 
determining daily staffing levels using alternative staff. 

5).4).Yard Waste, & Refuse and Transfer Station Objectives. 

a. Determine if yard waste collection programs should be altered or expanded based on 
the efficiency of material collection, customer satisfaction and general cost efficiency. 

b. Evaluate City-operated leaf vacuum collection rates to determine if they are set at levels 
that encourage property owners with small volumes of leaves to compost, mulch or 
utilize ‘City’ container disposal methods; ensure that the rate offers a cost-effective 
option for property owners who must dispose of large volumes of leaves. 

c. Evaluate how the expansion of the hours of operation for the yard waste drop off site 
has impacted revenues and expenditures.  

d. Continue the City’s public relations program to encourage the environmentally safe 
disposal of yard waste. 

e. Continue to review refuse fees, when timely, to ensure that sufficient revenues exist to 
cover all collection costs. 

e.f. Continue to plan for future relocation of transfer station outside of the floodplain 

6).5).Stormwater and Wastewater Objectives. 

a. Review sewer rental fees to ensure that sufficient revenue exists in the next several 
years to pay for EPA mandated treatment plant improvements and other sewer 
projects. 

b. Continue timelyto review of stormwater fees, when timely, to determine sufficiency of 
fees exist to pay for projected storm water costs outlined in the Capital Improvements 
ProgramCIP.   

b.c. Actively enforce Municipal Separate Storm Sewer(MS4) Permit requirements 

7).6).General Legislative Objectives. 

a. Continue using lobbyists to influence municipally-related legislative action. 

(1) Continue to contract with a professional lobbyist to represent City interests to the 
State legislature. 

(2) Continue membership in the Iowa League of Cities to lobby for all Iowa cities.  

456

Item 19.



CFD 1101.XX – Council Goals, Work Program, and Financial Plan for FY2024 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 18 of 38 

  
 

b. Continue to oppose changes to TIF laws that would impair the use of TIF as an 
economic development tool. 

c. Continue to support property tax reform initiatives that eliminate the rollback formula 
that shifts burdens among classes of property. 

b. Develop and annually update policies to communicate the City’s goals and desires to 
the federal and state legislators.   

d.c. Continue to meet with legislators to increase rapport, gain insight into current legislative 
directions, and to apprise them of the City's revenue generation challenges, as well as 
the negative impact of legislation (including unfunded mandates, tax exempt and 
rollbacks).  

e.d.Continue pre- and post-legislative session meetings with area representatives to 
discuss topics of mutual interest. 

8). State Legislative Objectives. 

a. The November 2020 elections resulted in no changes in the political party that will 
control the Iowa House and Iowa Senate, along with the Governor’s office; Republicans 
will maintain “trifecta” control of these three institutions for both the 2022 legislative 
session.  There will be redistricting impacts on Cedar Falls.  

b. State Legislative Concerns.  

(1) Tax Cut/Tax Reform. Expect a wide-ranging discussion of ways to significantly 
lower income taxes in Iowa.  One of those discussion items will be a review of the 
local option sales tax the cities currently collect.  Local governments will need to 
forcefully advocate protecting the continuance of this funding.  

(2) Restrictions on the use of Tax Increment Financing (TIF) and Tax Credits. House 
File 849 was passed in the 2021 session that put 20-year sunsets on all TIF districts 
and may bring more discussion in 2022.  Cedar Falls supports the continuation of 
TIF as the primary tool for communities to promote economic development.  

(3) Restrictions on Local Control of Decision-making. Such legislation runs contrary to 
the intent of the Iowa Constitution’s Home Rule Amendment3.   

(4) Other Concerns. Cedar Falls will continue to oppose any unfunded mandates, 
reserve restraints ($8.10 levy, rollback, 411 pensions, recouping of legal costs 
associated with public record requests, etc.) erosions of Home Rule Amendment  
authority, and elimination of state tax credits used for economic development. 

 
3 The home rule amendments of the Iowa Constitution give cities and counties authority to determine their own local affairs 
and government in a manner which is not inconsistent with state statute, except that home rule power and authority does 
not extend to the authority to levy a tax without the express authorization of the General Assembly.  See 
https://www.legis.iowa.gov/DOCS/LSA/Legis_Guide/2009/LGLSL054.PDF. 

457

Item 19.



CFD 1101.XX – Council Goals, Work Program, and Financial Plan for FY2024 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 19 of 38 

  
 

c. State Legislative Opportunities. 

(1) Housing.  Cedar Falls supports state efforts to provide additional resources to 
communities for housing construction, including more state support of local housing 
trust funds and expansion of the Workforce Housing Tax Credits. An Economic 
Recovery Advisory Board was created in 2020 to make recommendations for 
helping Iowa recover from COVID-19.  Part of their recommendations will include 
several to increase funding for workforce housing tax credits and the State Housing 
Trust Fund.  Passage of these recommendations might provide an opportunity for 
the City of Cedar Falls to secure financial assistance for housing initiatives in the 
city. 

(2) Water and Wastewater Infrastructure. Cedar Falls supports state efforts to provide 
additional funding sources and flexible policies related to water, wastewater, and 
storm water infrastructure; these changes are necessary to meet the demands of 
increasing environmental regulation of cities. Funding for local government water 
and wastewater infrastructure may come through the State’s ARPA, Infrastructure, 
and COVID relief funds.    

(3) University of Northern Iowa. During the 2021 legislative session, the City of Cedar 
Falls provided support for UNI’s legislative priorities, and would expect to do so 
again in 2022.   

9). Federal Legislative Objectives. 

a. Continue to request federal transportation funding support for major street projects, 
including the Greenhill and Highway 58 interchange, including a city funding match. 

b. Request federal funding for EPA mandated treatment plant improvements. 

c. Support CFU in securing federal grants for utility or telecommunication infrastructure 
projects which will benefit citizens through improved reliability, security, efficiency, 
accessibility, or environmental impacts.  

3.4.GOAL #43: Promote Economic Development. Create an environment conducive to economic 
development for the long term financial prosperity and growth of the community. 

A. Supporting Council Policies. 

1). Function as a catalyst to encourage business development/expansion in Cedar Falls. 

a. Continue to support public and private economic development efforts in Cedar Falls 
and the metropolitan area. 

B. Long-Term and Ongoing Objectives 

1). Develop initiatives, when financially feasible, to support the economic development goals 
contained in the city’s Comprehensive Plan (CFD 4101.12). 

458

Item 19.



CFD 1101.XX – Council Goals, Work Program, and Financial Plan for FY2024 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 20 of 38 

  
 

2). Implement a long-term plan for the development of future TIF districts. This plan should 
include ways to acquire land and provide adequate infrastructure utilizing cooperative 
efforts with other groups and agencies. 

3). Continue the systematic and strategic buyout of flood-prone properties to retain viable 
areas based on quality of infrastructure, elevation and contiguousness. 

4). Prepare on a project–by-project basis an in-depth analysis of the long-term economic 
benefits vs. public investment/risk for each private/public cooperative economic 
development venture; the analysis must conclude that the long-term financial benefit 
derived by Cedar Falls taxpayers clearly out-weighs the risk of public financial assets. 

C. FY2023FY2024 Detailed Objectives. 

1). General Economic Development Objectives. 

a. Offer economic development incentives on par with other Iowa cities to remain 
competitive in the site selection process. 

b. Continue to support and develop the city’s economic development website. 

c. Use Continue to use TIF funds to acquire land for development into marketable 
industrial lots. 

d. Use Continue to use TIF funds to provide cash incentives to developers and business 
owners when consistent with City economic development policies. 

e. Explore the establishment of a University Avenue Corridor TIF district.  

f. Review downtown incentives (following adoption of new zoning) to consider the 
increase in assessed value and to incentivize enhanced architectural design or public 
benefits.  

g. Provide Continue to provide property tax abatement (based on current schedules) for 
projects meeting adopted job creation and tax base growth criteria.  

h. Continue to allocate TIF funds for redevelopment projects on College Hill, in Downtown, 
and in northern Cedar Falls.  

i. Continue funding expansionto dedicate funds for expanding of economic development 
marketing efforts.  

j. Continue to eExplore options for city support of expanded day-care options in Cedar 
Falls. 

k. Pursue expanded benefits and incentives to recently-separated military members 
willing to relocate to Cedar Falls, as part of the state’s Home Base Iowa initiative. 

k.l. Explore the establishment of an incentive policy for residential districts.  

459

Item 19.



CFD 1101.XX – Council Goals, Work Program, and Financial Plan for FY2024 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 21 of 38 

  
 

2). Regional Economic Development Organization Objectives. 

a. Continue regional economic development partnership with Grow Cedar Valley. 

b. Monitor economic development cash subsidiesagencies (to CMS, CHP,  and GCV, and 
CFEDC) to determine if the City’s cash subsidies result in services of value to Cedar 
Falls citizens and businesses.  

c. Continue to support the efforts of the Cedar Falls Economic Development Corporation 
in advancing Cedar Falls’ economic interests. 

3). Regional Tourism Objectives. 

a. Continue to maintain a dedicated Cedar Falls Visitors & Tourism Bureau. 

b. Continue to coordinate marketing and programming efforts between UNI, Cedar Falls 
and Waterloo Visitors and Tourism Bureaus for all Metro tourist events. 

4). Comprehensive Planning, Engineering and Building Objectives. 

a. Develop a grading ordinance for all new and existing developments. 

b. Continue to ioImplement the \City’s Comprehensive Plan (CFD 4101.12) with emphasis 
on: 

(1) Design standards which protect urban watersheds by encouraging developers to 
utilize natural methods of storm water control rather than traditional underground 
storm water collection and disposal systems. 

(2) Clear standards for growth, streets, street connectivity and walkability. 

(3) Low-maintenance landscaping in the city right-of-way, when cost-effective. 

(4) Trails and on-road accommodation of bicyclists, when possible. 

(5) Traffic calming devices and design approaches to address neighborhood traffic 
concerns, when practical. 

(6) Revise the Major Thoroughfare Plan. 

(6)(7)Evaluate one-way streets and traffic flow 

5). Zoning Ordinance Economic Development Objectives. 

a. Support the development of a comprehensive new Zoning Ordinance to updatereplace 
the Zoning Ordinance first adopted in 1970.  

b.a.Consider new zoning and traffic control regulations to control density and parking 
problems by reducing the number of multiple family and duplex conversions. 

460

Item 19.



CFD 1101.XX – Council Goals, Work Program, and Financial Plan for FY2024 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 22 of 38 

  
 

c.b. Consider changes to zoning regulations to limit the conversion of single-family 
properties to rental uses, to protect neighborhood stability and character. 

d.c. Consider changes to zoning regulations, policies and land use plans to restrict 
development of non-profit uses on prime commercial sites along arterial streets. 

e.d.Consider developing a Zoning Ordinance (and Subdivision Ordinance) to 
accommodate features that encourage mixed uses, variable building setbacks, 
walkability, sustainability and complete street concepts. 

f. Develop Consider developing, as a part of the new Zoning Ordinance, a new zoning 
map which includes pre-zoned areas. 

g.e.Support the pre-zoning of select properties for residential development and shorten the 
development timeline by identifying neighborhood concerns and responding with 
developmental limitations. 

h.f. Annex additional lands into the city (if requested by property owners) to support 
community growth and development consistent with the Comprehensive Plan (CFD 
4101.12). 

6). Affordable Housing Development Objectives. 

a. Continue to seek ways in to provide affordable housing options to residents by: 

(1) Maximizing Section 8 funds available to provide as many vouchers as possible, 
given HUD guidance. 

(2) Incentivizing improvements in Section 8 housing (with tools such as Community 
Development Block Grant rental rehabilitation program). 

(3) Revising zoning codes to encourage a variety of housing types in every 
neighborhood, e.g., allow for Habitat for Humanity builds. 

(4) Encouraging the Housing Commission to evaluate initiatives to balance 
investments in market rate and low-income housing (e.g., tax abatements, 
forgivable loans, gap payments on rent or mortgage, housing trust fund). 

b. Review City construction standards to identify possible changes which can promote the 
construction of affordable housing. 

c. Identify existing older homes which can provide a market to meet affordable housing 
demand.  

d. Target potential developers with Requests for Proposals for affordable housing 
development, if federal or state grants can be secured.  

e. Partner with Habitat for Humanity to build/rehabilitate homes on city-owned lots.  

461

Item 19.



CFD 1101.XX – Council Goals, Work Program, and Financial Plan for FY2024 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 23 of 38 

  
 

f. Consider the results of the Complete a Housing Needs Assessment, focusing on how 
to provide housing variety to promote affordable housing options for all. 

g. Create educational messaging and outreach for landlords and citizens to emphasize 
the importance of healthy housing for all, along with destigmatizing affordable housing 
options such as Section 8 and Habitat for Humanity builds. 

h. Create a resource database of all federal, state and local programs that can be used to 
foster more homeownership among low- and moderate- income families and 
individuals. 

i. Create an ongoing educational program for low- and moderate-income families to 
access available homeownership assistance programs. 

j. Implement diversity, inclusion and affordability considerations and evaluation in all new 
housing development plans. 

k. Expand Continue the forgivable loan program for conversion of rental properties to 
owner-occupied, expanded service area, and more qualifying expenses. 

7). Commercial and Office Economic Development Objectives. 

a. Support the private development of commercial (retail & wholesale), professional office 
and industrial expansions to improve the City’s residential to commercial/industrial land 
use mix from an 80/20 assessed value split to a 50/50 assessed value split. 

b. Consider Implement diagonal on-street parking within neighborhoods where 
structurally feasible and where parking deficiencies can be solved with this approach. 

c. Continue development of the city-owned properties along the relocated Highway 20 
corridor and establish a new urban renewal area if appropriate. 

d. Study the future use, ownership and corporate jurisdiction of land along the Highway 
20 corridor, including cooperative arrangements with the City of Hudson if petitioned by 
property owners for annexation. 

8). College Hill Economic Development Objectives. 

a. Carry out the recommendations of the College Hill Parking Study (CFD 1602.19) 

b. Continue to enact the College Hill Urban Revitalization Plan (CFD 1852.12). 

9). Northern Cedar Falls Economic Development Objectives. 

a. Continue to enact the recommendations of the Northern Cedar Falls Visioning 
Committee Report (CFD 4108.08). 

b.a.Continue to support the development of commercial uses in the northeast corner of 
Lone Tree Road/Center Street and at the Lone Tree Road interchange. 

462

Item 19.



CFD 1101.XX – Council Goals, Work Program, and Financial Plan for FY2024 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 24 of 38 

  
 

c.b. Continue to promote the development of commercial growth along Center Street 
through streetscaping and beautification efforts in the ROW. 

10).Downtown Area Economic Development Objectives. 

a. Consider adopting an Urban Revitalization District in the Downtown area, following the 
adoption of new zoning ordinance.  

b. Explore all options to building a downtown parking structure, in conjunction with a 
feasibility study and continual re-evaluation of paid parking options. 

b. Plan for site development of the MercyOne – Cedar Falls Medical Center property using 
the Health Trust Fund. 

11).Industrial Economic Development Objectives. 

a. Create a new urban renewal area by acquiring additional land in areas that are 
attractive to the private sector for industrial development yet can be efficiently 
developed at a low public cost. 

b. Reserve TIF increment capacity to pay off debt incurred by the City/IDOT cooperative 
construction of US 58 interchanges. 

c. Continue ing to aggressively repay  to repay Industrial Park TIF debt owed to the City 
debt service, economic development and capital project funds. 

12).MercyOne – Cedar Falls Hospital Economic Development Objectives. 

a. Plan for site development using current Health Trust Fund monies.  

b. Organize a staff/council committee to determine options and best uses for the original 
Sartori Hospital site once a new hospital is constructed elsewhere. 

13).12).Flood Control, Storm Water, Sanitary Sewer and Water Improvement Objectives. 

a. Complete priority wastewater treatment system improvements: 

b.a.Inflow and Infiltration Reduction Program: Carry out separation of sanitary sewer and 
stormwater sewer lines from the footing drains when reconstructing streets. 

c.b. Extend sanitary sewer to areas that are unserved and remain on septic systems (i.e. 
South Main Street). 

14).13).Street Improvement Objectives. 

a. Develop cooperative agreements with State Agencies to improve the following streets 
using Road Use Tax (RUT), Local Option Sales Tax (LOST), and General Obligation 
(GO) bonds, if necessary: 

463

Item 19.



CFD 1101.XX – Council Goals, Work Program, and Financial Plan for FY2024 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 25 of 38 

  
 

(1) Main Street Reconstruction – Use LOST, RUT, Stormwater, ARPA, and GO bonds 
to complete this project for construction 2023-2025. 

(2) Greenhill Road/Highway 58Cedar Heights Drive – Use TIF funding as City match 
to Iowa Department of Transportation’s project in FY2027.Use MPO and State 
safety grants to help fund this project. The City’s match will come from TIF 
fundsLOST, RUT, and GO bonds for construction in 20282020-2023. 

(3) West 23rd Street Improvements – Use LOST, Assessment, and GO bonds to 
complete this project in FY2024. 

(4) Ridgeway & 58 – Use TIF funding as City match to Iowa Department of 
Transportation’s project in FY2023FY2024-FY20254.  

(5)  Prairie Parkway & Viking Road Intersection Improvements – Use TIF, LOST, and 
RUT for construction in FY2024-2025. 

(4)(6)Northern Cedar Heights Area – Use LOST and SCF to complete this project 

b. Explore and establish agreements with developers to complete the connection of the 
following streets: 

(1) Arbors Drive -- Aldrich Elementary to Greenhill Road 

(2) Ashworth Drive – Prairie Winds to Hudson Road 

(3) Ashworth Drive – Connection to Arbor Drive 

(4) Ironwood Drive – Connection to Greenhill Road 

(5) West 27th Street Improvements – Use LOST, RUT, and GO bonds to complete this 
project in FY20221-20243. 

c. Continue to develop the plans for the reconstruction of Union Road from 27th Street to 
University Avenue - Use LOST and RUT funds to complete this project.  Timing of 
project dependent on receipt of grant funding sources. 

15).14).Miscellaneous Infrastructure Repairs. 

a. Slope Repairs. Continue to develop plans to address significant slope failure issues. 
Use storm water funds to complete these projects. 

4.5.GOAL #54: Enhance Community Quality of Life. Preserve the community’s physical, human, 
and aesthetic assets by assuring that Quality of Life services are available for leisure, educational, 
cultural and personal enrichment of residents. 

A. Supporting Council Policies.  

1). Actively support the development of cultural, educational, recreational, and natural 

464

Item 19.



CFD 1101.XX – Council Goals, Work Program, and Financial Plan for FY2024 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 26 of 38 

  
 

features, which make Cedar Falls distinctive. 

2). Endorse planned community growth, which protects the unique, natural, and historic 
features of Cedar Falls. 

2).3).Continue evaluating and implementing pedestrian safety measures. 

B. Long-Term and Ongoing Objectives. 

1). Continue to review and evaluate the ways in which the City can enhance racial and cultural 
diversity and inclusion in Cedar Falls. 

2). Update the Park Master Plan (CFD 8601.06) to account for city growth, changing needs 
and desires of the public, and updating of equipment and facilities. 

1).3). 

C. CY2023FY2024 Detailed Objectives. 

1). Continue planning for Hearst Center expansion/relocation. 

2). Continue to use the Recreation & Fitness Center, Operations & Facilities Needs 
Assessment (CFD 8101.18) to determine the viability of expansion. 

3). Implement, when financially feasible, an enhanced riverfront as a visitor attraction 
consistent with the Northern Cedar Falls Development Master Plan (CFD 4102). 

4). Coordinate with the Cedar Falls Community School District CFCSD to purchase land for 
future parks in developing areas, as appropriate when possible.  

5). Assist in the solicitation of grants and development of the Cedar River including dam safety 
improvements, riverbank improvements, and recreational features. 

6).1).Update the Park Master Plan (CFD 8601.06) to account for city growth, changing needs 
and desires of the public, and updating of equipment and facilities. 

7).6).Continue to implement portions of the Park Master Plan (CFD 8601.06) for the Big Woods 
Lake, Gateway Park and Cedar City sites. 

8).7).Improve the Big Woods Campground (cabins, playground, and landscaping) as funding 
becomes available and as floodplain development ordinances allow. 

9).8).Develop an annual street right-of-way beautification, wayfinding signage, bike network 
signage, and city entrance signage & monument program using hotel/motel taxes revenues. 

10).9).Consider recommendations from City staff when alternative roadway designs are 
appropriate based on safety, roadway efficiency and financially feasible; typically, these 
opportunities arise when a street is scheduled for resurfacing or reconstruction allowing the 
City to address issues involving landscaping, pedestrian movements, transit, bike and 

465

Item 19.



CFD 1101.XX – Council Goals, Work Program, and Financial Plan for FY2024 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 27 of 38 

  
 

vehicular traffic. 

11).10).Protect areas identified in the Cedar Falls Environmentally Sensitive Lands Survey 
(CFD 4551.07) as city finances allow. 

12).11).Identify trails most appropriate for winter snow removal and inform the public via an 
annually-published Trail and Bus Bench Snow Removal Map (CFD 4403). 

13).12).Develop a Great American Rail Trail Connection Plan to identify possible 
improvements, wayfinding, and other amenities along the Cedar Falls portion of this cross-
country route 

14).13).Continue collaboration with CFCSD on the development of plans for a new indoor 
community pool, co-located with the new Cedar Falls High School. 

15).14).Encourage private development for an official Independence Day fireworks display.  

16).15).Continue working with private property owners to remove trees impacted by emerald 
ash borer infestation. 

16).Design and developImplement facility improvements to Seerley Park. 

17).Design and develop facility improvements to various City  XXXXXXXX Parks. 

18).Have a work-session to develop an ordinance to address political campaigning (federal, 
state and local) within the city’s parks. 

19).18).Continue pursuit of sister city partnerships and engagement, including in-person visits 
as part of major Iowa delegations. 

20).19).Update Implement the Bike Network Plan as funding and construction allows. 

20).Continue evaluating and implementing pedestrian safety measures. 

21).Consider potential for new quality of life projects 

a. Eco Loop 

b. Campground/RV Park in Northern Cedar Falls 

c. Trail Connections (in former railroad right-of-way, if abandonedbehind CFU, contingent 
upon railroad grant)  

d. Pickleball Courts 

e. Birdsall Park Renovations 

f. Historic Reconnaissance Survey of Overman Park Neighborhood 

22).Consider funding for quality of life projects with other entities 

466

Item 19.



CFD 1101.XX – Council Goals, Work Program, and Financial Plan for FY2024 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 28 of 38 

  
 

a. Historical Society 

b. UNI Dome Renovations 

c. Additional ask for High School Pool 

a.d.Cedar Valley Placemaking Project (bridge lighting) 

5. GOAL #5: Foster Organizational Excellence. Select, train, motivate and retain highly-qualified 
employees who represent the city in a professional manner. 

A. Supporting Policies. 

1). Provide an Ensure that employee wages and benefits schedule that is are competitive with 
other municipalities in the state of Iowa and private enterprise in the metro area. 

2). Maintain clear lines and methods of communication between elected officials and city staff. 

3). Treat employees with respect and expect that they, in turn, will treat citizens with respect. 

4). Encourage and management and supervisory employees to be creative and innovative in 
the delivery of city services. 

5). Promote continuous quality improvement in all city government operations. 

B. Long-Term and Ongoing Objectives. 

1). Continue to monitor the ability to attract and retain quality staff.  

2). Continue to support the Performance Based Pay (Merit Pay) Policy (CFD 2154) to reward 
superior staff performance and encourage the retention of high performers.  

3). Expand cross-training programs to improve service without increasing staffing. 

4). Seek methods to reduce employee health insurance costs by altering benefits, seeking 
greater financial contribution from employees and modify methods of employee health 
service delivery. 

C. FY2023 Detailed Objectives. 

1). Conduct aReview results and consider policy changes from the workforce climate 
assessment / employee satisfaction survey to identify areas for improvementimprove in 
human resources management and employee relations. 

2). Continue to evaluate whether to fill an opening or proposed newly created position.  

3). Explore restructuring, merging, or eliminating unnecessary positions as they become 
vacant. 

4). Develop and maintain maintainingMaintain multi-year staffing and succession plans. 

467

Item 19.



CFD 1101.XX – Council Goals, Work Program, and Financial Plan for FY2024 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 29 of 38 

  
 

5). Implement and maintain updates to the city’s Comprehensive Pay Plan (CFD 2502.18). 

6). Continue to fund the City’s employee tuition educational assistance program (CFD 2254).  

7). Encourage employees to use the City’s wellness program (CFD 2257) and continue to offer 
incentives for participation.  

 Update the staffing plan to address employment attrition, retirements and the use of PT, 
PSOs, POCs, Police Reservists, volunteers or other cross-training programs to respond to 
long-term staffing needs. 

8). Contract with a third-party executive review consultant to facilitate the annual performance 
review of the City Administrator.  

6. FY2023 Short Term Financial Plan. 

A. FY2023 Budget Policies. 

1). Limit tax increases to no more than the rate of inflation on residential properties for controllable 
costs. 

2). City staff members are directed to certify the maximum amount of legally incurred TIF debt annually 
by December 1st for all completed City and CFU construction work within the TIF Districts to better 
position the City and CFU financially. Continue to transfer TIF release funds to economic 
development fund to cash-flow economic development projects.   

3). Use State aid (including backfill if provided) only to fund one-time capital expenditures or non-
reoccurring expenses, rather than for operating expenses. 

4). Requests for aid from any group will only be considered once annually during the annual budget 
process. Mid-year requests will be deferred to the next fiscal year unless they are emergency in 
nature. Financial aid will only be provided if there is not financial hardship on City offered essential 
services and the services proposed are not duplicated. 

5). Applications for City funding support from UNI will only be accepted from the Vice President of 
Administration and Finance once annually. This process ensures that all UNI projects or programs 
seeking City financial aid have been approved by UNI management and prioritized. 

6). All outside agencies seeking City financial support shall submit formal applications for review by a 
committee of staff members with recommendations forwarded to the Mayor and City Council; 
considerations for approval shall include timely reporting, performance, public benefit, funding 
options and service priority. 

7). Escrow Fund Policies. 

a. The City will escrow funds annually to pay accrued liabilities.  

b. The City will address annually these commitments by budgeting and depositing in a restricted 
account funds to pay these liabilities when they occur.  

468

Item 19.



CFD 1101.XX – Council Goals, Work Program, and Financial Plan for FY2024 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 30 of 38 

  
 

c. The City will not un-fund liabilities in escrow accounts; these include severance, payroll, liability 
insurance, vehicle replacement, data processing, workmen's compensation, long-term disability 
and all pensions. 

8). Continue to assess user fees for specific City services at rates approved by Council. 

9). Explore the use of State authorized tax levies for statutory services, if the General Fund 
experiences financial limitations. 

10).The Cedar Falls Health Trust Fund shall only budget expenditure of interest income generated by 
the fund minus an interest income contribution into the fund’s principal equal to the rate of inflation 
in health care. Principal should only be used in negotiating a development agreement for a new 
hospital or a health care provider.  

11).Interest income generated from the 411 Pension reserve fund shall be used to pay the required 
City contribution to annual 411 expenses. No portion of the principal shall be used for operating 
purposes. 

12).Road Use taxes shall only be deposited in the Street Construction fund with their use limited to 
street operations and maintenance purposes. 

13).Consider adding General Fund financial support for annual maintenance expenses to better 
landscape public roadways. 

14).Maintain capital and maintenance reserve accounts generated from user fees set aside to pay for 
future capital repairs or facility replacement of benefit to the users contributing (examples include 
the Recreation Center, Aquatic Center, Hearst Center, Beach House, Big Woods Campground 
and golf courses). 

15).The CFU transfer made to the City in lieu of property taxes shall be deposited in the General Fund 
to off-set the cost of supplying City services. Transfer funds shall also be set aside in a capital 
account to finance various one-time capital projects. 

16).Maintain liability, work compensation and health insurance reserves as required by law or policy 
to support the City’s self-insurance programs. 

17).Evaluate annually the ability of the Library Board to utilize Community Foundation Trust accounts 
to support select programs, operations and capital needs. 

18).TIF-qualified SSMID funds collected from Downtown and College Hill SSMID District will be 
allocated to Community Main Street and College Hill Partnership rather than for City TIF debt 
payments. 

19).Coordinate and centralize all requests for grants, including the Black Hawk County Gaming 
Association. 

B. FY2023 Budget Contingency Policies. 

1). Prioritize all city services if budget reductions are required; this will allow for the most cost effective 

469

Item 19.



CFD 1101.XX – Council Goals, Work Program, and Financial Plan for FY2024 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 31 of 38 

  
 

use of Federal Aid to pay eligible ‘essential’ service operating expenses as, if the operating 
expenses are not reoccurring or if more efficient staffing can be achieved.  

2). Reduce City financial aid to outside agencies if funding shortfalls risk damaging the provision of 
essential services; annually notify agencies if funding reductions are anticipated for the next fiscal 
year. 

C. FY2023 Cash Reserves Policy. 

1). 1. The City will maintain an unreserved balance at year-end at a level determined by Council to 
meet cash flow requirements, emergency needs, and bond rating criteria.  
 

 Fund Type  Percent Minimum  Absolute Minimum 

 General Fund  15-25%4  Not specified 

 Refuse Fund  20-30%  $500,000 

 Sewer Fund  65-75%  $1,500,000 

 Street Fund  20-30%  $1,000,000 

 Storm Water Fund  10-20%  $200,000 

 Emergency Reserve 
Fund 

 N/A  $1,500,000 - 
$2,000,000 

  

D. FY2023 Revenues Policy. 

1). Description. The revenue projection process starts with estimates submitted by the departments 
for their specific areas. Finance reviews those estimates and makes informed judgments on all 
revenues City-wide. Prior year’s actual and current year-to-date amounts are used to project both 
the current year and next year's revenues. Information received from the State, County, and Iowa 
League of Cities is utilized to project revenue trends and anticipated amounts. 

2). Approval. Finance will use conservative interest rate projections, current balances and interest 
accrual information, projects interest earnings. The Mayor and City Administrator will review 
revenues, expenditures and ending fund balances to determine if any revenue adjustments need 
to be made. 

 
4 The City Council established Resolution 9054 that the General Fund balance be maintained between 15 and 25% and 
preferably at the 20-25% level, allowing for the seasonal cash flows. Work towards closer to 25%. 

470

Item 19.



CFD 1101.XX – Council Goals, Work Program, and Financial Plan for FY2024 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 32 of 38 

  
 

3). Revenue Source Policies.  

a. Property Taxes. The budget of the City of Cedar Falls shall be drawn so that the general tax levy 
does not exceed limits established by State law. 

b. Debt Service Levy. Taxes shall be levied each year under the Debt Service Levy in the amount 
equal to the general obligation principal and interest due in that same year, minus the portion paid 
by the enterprise funds and CFU. 

c. Tort Liability Levy. The City may levy for the expected costs of property and liability insurance 
policies and estimated claims losses held by the City. 

d. Employee Benefits Levy. The City's share of contributions to police and fire pension and retirement 
systems, at rates determined by the State of Iowa, for currently employed sworn officers. The City’s 
share of contributions for employee benefits budgeted under the General Fund only if the general 
tax levy is at the $8.10 maximum. Tax revenues under the employee benefits levy will be receipted 
into the Trust and Agency Fund and then transferred into the General Fund. 

e. Emergency Management Levy. Levy for all dispatch, 911 and emergency operation costs assigned 
to the City of Cedar Falls. 

f. Transit Levy. Taxes levied under the transit levy shall not exceed the 95-cent limit established by 
State law. Transit levy tax revenues will be receipted into the General Fund. 

g. Band Levy. Taxes levied under the Band Levy shall not exceed the 13.5-cent limit established by 
State law. Tax revenues from the band levy will be receipted into the General Fund. 

h. Library Levy. Taxes levied under the library levy shall not exceed the 27-cent limit established by 
state law. Tax revenues from the library levy will be used to  support the library. Approximately 
50% of the levy will be used for new materials and services and approximately 50% will be used 
to lower general fund support to the library. 

i. Sales Tax. The City collects an additional 1% in local option sales tax. The revenues and 
expenditures under this program are recorded in a separate fund. 

j. Hotel/Motel Tax. The City currently has a 7% hotel/motel tax with 50% of the income generated by 
the imposition of the tax being devoted to the Visitors and Tourism Division. The other 50% is 
devoted to programs related to parks, lakes, trails, and recreational/cultural facilities. 

k. Fees and Charges. The City will establish fees and charges, in accordance with revenue bond 
requirements or for covering all or part of the related costs of providing the services. The City will 
review fees and charges, at a minimum, on a biannual basis.  

l. Investments. The City will invest 100% of idle funds and will obtain the best possible return on all 
cash investments within the limits of the State law. 

m. Intergovernmental Revenue. Revenues from local, State and Federal governments will be used 
according to the restrictions or intent placed on each. 

471

Item 19.



CFD 1101.XX – Council Goals, Work Program, and Financial Plan for FY2024 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 33 of 38 

  
 

n. Additional Revenue Sources. The City will continue searching for additional revenues to maintain 
a balanced budget. 

E. FY2023 Expenditures Policies. 

1). Current Service Level: Funding will be prioritized to maintain current service levels. 

2). Cost Effective Programs: Technology and capital investment programs will be leveraged to reduce 
operating expenses whenever cost-effective. 

3). Infrastructures and Equipment: The City will maintain the scheduled level of maintenance and 
replacement for City infrastructure and equipment. 

4). Local Option Sales Tax: 100% of LOST proceeds will be spent on street repair in accordance with 
the stipulations set by the voters and City Council resolution5.  

5). Reductions: The City will attempt to avoid service reductions when balancing the budget. First 
consideration will be given to alternatives which avoid employee layoffs, resist cuts in service, and 
establish user fees. Parameters for downsizing shall ensure that (1) no essential service be 
eliminated; (2) service with high public visibility and exposure remain intact, and (3) reductions will 
first be made in internal functions. 

F. FY2023 Long Term Debt Policies. 

1). Purpose of Debt: Debt will be used to fund the design, inspection and construction of capital 
improvement projects, rather than for annual operating expenses. 

2). Debt Limit: The total GO debt will not exceed 5% of total assessed real property value.  

3). Debt Issuance: New debt issuance shall not exceed a replacement debt level. Existing debt should 
be refinanced to secure the lowest possible interest costs, whenever possible. 

4). Self-Financing: Self-financing or cash (where allowed) will be used to fund one-time projects if 
excess cash reserves exist. 

G. FY2023 Capital Improvements Program Policies. 

1). Description. The Capital Improvements Program (CIP) is a planning document and does not 
authorize or fund projects. The projects listed in the CIP are summarized in the capital projects 
program.  

2). Approvals. The CIP is prepared by the Finance & Business Operations Department for review by 
the Department Directors, City Administrator, Mayor, and Planning and Zoning Commission; the 

 
5 City Council Resolution 15,596 provides that, “Zero percent (0%) of said local sales and services tax is to be used for 
property tax relief. One hundred percent (100%) of the revenue generated in the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa during each 
fiscal year from said local sales and services tax is to be allocated for reconstruction, repair or replacement of existing 
streets, curbs, structures, storm sewers and sanitary sewers as they relate to streets within the corporate limits of the City 
of Cedar Falls, Iowa and not as replacement funds for the present funding levels, as authorized by the City Council of the 
City of Cedar Falls, Iowa. 

472

Item 19.



CFD 1101.XX – Council Goals, Work Program, and Financial Plan for FY2024 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 34 of 38 

  
 

CIP is then submitted to the City Council for approval.  

3). The City will make all capital improvements in accordance with the adopted CIP. The City will 
develop and annually update a multi-year plan for capital improvements.  

4). The City will enact an annual capital budget based on the multi-year capital improvement plan. 
Future capital expenditures necessitated by changes in population, changes in real estate 
development, or changes in economic base will be calculated and included in capital budget 
projections. 

5). The City will coordinate development of the capital improvement budget with development of the 
operating budget. Future operating costs associated with new capital improvement will be 
projected and included in operating budget forecasts.  

6). The City will use intergovernmental assistance to finance only those capital improvements 
consistent with the CIP and City priorities and where operating and maintenance costs have been 
included in operating budget forecasts. 

7). The City will maintain all assets at a level adequate to protect the City's capital investment and to 
minimize future maintenance and replacement costs. 

8). The City will project its equipment replacement and maintenance needs for the next several years 
and will update this projection each year in order to implement a maintenance and replacement 
schedule. 

9). The City will not finance equipment or projects with a projected life span less than a bond’s maturity 
through the sale of GO bonds. 

10).The City will not finance ongoing operating expenses with GO or revenue bonds. 

11).The CIP will incorporate the least costly financing method for all new projects.  

12).The City will maintain a long-term financial plan to address inadequacies in “City managed” 
infrastructure in unserved areas of the City and progressively add them to the CIP when cost 
effective (if consistent with long-range growth plans). 

13).The CIP will incorporate a debt management strategy emphasizing the protection of at least 25-
30% of the City's debt capacity.  

14).The City will develop a plan addressing competing projects, priorities and timing to meet this 
objective jointly by soliciting input from the Planning & Zoning Commission to ensure that projects 
are timely, unduplicated and supportive of long-range plans. 

15).The issuance of new debt shall not exceed a replacement debt level, which typically ranges from 
$3.0 - $4.0 million dollars every other year; CFU uses the City’s bank qualified financing capacity 
in off bond sale years. 

a. In FY23, the City will budget for a $3.0 - $4 million dollar GO bond sale. 

473

Item 19.



CFD 1101.XX – Council Goals, Work Program, and Financial Plan for FY2024 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 35 of 38 

  
 

b. The City will use emergency reserve funds for projects identified in the CIP, with a balance of $1.5-
2 million for emergencies. 

16).The City will incorporate when timely, properly planned, safely engineered and financially feasible 
and design appropriate street and growth concepts in the planning and design of all capital 
projects. 

17).The city will seek minimum private donation match of 25% of/for recreation & quality of life projects.  
Funds shall be escrowed or an agreement with the City Council needs to be executed prior to the 
project bid letting.  

18).FY23 Capital Improvements Program Approved Projects: 

a. General Obligation (GO) Bonds - $12.43 Million Total 

(1) Cameras ($.37 million) 

(2) Financial System ($.70 million) 

(3) Gateway Parking Lot ($.20 million) 

(4) Hearst Center Expansion ($.70 million) 

(5) Cedar River Recreation Improvements ($.53 million) 

(6) High School Pool (.70 million) 

(7) Bridge & Culvert Replacements ($.11 million) 

(8) Infrastructure oversizing ($.30 million) 

(9) Sidewalks/Trails ($1.60 million) 

(10)Slope Repair ($.28 million) 

(11)Storm Sewer Extension ($.48 million) 

(12)Annual Street Repair Program ($.36 million) 

(13)Aldrich Elementary School Connections ($1.34) 

(14)Cedar Heights Drive reconstruction ($1.22 million) 

(15)Greenhill Road & South Main intersection improvements ($.55) 

(16)Main Street Reconstruction ($1.65 million) 

(17)West 1st Street ($.15 million) 

(18)West 22nd Street ($.06 million) 

474

Item 19.



CFD 1101.XX – Council Goals, Work Program, and Financial Plan for FY2024 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 36 of 38 

  
 

(19)West 23rd Street ($.05 million) 

(20)West 27th Street ($.10 million) 

(21)Pedestrian Bridge Replacement ($.08 million) 

(22)Fire bunker gear, thermal imaging cameras, and SCBA ($0.30 million) 

(23)Issuance expenses ($0.60 million) 

b. Tax-Increment Financing (TIF) 

(1) Annual TIF Rebates 

(2) Downtown Streetscape 

(3) Hwy 58 and Greenhill Road Intersection 

(4) Main Street 

(5) Viking Road Reconstruction 

(6) Industrial Park Expansion 

(7) Gibson Property Development 

(8) Ridgeway Avenue bridge replacement 

(9) Ridgeway Avenue Reconstruction 

(10)Comprehensive Plan & Zoning ordinance updates 

(11)Land Acquisition 

(12)Street and sewer infrastructure improvements 

(13)Olive Street Box Culverts 

(14)Landscaping, alleys, brick replacement, wayfinding signage, parking, lot improvements, & utility 
improvements associated with streetscape improvements in Downtown and College Hill. 

c. Road Use Taxes (Street Construction Fund) 

(1) Street equipment 

(2) Parking improvements 

(3) Permeable Alley program 

(4) Signalized intersection upgrades 

475

Item 19.



CFD 1101.XX – Council Goals, Work Program, and Financial Plan for FY2024 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 37 of 38 

  
 

(5) Intersection improvements 

(6) Traffic planning studies 

(7) Bridges 

(8) Annual Street Repair program 

(9) Aldrich School Connections 

(10)Cedar Heights Drive 

(11)Greenhill Road intersection improvements 

(12)Main Street 

(13)Union Road 

(14)West 12th  

(15)West 22nd  

(16)West 27th  

d. Refuse Fund 

(1) Refuse trucks & equipment 

(2) Security cameras 

(3) Compaction equipment 

e. Emergency Fund  

(1) Cedar River recreational improvements ( $1.0 million) 

(2) Center Street improvements ($.8 million) 

(3) School Administration site ($.7 million) 

f. Sewer Fund 

(1) Waste Water Treatment Plant 

(2) Nutrient Removal/Facility Plan 

(3) Slipline sewers 

(4) I&I reduction 

(5) Oak Park sewer replacement 

476

Item 19.



CFD 1101.XX – Council Goals, Work Program, and Financial Plan for FY2024 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 38 of 38 

  
 

(6) West 1st Street 

(7) West 27th Street 

(8) Sewer equipment 

(9) Infrastructure oversizing 

(10)Sewer collection study 

(11)Lift station pump repairs 

(12)Annual Street Repair program 

(13)6. Sanitary sewer extensions 

477

Item 19.



CFD 1101.XX – Council Goals, Work Program, and Financial Plan for FY2024 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 1 of 24 

  
 

CFD 1101: Council Goals, Work Program, and Financial Plan for FY2024 
Adopted January 3, 2023 by the Cedar Falls City Council 

 

MISSION OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS: 

Continuously improve the safety and desirability of Cedar Falls through efficient delivery of public 
services, with open communication between Citizens, Council, Mayor, and City Staff.   

SHORT TERM FINANCIAL PLAN: 

A. FY2024 Budget Policies. 

1). Limit tax increases to no more than the rate of inflation on residential properties for 
controllable costs. 

2). City staff members are directed to certify the maximum amount of legally incurred TIF debt 
annually by December 1st for all completed City and CFU construction work within the TIF 
Districts to better position the City and CFU financially. Continue to transfer TIF release 
funds to economic development fund to cash-flow economic development projects.   

3). Use State aid (including backfill if provided) only to fund one-time capital expenditures or 
non-reoccurring expenses, rather than for operating expenses. 

4). Requests for aid from any group will only be considered once annually during the annual 
budget process. Mid-year requests will be deferred to the next fiscal year unless they are 
emergency in nature. Financial aid will only be provided if there is not financial hardship on 
City offered essential services and the services proposed are not duplicated. 

5). Applications for City funding support from UNI will only be accepted from the Vice President 
of Administration and Finance once annually. This process ensures that all UNI projects or 
programs seeking City financial aid have been approved by UNI management and 
prioritized. 

6). All outside agencies seeking City financial support shall submit formal applications for 
review by a committee of staff members with recommendations forwarded to the Mayor 
and City Council; considerations for approval shall include timely reporting, performance, 
public benefit, funding options and service priority. 

7). Escrow Fund Policies. 

a. The City will escrow funds annually to pay accrued liabilities.  

b. The City will address annually these commitments by budgeting and depositing in a 
restricted account funds to pay these liabilities when they occur.  

c. The City will not un-fund liabilities in escrow accounts; these include severance, payroll, 
liability insurance, vehicle replacement, data processing, workmen's compensation, 
long-term disability, and all pensions. 

478

Item 19.



CFD 1101.XX – Council Goals, Work Program, and Financial Plan for FY2024 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 2 of 24 

  
 

8). Continue to assess user fees for specific City services at rates approved by Council. 

9). Explore the use of State authorized tax levies for statutory services, if the General Fund 
experiences financial limitations. 

10).The Cedar Falls Health Trust Fund shall only budget expenditure of interest income 
generated by the fund minus an interest income contribution into the fund’s principal equal 
to the rate of inflation in health care. Principal should only be used in negotiating a 
development agreement for a new hospital or a health care provider.  

11).Interest income generated from the 411 Pension reserve fund shall be used to pay the 
required City contribution to annual 411 expenses. No portion of the principal shall be used 
for operating purposes. 

12).Road Use taxes shall only be deposited in the Street Construction fund with their use 
limited to street operations and maintenance purposes. 

13).Consider adding General Fund financial support for annual maintenance expenses to 
better landscape public roadways. 

14).Maintain capital and maintenance reserve accounts generated from user fees set aside to 
pay for future capital repairs or facility replacement of benefit to the users contributing 
(examples include the Recreation Center, Aquatic Center, Hearst Center, Beach House, 
Big Woods Campground, and golf courses). 

15).The CFU transfer made to the City in lieu of property taxes shall be deposited in the 
General Fund to off-set the cost of supplying City services. Transfer funds shall also be set 
aside in a capital account to finance various one-time capital projects. 

16).Maintain liability, work compensation and health insurance reserves as required by law or 
policy to support the City’s self-insurance programs. 

17).Evaluate annually the ability of the Library Board to utilize Community Foundation Trust 
accounts to support select programs, operations and capital needs. 

18).TIF-qualified SSMID funds collected from Downtown and College Hill SSMID District will 
be allocated to Community Main Street and College Hill Partnership rather than for City TIF 
debt payments. 

19).Coordinate and centralize all requests for grants, including the Black Hawk County Gaming 
Association. 

B. FY2024 Budget Contingency Policies. 

1). Prioritize all city services if budget reductions are required; this will allow for the most cost-
effective use of Federal Aid to pay eligible ‘essential’ service operating expenses as, if the 
operating expenses are not reoccurring or if more efficient staffing can be achieved.  

2). Reduce City financial aid to outside agencies if funding shortfalls risk damaging the 

479

Item 19.



CFD 1101.XX – Council Goals, Work Program, and Financial Plan for FY2024 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 3 of 24 

  
 

provision of essential services; annually notify agencies if funding reductions are 
anticipated for the next fiscal year. 

C. FY2024 Cash Reserves Policy. 

1). 1.The City will maintain an unreserved balance at year-end at a level determined by Council 
to meet cash flow requirements, emergency needs, and bond rating criteria.  
 

Fund Type Percent Minimum Absolute Minimum 

General Fund 15-25%1 Not specified 

Refuse Fund 20-30% $500,000 

Sewer Fund 65-75% $1,500,000 

Street Fund 20-30% $1,000,000 

Storm Water Fund 10-20% $200,000 

Emergency Reserve Fund N/A $1,500,000 - $2,000,000 

 

D. FY2024 Revenues Policy. 

1). Description. The revenue projection process starts with estimates submitted by the 
departments for their specific areas. Finance reviews those estimates and makes informed 
judgments on all revenues City-wide. Prior year’s actual and current year-to-date amounts 
are used to project both the current year and next year's revenues. Information received 
from the State, County, and Iowa League of Cities is utilized to project revenue trends and 
anticipated amounts. 

2). Approval. Finance will use conservative interest rate projections, current balances and 
interest accrual information, projects interest earnings. The Mayor and City Administrator 
will review revenues, expenditures and ending fund balances to determine if any revenue 
adjustments need to be made. 

3). Revenue Source Policies.  

a. Property Taxes. The budget of the City of Cedar Falls shall be drawn so that the general 
tax levy does not exceed limits established by State law. 

b. Debt Service Levy. Taxes shall be levied each year under the Debt Service Levy in the 
amount equal to the general obligation principal and interest due in that same year, 
minus the portion paid by the enterprise funds and CFU. 

c. Tort Liability Levy. The City may levy for the expected costs of property and liability 

 

1 The City Council established Resolution 9054 that the General Fund balance be maintained between 15 and 25% and 
preferably at the 20-25% level, allowing for the seasonal cash flows. Work towards closer to 25%. 

480

Item 19.



CFD 1101.XX – Council Goals, Work Program, and Financial Plan for FY2024 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 4 of 24 

  
 

insurance policies and estimated claims losses held by the City. 

d. Employee Benefits Levy. The City's share of contributions to police and fire pension 
and retirement systems, at rates determined by the State of Iowa, for currently 
employed sworn officers. The City’s share of contributions for employee benefits 
budgeted under the General Fund only if the general tax levy is at the $8.10 maximum. 
Employee benefits levy tax revenues will be receipted into the Trust and Agency Fund 
and then transferred into the General Fund. 

e. Emergency Management Levy. Levy for all dispatch, 911 and emergency operation 
costs assigned to the City of Cedar Falls. 

f. Transit Levy. Transit levy taxes shall not exceed the 95-cent limit established by State 
law. Transit levy tax revenues will be receipted into the General Fund. 

g. Band Levy. Taxes levied under the Band Levy shall not exceed the 13.5-cent limit 
established by State law. Tax revenues from the band levy will be receipted into the 
General Fund. 

h. Library Levy. Taxes levied under the library levy shall not exceed the 27-cent limit 
established by state law. Library levy tax revenues shall support the library. 
Approximately 50% of the levy will be used for new materials and services and 
approximately 50% will be used to lower general fund support to the library. 

i. Sales Tax. The City collects an additional 1% in local option sales tax. The revenues 
and expenditures under this program are recorded in a separate fund. 

j. Hotel/Motel Tax. The City currently has a 7% hotel/motel tax with 50% of the income 
generated by the imposition of the tax being devoted to the Visitors and Tourism 
Division. The other 50% is devoted to programs related to parks, lakes, trails, and 
recreational/cultural facilities. 

k. Fees and Charges. The City will establish fees and charges, in accordance with 
revenue bond requirements or for covering all or part of the related costs of providing 
the services. Fees and charges shall be reviewed at least biennially.   

l. Investments. The City will invest 100% of idle funds and will obtain the best possible 
return on all cash investments within the limits of the State law. 

m. Intergovernmental Revenue. Revenues from local, State and Federal governments will 
be used according to the restrictions or intent placed on each. 

n. Additional Revenue Sources. The City will continue searching for additional revenues 
to maintain a balanced budget. 

E. FY2024 Expenditures Policies. 

1). Current Service Level: Funding will be prioritized to maintain current service levels. 

481

Item 19.



CFD 1101.XX – Council Goals, Work Program, and Financial Plan for FY2024 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 5 of 24 

  
 

2). Cost Effective Programs: Technology and capital investment programs will be leveraged to 
reduce operating expenses whenever cost-effective. 

3). Infrastructures and Equipment: The City will maintain the scheduled level of maintenance 
and replacement for City infrastructure and equipment. 

4). Local Option Sales Tax: 100% of LOST proceeds will be spent on street repair in 
accordance with the stipulations set by the voters and City Council resolution2.  

5). Reductions: The City will attempt to avoid service reductions when balancing the budget. 
First consideration will be given to alternatives which avoid employee layoffs, resist cuts in 
service, and establish user fees. Parameters for downsizing shall ensure that (1) no essential 
service be eliminated; (2) service with high public visibility and exposure remain intact, and 
(3) reductions will first be made in internal functions. 

F. FY2024 Long Term Debt Policies. 

1). Purpose of Debt: Debt will be used to fund the design, inspection and construction of capital 
improvement projects, rather than for annual operating expenses. 

2). Debt Limit: The total GO debt will not exceed 5% of total assessed real property value.  

3). Debt Issuance: New debt issuance shall not exceed a replacement debt level. Existing debt 
should be refinanced to secure the lowest possible interest costs, whenever possible. 

4). Self-Financing: Self-financing or cash (where allowed) will be used to fund one-time 
projects if excess cash reserves exist. 

G. FY2024 Capital Improvements Program Policies. 

1). Description. The Capital Improvements Program (CIP) is a planning document and does 
not authorize or fund projects. The projects listed in the CIP are summarized in the capital 
projects program.  

2). Approvals. The CIP is prepared by the Finance & Business Operations Department for 
review by the Department Directors, City Administrator, Mayor, and Planning and Zoning 
Commission; the CIP is then submitted to the City Council for approval.  

3). The City will make all capital improvements in accordance with the adopted CIP. The City 
will develop and annually update a multi-year plan for capital improvements.  

4). The City will enact an annual capital budget based on the multi-year capital improvement 
plan. Future capital expenditures necessitated by changes in population, changes in real 

 
2 City Council Resolution 15,596 provides that, “Zero percent (0%) of said local sales and services tax is to be used for 
property tax relief. One hundred percent (100%) of the revenue generated in the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa during each 
fiscal year from said local sales and services tax is to be allocated for reconstruction, repair or replacement of existing 
streets, curbs, structures, storm sewers and sanitary sewers as they relate to streets within the corporate limits of the City 
of Cedar Falls, Iowa and not as replacement funds for the present funding levels, as authorized by the City Council of the 
City of Cedar Falls, Iowa. 

482

Item 19.



CFD 1101.XX – Council Goals, Work Program, and Financial Plan for FY2024 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 6 of 24 

  
 

estate development, or changes in economic base will be calculated and included in capital 
budget projections. 

5). The City will coordinate development of the capital improvement budget with development 
of the operating budget. Future operating costs associated with new capital improvement 
will be projected and included in operating budget forecasts.  

6). The City will use intergovernmental assistance to finance only those capital improvements 
consistent with the CIP and City priorities and where operating and maintenance costs 
have been included in operating budget forecasts. 

7). The City will maintain all assets at a level adequate to protect the City's capital investment 
and to minimize future maintenance and replacement costs. 

8). The City will project its equipment replacement and maintenance needs for the next several 
years and will update this projection each year in order to implement a maintenance and 
replacement schedule. 

9). The City will not finance equipment or projects with a projected life span less than a bond’s 
maturity through the sale of GO bonds. 

10).The City will not finance ongoing operating expenses with GO or revenue bonds. 

11).The CIP will incorporate the least costly financing method for all new projects.  

12).The City will maintain a long-term financial plan to address inadequacies in “City managed” 
infrastructure in unserved areas of the City and progressively add them to the CIP when 
cost effective (if consistent with long-range growth plans). 

13).The CIP will incorporate a debt management strategy emphasizing the protection of at 
least 25-30% of the City's debt capacity.  

14).The City will develop a plan addressing competing projects, priorities and timing to meet 
this objective jointly by soliciting input from the Planning & Zoning Commission to ensure 
that projects are timely, unduplicated and supportive of long-range plans. 

15).The issuance of new debt shall not exceed a replacement debt level, which typically ranges 
from $3.0 - $4.0 million dollars every other year; CFU uses the City’s bank qualified 
financing capacity in off bond sale years. 

a. In FY23, the City will budget for a $3.0 - $4 million dollar GO bond sale. 

b. The City will use emergency reserve funds for projects identified in the CIP, with a 
balance of $1.5-2 million for emergencies. 

16).The City will incorporate when timely, properly planned, safely engineered and financially 
feasible and design appropriate street and growth concepts in the planning and design of 
all capital projects. 

483

Item 19.



CFD 1101.XX – Council Goals, Work Program, and Financial Plan for FY2024 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 7 of 24 

  
 

17).The city will seek minimum private donation match of 25% of/for recreation & quality of life 
projects.  Funds shall be escrowed or an agreement with the City Council needs to be 
executed prior to the project bid letting.  

GOALS AND OBJECTIVES: 

1. GOAL #1: Foster Organizational Excellence. Select, train, motivate and retain highly qualified 
employees who represent the city in a professional manner. 

A. Supporting Policies. 

1).  Ensure that employee wages and benefits are competitive with other municipalities in the 
state of Iowa and private enterprise in the metro area. 

2). Maintain clear lines and methods of communication between elected officials and staff. 

3). Treat employees with respect and expect that they, in turn, will treat citizens with respect. 

4). Encourage and management and supervisory employees to be creative and innovative in 
the delivery of city services. 

5). Promote continuous quality improvement in all city government operations. 

6). Conduct employee survey every two years.  

B. Long-Term and Ongoing Objectives. 

1). Continue to monitor the ability to attract and retain quality staff.  

2). Continue to support the Performance Based Pay (Merit Pay) Policy (CFD 2154) to reward 
superior staff performance and encourage the retention of high performers.  

3). Expand cross-training programs to improve service without increasing staffing. 

4). Seek methods to reduce employee health insurance costs by altering benefits, seeking 
greater financial contribution from employees and modify methods of employee health 
service delivery. 

C. FY2024 Detailed Objectives. 

1). Review results and consider policy changes from the workforce climate assessment / 
employee satisfaction survey to improve human resources management and employee 
relations. 

2). Continue to evaluate whether to fill an opening or proposed newly created position.  

3). Explore restructuring, merging, or eliminating vacant positions. 

4). Maintain multi-year staffing and succession plans. 

484

Item 19.



CFD 1101.XX – Council Goals, Work Program, and Financial Plan for FY2024 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 8 of 24 

  
 

5). Implement and maintain updates to the Comprehensive Pay Plan (CFD 2502.18). 

6). Continue to fund the City’s employee educational assistance program (CFD 2254).  

7). Encourage employees to use the City’s wellness program (CFD 2257) and continue to offer 
incentives for participation.  

8). Update the staffing plan to address employment attrition, retirements and the use of PT, 
PSOs, POCs, Police Reservists, volunteers or other cross-training programs to respond to 
long-term staffing needs. 

9). Develop a review standard to annually evaluate the performance of the City Administrator.  

2. GOAL #2: Deliver Responsible Local Government. Provide a representative system which 
identifies and anticipates concerns, problems, and opportunities which are effectively addressed 
with thoughtful and decisive governmental actions for the benefit of citizens. 

A. Supporting Council Policies. 

1). Provide broad direction to the City Administrator, who in turn formulates management 
decisions to provide efficient service offerings and operations. 

2). As a policy-making body, interpret community needs and values and convey them to City 
staff through consistent legislative and policy actions. 

3). Continue to provide a forum for active public engagement related to City actions through 
open public meetings, hearings, committees, commissions, task forces and broadcast 
media. 

4). Continually explore and evaluate improved methods of communication with citizens to 
inform them of City activities and accomplishments. 

B. Long-Term and Ongoing Objectives. 

1). Continue to hold annual meetings with CFU to discuss the impacts and strategies to deal 
with the on-going transfer of Utility funds in lieu of property taxes, franchise taxes, use of 
right-of-way, TIF reimbursement, and support of entrepreneurship.  

2). Hold joint meetings with policy-making City boards such as the Library Board and the 
Planning & Zoning Commission. 

3). Consider holding when timely, joint meetings with the Waterloo City Council, Black Hawk 
County Supervisors, Cedar Falls Community School District and the University of Northern 
Iowa on matters of mutual interest. 

4). Encourage the professional development of City Council members, city commissioners and 
board members through staff-facilitated work sessions, training sessions, the Iowa League 
of Cities annual conference, the Municipal Leadership Academy, and innovative project 
presentations from other cities. 

485

Item 19.



CFD 1101.XX – Council Goals, Work Program, and Financial Plan for FY2024 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 9 of 24 

  
 

5). Expand on existing collaborations with the City of Waterloo, CFU, UNI, Black Hawk County, 
and other governmental bodies to provide high-quality public services at lower cost; 
examples include art & culture services, airport operations, public safety services, transit 
systems, economic development coordination, emergency response, sewer infrastructure, 
and shared facilities / equipment. 

6). Continue working with the Metropolitan Transit Authority and exploring other transportation 
options which meet the needs of Cedar Falls’ public transit-dependent residents at an 
affordable cost to the city.  

7). Continue to support the development of a five-year Community-Wide Strategic Plan (CFD 
4005) to help coordinate the long-term efforts of the City’s many stakeholders, including a 
new plan for 2025-2030. 

8). Continue using the city’s quarterly Currents newsletter, websites, cable television, social 
media and other technologies to provide relevant information about City services, activities, 
and schedules to residents. 

9). Continue expanding the Communication Specialist role to facilitate increased 
communications with the public about all aspects of city government. 

10).Maintain an online index of major city plans, policies, and documents for reference. 

11).Continue to expand the City’s online services to take advantage of the prevalence of 
smartphones & other mobile devices in our community, while also ensuring that the less 
digitally advantaged can fully access city services.   

12).Continue to implement the Nutrient Reduction Strategy as submitted to the IDNR to update 
the existing Wastewater Treatment Facility. 

C. FY2024 Detailed Objectives. 

1). City of Waterloo Objectives. 

a. Maintain mutual aid agreements with Waterloo for faster emergency response times 
and lower callback expenses for both cities.  

b. Support coordination with Waterloo directly and through the Iowa Northland Regional 
Council of Governments (INRCOG) on common legislative goals.  

2). University of Northern Iowa Objectives. 

a. Continue to collaborate with UNI to address public safety, parking, College Hill 
neighborhood, equitable payment for City services, sharing of facilities and elimination 
of duplicated governmental services. 

b. Continue to explore the viability of shared service contracts with UNI for policing, fire 
protection, dispatch, street maintenance, utilities, and recreational facility development 
and usage. 

486

Item 19.



CFD 1101.XX – Council Goals, Work Program, and Financial Plan for FY2024 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 10 of 24 

  
 

c. Continue to coordinate the development of new City open field recreational uses with 
UNI to minimize the purchase of additional land; this approach will allow City funds to 
be used for site development. 

d. Engage with Iowa Workforce Development and UNI to explore opportunities to retain 
recent UNI graduates in Cedar Falls. 

e. Continue to provide paid internships to UNI students as a means to promote civic 
engagement. 

3). Cedar Falls Community School District (CFCSD) Objectives. 

a. Assist CFCSD with infrastructure improvements that create parking areas, joint 
City/Schools playgrounds, and building expansion areas. 

b. Support improvements to parking and pedestrian traffic near public schools in 
accordance with the Safe Routes to Schools Study (CFD 4106.11); examples of such 
design are Orchard Hill Elementary, Southdale Elementary, and Lincoln Elementary.  

c. Coordinate with CFCSD on the completion of the new Cedar Falls High School; identify 
local, county and state facilities, programs and property which can minimize duplication 
of services. 

d. Continue to engage directly with High School student groups to introduce students to 
civic engagement (e.g. CAPS program). 

e. Build collaboration between CFCSD and the City to highlight and celebrate the many 
cultures in the community and how they add value to our city.  

f. Create pathways and collaborative equity discussions between businesses and UNI. 

g. Participate in a community-wide equity committee. 

4). Cedar Falls Utilities (CFU) Objectives. 

a. Annually consider repaying eligible CFU expenses (if excess TIF revenues exist) for 
CFU projects completed in City TIF districts.  

b. Support CFU in the implementation of water service programs, as CFU is the sole 
governmental entity authorized by code to provide these services.  Reimbursement 
would be subject to CFU maintaining a fair and updated annual transfer that equitably 
compensates the City for return on investment from City ownership, property taxes, 
franchise fees and use of city right-of-way (ROW). 

c. Implement public water special assessment programs (if requested by CFU) to install 
a public water system in un-serviced areas, if requested and financially supported by a 
majority of benefited property owners. Examples include parts of northern Cedar Falls, 
Viking Place, Horseshoe Drive and some rural properties. 

487

Item 19.



CFD 1101.XX – Council Goals, Work Program, and Financial Plan for FY2024 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 11 of 24 

  
 

d. Use federal Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) funding (if eligible) to pay 
for water service line connection for all residents who are income-eligible and property 
taxes to pay for fire hydrant installation; CFU will pay for all water line over-sizing and 
property owners will pay all other expenses, less any other funding sources. 

e. Continue to explore sustainability and resiliency initiatives jointly with CFU. 

5). Community Resiliency Objectives. 

a. Continue to implement the Island Park Revitalization Plan.  

b. Continue to evaluate cost effective measures to reduce damages resulting from Cedar 
River flooding.  

c. Continue to support conversion of city buildings to LED lighting, when cost-effective, to 
reduce the City’s electricity demand. 

d. Continue to support the conversion of unused City property to native tallgrass prairie 
(when practical) to reduce storm water runoff, minimize lawn maintenance 
requirements, and provide habitat for wildlife and pollinators. 

e. Continue to support the conversion of select gravel alleys to permeable alleys (when 
funds permit) to reduce gravel erosion and pollution from storm runoff. 

6). Racial Equity and Human Rights Objectives.  

a. Invest in organizational capacity and infrastructure through hiring under Human 
Resources personnel to achieve human rights and equity goals.   

b. Continue to actively partner with the Black Hawk County Health Department, Cedar 
Falls Community School District, UNI, and Grow Cedar Valley to develop coordinated 
and supporting equity plans and initiatives. 

c. Build collaboration with the Cedar Falls Community School District to highlight and 
celebrate different cultures in the community and their value to the city. 

d. Create pathways and collaborative equity discussions between businesses and UNI.  

e. Work with Human Rights Commission about forming a Diversity, Equity, & Inclusion 
(DEI) subcommittee or determine best approach to establishing a Cedar Falls Equity 
Committee. 

f. Work towards actively building capacity to create public engagement opportunities that 
are welcoming and inclusive.  

7). General Governance Objectives. 

a. Continue support for ‘Mayor’s Updates’ to inform the City Council, Cedar Falls residents 
and stakeholders of the status of Council priorities, City projects, upcoming activities 

488

Item 19.



CFD 1101.XX – Council Goals, Work Program, and Financial Plan for FY2024 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 12 of 24 

  
 

and key information.  

b. Continue to specify in council agenda memos and presentations how a project or topic 
fits into the City Council’s stated goals and priorities. 

c. Maintain a directory of governmental units, neighborhood groups, and other 
stakeholders the City Council would periodically like to meet with to discuss common 
interests.  

d. Maintain an online calendar of civic events of relevance to city elected officials, 
published with as much advance notice as possible to facilitate attendance.  

e. Hold city council committee or work sessions on council meeting Mondays to discuss 
complex or potentially contentious matters. 

3. GOAL #3: Ensure Government Efficiency and Effectiveness. Equitably deliver services in a 
cost effective, efficient, professional, and timely manner. 

A. Supporting Council Policies. 

1). Carry out the Short-Term Financial Plan.  

2). Ensure that community health, safety, and welfare are protected through provision of 
essential cost-effective, efficient, professional, and timely public services. 

3). Adopt a balanced budget reflecting the community's economic climate and needs. 

4). Continue to monitor the impacts of the State of Iowa’s roll back of commercial/industrial 
taxable values without long-term guaranteed backfill funding. 

5). Maintain a budget philosophy of self-sufficiency in all major funds. 

6). Adopt a Capital Improvements Program annually which coordinates major capital 
expenditures and is responsive to property tax levies and the City's debt restrictions. 

7). Maintain a stable property tax rate relative to the consumer price index. 

8). Deposit funds in excess of annual operations expenses (including released TIF funds) in a 
capital reserve account for projects, economic development, public land acquisition, 
redevelopment, health insurance fund support, or other one-time allocations approved by 
the City Council. 

9). Evaluate each newly proposed service to determine the cost, relative importance and value 
of each service, and to identify unnecessary duplication within City-sponsored programs. 

10).Identify and implement cost-effective methods to save energy within City operations. 

B. Long-Term and Ongoing Objectives. 

489

Item 19.



CFD 1101.XX – Council Goals, Work Program, and Financial Plan for FY2024 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 13 of 24 

  
 

1). Continue to monitor the City's capacity to provide adequate maintenance of its growing 
infrastructure. Maintain a long-term maintenance plan, including a contingency plan to 
respond to any long-term reductions in maintenance funds.  

2). Continue to dedicate future accumulating cash generated by mid-year budget reductions 
for one-time future expenses such as capital projects. 

3). Continue to dedicate TIF release dollars generated by expired TIF areas to future economic 
development projects.  

4). Continue to explore appropriate opportunities for privatization of city services. 

5). Continue the annual street repair program using RUT and LOST revenues.  

6). Ensure that essential services (public safety, parks, sewers, roads, refuse collection) are 
offered, while constantly exploring ways to increase efficiency in delivery. 

7). Encourage civic involvement and volunteerism by citizens to reduce costs, including 
recycling, picking up leaves, moving cars to assist with efficient snowplowing, cleaning 
sidewalks, Friends of the Library, Friends of the Hearst Center, and Police Reservists.  

8). Maintain the appropriate number of alternative staff in police and fire while improving 
services and reducing overtime costs by annually recruiting, if necessary new Police 
Reservists, volunteers, PSOs and POC staff. 

9). Periodically conduct an evaluation of the costs and benefits of participation in the County 
Consolidated Communications Center and CJIS. Determine the fair share of costs that 
should be assigned to Cedar Falls while exploring a "county funded" system. 

10).Maintain the Police Community Service Officer (CSO) program to help supervisory 
personnel with office duties, allowing supervisors to work closer with the public and provide 
direction in the field supervision of down-line employees. 

11).Maintain staffing levels in all departments that reduce overtime by matching staffing levels 
to specific service demands as opposed to predetermined rigid standards. 

12).Return City property to the tax base (when possible) to support revenue generation and 
economic development. 

C. FY2024 Detailed Objectives. 

1). General Cost Savings Objectives. 

a. Evaluate cost-effective alternatives to keep City departments staffed and functional. 

b. Continue the review of open positions as they occur. 

c. Continue the practice of succession planning to identify talented internal candidates 
when a vacancy is expected to occur. 

490

Item 19.



CFD 1101.XX – Council Goals, Work Program, and Financial Plan for FY2024 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 14 of 24 

  
 

d. Continue to promote cross-training programs and alternative employment practices for 
most effective use of city staff. 

e. Continue to explore the sharing of services with other jurisdictions. 

2). Public Safety Objectives. 

a. Continue to support and provide feedback on the Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation 
Plan for Black Hawk County (CFD 5901.20) and intergovernmental emergency 
response plans. 

b. Continue to evaluate the City’s Public Safety model, ensuring cost effective and efficient 
law enforcement, firefighting, and rescue operations. 

c. Continue to review staffing levels to ensure the most efficient use of Public Safety funds 
and personnel. 

d. Continue using supervisor performance measurement tools to hold first line supervisors 
accountable for daily staffing decisions.  

e. Use the Performance Based (Merit Based) Pay Policy (CFD 2154) to reward 
supervisors who successfully respond to workload demands with decisions that 
adequately protect the safety of employees and the public while minimizing overtime 
and callback expenses. 

f. Exercise management rights to schedule full staffing to avoid overtime expenses on 
days where known special public events will tax personnel resources.  

g. Pursue the establishment of a new public safety station along W. 1st Street / Highway 
57.  

h. Expand the reach of the City’s marketing and promotional campaigns regarding policing 
and racial equity efforts, beyond traditional media sources. 

i. Continue to assign Minimum Rental Housing, Section 8 Rental and Commercial 
Inspection duties to Fire shift personnel whenever possible. 

j. Continue annual smoke detector inspections in businesses and residences, 
recognizing that smoke detectors identify fire hazards as early as possible. 

3). Code Enforcement Objectives. 

a. Continue to be proactive in code enforcement activities.  

b. Continue to identify and implement methods designed to better coordinate inspections 
while enforcing land use, property maintenance codes, rental housing, and zoning and 
nuisance ordinance violations citywide with cooperative and coordinated actions by the 
City’s departments. 

491

Item 19.



CFD 1101.XX – Council Goals, Work Program, and Financial Plan for FY2024 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 15 of 24 

  
 

c. Continue the full-time Code Enforcement Officer position to enforce property 
maintenance, snow removal, zoning, housing, building, and nuisances. 

d. Enforce 48-hour parking laws in response to snow events, citizen complaints, habitual 
violations, and when public safety is compromised. 

e. Prioritize code enforcement on issues related to health & safety, property maintenance 
and over-crowding or over-occupancy. 

f. Continue rental inspections on a 3-year cycle. 

g. Expand building maintenance code inspections and enforcement city-wide, including in 
the College Hill area. 

h. Continue to coordinate and consolidate federally subsidized rental and minimum rental 
housing inspection duties.  

i. Continue to annually evaluate efficacy of the Landlord Accountability Ordinance. 

j. Implement traffic and parking controls based on public input meetings, test cases, 
sound engineering / best practices, and specific structural or safety limitations (street 
width, density, traffic flow and safety). 

k. Enforce laws prohibiting illegal parking on private property (front yards and non-
conforming lots). 

l. Enforce over-occupancy regulations. 

m. Enforce parking restrictions on all streets less than 31’ in width, based on the need for 
public safety vehicle accessibility. 

4). Yard Waste, Refuse and Transfer Station Objectives. 

a. Determine if yard waste collection programs should be altered or expanded based on 
the efficiency of material collection, customer satisfaction and general cost efficiency. 

b. Evaluate City-operated leaf vacuum collection rates to determine if they are set at levels 
that encourage property owners with small volumes of leaves to compost, mulch or 
utilize ‘City’ container disposal methods; ensure that the rate offers a cost-effective 
option for property owners who must dispose of large volumes of leaves. 

c. Evaluate how the expansion of the hours of operation for the yard waste drop off site 
has impacted revenues and expenditures.  

d. Continue the City’s public relations program to encourage the environmentally safe 
disposal of yard waste. 

e. Continue to review refuse fees, when timely, to ensure that sufficient revenues exist to 
cover all collection costs. 

492

Item 19.



CFD 1101.XX – Council Goals, Work Program, and Financial Plan for FY2024 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 16 of 24 

  
 

f. Continue to plan for future relocation of transfer station outside of the floodplain 

5). Stormwater and Wastewater Objectives. 

a. Review sewer rental fees to ensure that sufficient revenue exists in the next several 
years to pay for EPA mandated treatment plant improvements and other sewer 
projects. 

b. Continue timely review of stormwater fees to determine sufficiency of fees to pay for 
projected storm water costs outlined in the Capital Improvements Program.   

c. Actively enforce Municipal Separate Storm Sewer(MS4) Permit requirements 

6). General Legislative Objectives. 

a. Continue using lobbyists to influence municipally-related legislative action. 

(1) Continue to contract with a professional lobbyist to represent City interests to the 
State legislature. 

(2) Continue membership in the Iowa League of Cities to lobby for all Iowa cities.  

b. Develop and annually update policies to communicate the City’s goals and desires to 
the federal and state legislators.   

c. Continue to meet with legislators to increase rapport, gain insight into current legislative 
directions, and to apprise them of the City's revenue generation challenges, as well as 
the negative impact of legislation (including unfunded mandates, tax exempt and 
rollbacks).  

d. Continue pre- and post-legislative session meetings with area representatives to 
discuss topics of mutual interest. 

4. GOAL #4: Promote Economic Development. Create an environment conducive to economic 
development for the long-term financial prosperity and growth of the community. 

A. Supporting Council Policies. 

1). Function as a catalyst to encourage business development/expansion in Cedar Falls. 

a. Continue to support public and private economic development efforts in Cedar Falls 
and the metropolitan area. 

B. Long-Term and Ongoing Objectives 

1). Develop initiatives, when financially feasible, to support the economic development goals 
contained in the city’s Comprehensive Plan (CFD 4101.12). 

2). Implement a long-term plan for the development of future TIF districts. This plan should 

493

Item 19.



CFD 1101.XX – Council Goals, Work Program, and Financial Plan for FY2024 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 17 of 24 

  
 

include ways to acquire land and provide adequate infrastructure utilizing cooperative 
efforts with other groups and agencies. 

3). Continue the systematic and strategic buyout of flood-prone properties to retain viable 
areas based on quality of infrastructure, elevation and contiguousness. 

4). Prepare on a project–by-project basis an in-depth analysis of the long-term economic 
benefits vs. public investment/risk for each private/public cooperative economic 
development venture; the analysis must conclude that the long-term financial benefit 
derived by Cedar Falls taxpayers clearly out-weighs the risk of public financial assets. 

C. FY2024 Detailed Objectives. 

1). General Economic Development Objectives. 

a. Offer economic development incentives on par with other Iowa cities to remain 
competitive in the site selection process. 

b. Continue to support and develop the city’s economic development website. 

c. Continue to use TIF funds to acquire land for development into marketable industrial 
lots. 

d. Continue to use TIF funds to provide cash incentives to developers and business 
owners when consistent with City economic development policies. 

e. Explore the establishment of a University Avenue Corridor TIF district.  

f. Review downtown incentives (following adoption of new zoning) to consider the 
increase in assessed value and to incentivize enhanced architectural design or public 
benefits.  

g. Continue to provide property tax abatement (based on current schedules) for projects 
meeting adopted job creation and tax base growth criteria.  

h. Continue to allocate TIF funds for redevelopment projects on College Hill, in Downtown, 
and in northern Cedar Falls.  

i. Continue funding expansion of economic development marketing efforts.  

j. Continue to explore options for city support of expanded day-care options in Cedar 
Falls. 

k. Pursue expanded benefits and incentives to recently separated military members 
willing to relocate to Cedar Falls, as part of the state’s Home Base Iowa initiative. 

l. Explore the establishment of an incentive policy for residential districts.  

2). Regional Economic Development Organization Objectives. 

494

Item 19.



CFD 1101.XX – Council Goals, Work Program, and Financial Plan for FY2024 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 18 of 24 

  
 

a. Continue regional economic development partnership with Grow Cedar Valley. 

b. Monitor economic development cash subsidies (to CMS, CHP, GCV, and CFEDC) to 
determine value to Cedar Falls citizens and businesses.  

c. Continue to support the efforts of the Cedar Falls Economic Development Corporation 
in advancing Cedar Falls’ economic interests. 

3). Regional Tourism Objectives. 

a. Continue to maintain a dedicated Cedar Falls Visitors & Tourism Bureau. 

b. Continue to coordinate marketing and programming efforts between UNI, Cedar Falls 
and Waterloo Visitors and Tourism Bureaus for all Metro tourist events. 

4). Comprehensive Planning, Engineering and Building Objectives. 

a. Develop a grading ordinance for all new and existing developments. 

b. Continue to implement the \Comprehensive Plan (CFD 4101.12) with emphasis on: 

(1) Design standards which protect urban watersheds by encouraging developers to 
utilize natural methods of storm water control rather than traditional underground 
storm water collection and disposal systems. 

(2) Clear standards for growth, streets, street connectivity and walkability. 

(3) Low-maintenance landscaping in the city right-of-way, when cost-effective. 

(4) Trails and on-road accommodation of bicyclists, when possible. 

(5) Traffic calming devices and design approaches to address neighborhood traffic 
concerns, when practical. 

(6) Revise the Major Thoroughfare Plan. 

(7) Evaluate one-way streets and traffic flow 

5). Zoning Ordinance Economic Development Objectives. 

a. Support the development of a comprehensive new Zoning Ordinance to update the 
Zoning Ordinance first adopted in 1970. Consider new zoning and traffic control 
regulations to control density and parking problems by reducing the number of multiple 
family and duplex conversions. 

b. Consider changes to zoning regulations to limit the conversion of single-family 
properties to rental uses, to protect neighborhood stability and character. 

c. Consider changes to zoning regulations, policies and land use plans to restrict 
development of non-profit uses on prime commercial sites along arterial streets. 

495

Item 19.



CFD 1101.XX – Council Goals, Work Program, and Financial Plan for FY2024 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 19 of 24 

  
 

d. Consider developing a Zoning Ordinance (and Subdivision Ordinance) to 
accommodate features that encourage mixed uses, variable building setbacks, 
walkability, sustainability and complete street concepts. 

e. Support the pre-zoning of select properties for residential development and shorten the 
development timeline by identifying neighborhood concerns and responding with 
developmental limitations. 

f. Annex lands into the city (if requested by property owners) to support community growth 
and development consistent with the Comprehensive Plan (CFD 4101.12). 

6). Affordable Housing Development Objectives. 

a. Continue to seek ways in to provide affordable housing options to residents by: 

(1) Maximizing Section 8 funds available to provide as many vouchers as possible, 
given HUD guidance. 

(2) Incentivizing improvements in Section 8 housing (with tools such as Community 
Development Block Grant rental rehabilitation program). 

(3) Revising zoning codes to encourage a variety of housing types in every 
neighborhood, e.g., allow for Habitat for Humanity builds. 

(4) Encouraging the Housing Commission to evaluate initiatives to balance 
investments in market rate and low-income housing (e.g., tax abatements, 
forgivable loans, gap payments on rent or mortgage, housing trust fund). 

b. Review City construction standards to identify possible changes which can promote the 
construction of affordable housing. 

c. Identify existing older homes which can provide a market to meet affordable housing 
demand.  

d. Target potential developers with Requests for Proposals for affordable housing 
development, if federal or state grants can be secured.  

e. Partner with Habitat for Humanity to build/rehabilitate homes on city-owned lots.  

f. Consider the results of the Housing Needs Assessment, focusing on how to provide 
housing variety to promote housing options for all. 

g. Create educational messaging and outreach for landlords and citizens to emphasize 
the importance of healthy housing for all, along with destigmatizing affordable housing 
options such as Section 8 and Habitat for Humanity builds. 

h. Create a resource database of all federal, state and local programs that can be used to 
foster more homeownership among low- and moderate- income families and 
individuals. 

496

Item 19.



CFD 1101.XX – Council Goals, Work Program, and Financial Plan for FY2024 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 20 of 24 

  
 

i. Create an ongoing educational program for low- and moderate-income families to 
access available homeownership assistance programs. 

j. Implement diversity, inclusion and affordability considerations and evaluation in all new 
housing development plans. 

k. Continue the forgivable loan program for conversion of rental properties to owner-
occupied, expanded service area, and more qualifying expenses. 

7). Commercial and Office Economic Development Objectives. 

a. Support the private development of commercial (retail & wholesale), professional office 
and industrial expansions to improve the City’s residential to commercial/industrial land 
use mix from an 80/20 assessed value split to a 50/50 assessed value split. 

b. Implement diagonal on-street parking where feasible and where parking deficiencies 
can be solved with this approach. 

c. Continue development of the city-owned properties along the relocated Highway 20 
corridor and establish a new urban renewal area if appropriate. 

8). College Hill Economic Development Objectives. 

a. Carry out the recommendations of the College Hill Parking Study (CFD 1602.19) 

b. Continue to enact the College Hill Urban Revitalization Plan (CFD 1852.12). 

9). Northern Cedar Falls Economic Development Objectives. 

a. Continue to support the development of commercial uses in the northeast corner of 
Lone Tree Road/Center Street and at the Lone Tree Road interchange. 

b. Continue to promote the development of commercial growth along Center Street 
through streetscaping and beautification efforts in the ROW. 

10).Downtown Area Economic Development Objectives. 

a. Consider adopting an Urban Revitalization District in the Downtown area, following the 
adoption of new zoning ordinance.  

b. Explore all options to building a downtown parking structure, in conjunction with a 
feasibility study and continual re-evaluation of paid parking options. 

11).Industrial Economic Development Objectives. 

a. Create a new urban renewal area by acquiring additional land in areas that are 
attractive to the private sector for industrial development yet can be efficiently 
developed at a low public cost. 

497

Item 19.



CFD 1101.XX – Council Goals, Work Program, and Financial Plan for FY2024 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 21 of 24 

  
 

b. Reserve TIF increment capacity to pay off debt incurred by the City/IDOT cooperative 
construction of US 58 interchanges. 

c. Continue to repay Industrial Park TIF debt owed to the City debt service, economic 
development and capital project funds. 

12).Flood Control, Storm Water, Sanitary Sewer and Water Improvement Objectives. 

a. Inflow and Infiltration Reduction Program: Carry out separation of sanitary sewer and 
stormwater sewer lines from the footing drains when reconstructing streets. 

b. Extend sanitary sewer to areas that are unserved and remain on septic systems (i.e. 
South Main Street). 

13).Street Improvement Objectives. 

a. Develop cooperative agreements with State Agencies to improve the following streets 
using Road Use Tax (RUT), Local Option Sales Tax (LOST), and General Obligation 
(GO) bonds, if necessary: 

(1) Main Street Reconstruction – Use LOST, RUT, Stormwater, ARPA, and GO bonds 
to complete this project for construction 2023-2025. 

(2) Greenhill Road/Highway 58 – Use TIF funding as City match to Iowa Department 
of Transportation’s project in FY2027. 

(3) West 23rd Street Improvements – Use LOST, Assessment, and GO bonds to 
complete this project in FY2024. 

(4) Ridgeway & 58 – Use TIF funding as City match to Iowa Department of 
Transportation’s project in FY2024-FY2025.  

(5)  Prairie Parkway & Viking Road Intersection Improvements – Use TIF, LOST, and 
RUT for construction in FY2024-2025. 

(6) Northern Cedar Heights Area – Use LOST and SCF to complete this project 

b. Explore and establish agreements with developers to complete the connection of the 
following streets: 

(1) Arbors Drive -- Aldrich Elementary to Greenhill Road 

(2) Ashworth Drive – Prairie Winds to Hudson Road 

(3) Ashworth Drive – Connection to Arbor Drive 

(4) Ironwood Drive – Connection to Greenhill Road 

(5) West 27th Street Improvements – Use LOST, RUT, and GO bonds to complete this 

498

Item 19.



CFD 1101.XX – Council Goals, Work Program, and Financial Plan for FY2024 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 22 of 24 

  
 

project in FY2022-2024. 

c. Continue to develop the plans for the reconstruction of Union Road from 27th Street to 
University Avenue - Use LOST and RUT funds to complete this project.  Timing of 
project dependent on receipt of grant funding sources. 

14).Miscellaneous Infrastructure Repairs. 

a. Slope Repairs. Continue to develop plans to address significant slope failure issues. 
Use storm water funds to complete these projects. 

5. GOAL #5: Enhance Community Quality of Life. Preserve the community’s physical, human, and 
aesthetic assets by assuring that Quality of Life services are available for leisure, educational, 
cultural and personal enrichment of residents. 

A. Supporting Council Policies.  

1). Actively support the development of cultural, educational, recreational, and natural 
features, which make Cedar Falls distinctive. 

2). Endorse planned community growth, which protects the unique, natural, and historic 
features of Cedar Falls. 

3). Continue evaluating and implementing pedestrian safety measures. 

B. Long-Term and Ongoing Objectives. 

1). Continue to review and evaluate the ways in which the City can enhance racial and cultural 
diversity and inclusion in Cedar Falls. 

2). Update the Park Master Plan (CFD 8601.06) to account for city growth, changing needs 
and desires of the public, and updating of equipment and facilities. 

C. FY2024 Detailed Objectives. 

1). Continue planning for Hearst Center expansion/relocation. 

2). Continue to use the Recreation & Fitness Center, Operations & Facilities Needs 
Assessment (CFD 8101.18) to determine the viability of expansion. 

3). Implement, when financially feasible, an enhanced riverfront as a visitor attraction 
consistent with the Northern Cedar Falls Development Master Plan (CFD 4102). 

4). Coordinate with the Cedar Falls Community School District to purchase land for future 
parks in developing areas, as appropriate.  

5). Assist in the solicitation of grants and development of the Cedar River including dam safety 
improvements, riverbank improvements, and recreational features. 

499

Item 19.



CFD 1101.XX – Council Goals, Work Program, and Financial Plan for FY2024 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 23 of 24 

  
 

6). Continue to implement portions of the Park Master Plan (CFD 8601.06) for the Big Woods 
Lake, Gateway Park and Cedar City sites. 

7). Improve the Big Woods Campground (cabins, playground, and landscaping) as funding 
becomes available and as floodplain development ordinances allow. 

8). Develop an annual street right-of-way beautification, wayfinding signage, bike network 
signage, and city entrance signage & monument program using hotel/motel taxes. 

9). Consider recommendations from City staff when alternative roadway designs are 
appropriate based on safety, roadway efficiency and financially feasible; typically, these 
opportunities arise when a street is scheduled for resurfacing or reconstruction allowing the 
City to address issues involving landscaping, pedestrian movements, transit, bike and 
vehicular traffic. 

10).Protect areas identified in the Cedar Falls Environmentally Sensitive Lands Survey (CFD 
4551.07) as city finances allow. 

11).Identify trails most appropriate for winter snow removal and inform the public via an 
annually published Trail and Bus Bench Snow Removal Map (CFD 4403). 

12).Develop a Great American Rail Trail Connection Plan to identify possible improvements, 
wayfinding, and other amenities along the Cedar Falls portion of this cross-country route 

13).Continue collaboration with CFCSD on the development of plans for a new indoor 
community pool, co-located with the new Cedar Falls High School. 

14).Encourage private development for an official Independence Day fireworks display.  

15).Continue working with private property owners to remove trees impacted by emerald ash 
borer infestation. 

16).Implement facility improvements to Seerley Park. 

17).Design and develop facility improvements to various City Parks. 

18).Continue pursuit of sister city partnerships and engagement, including in-person visits as 
part of major Iowa delegations. 

19).Implement the Bike Network Plan as funding and construction allows. 

20).Consider potential for new quality of life projects 

a. Eco Loop 

b. Campground/RV Park in Northern Cedar Falls 

c. Trail Connection (behind CFU, contingent upon railroad grant)  

500

Item 19.



CFD 1101.XX – Council Goals, Work Program, and Financial Plan for FY2024 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 24 of 24 

  
 

d. Pickleball Courts 

e. Birdsall Park Renovations 

f. Historic Reconnaissance Survey of Overman Park Neighborhood 

21).Consider funding for quality-of-life projects with other entities 

a. Historical Society 

b. UNI Dome Renovations 

c. Additional ask for High School Pool 

d. Cedar Valley Placemaking Project (bridge lighting) 

 

501

Item 19.



   DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS 

 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

220 CLAY STREET 

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 

319-273-8600 

FAX 319-268-5126 
     I N T E R O F F I C E   M E M O R A N D U M 

 

 TO: Mayor Green & City Council Members  

 FROM: Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance & Business Operations 

 DATE: December 21, 2022 

 SUBJECT: Lobbyist Contract   

 
As you are aware, we have been working with Cope Murphy for the past three years for 
lobbyist services for the City.  Three years ago, we sent out RFPs to seven firms and 
we received five proposals back at that time.  After a selection process, Cope Murphy 
was selected as our new lobbyist firm.  At that time, we entered into a three-year 
contract with them.  Attached is a new contract extending that commitment for two more 
years.  The fee for their services will remain the same as the past three years at 
$18,000/year.   
 
This lobbyist contract is in accordance with the following City Council goal: 
  

1). General Legislative Objectives. 

a. Continue using lobbyists to influence municipally-related legislative action. 

(1) Continue to contract with a professional lobbyist to represent City interests 

to the State legislature. 

 
 
 
If you have any questions, please feel free to contact Ron Gaines or myself.  
 
 
 

502

Item 20.



 

 

SERVICES AGREEMENT 
 
 
This Agreement (“Agreement”) is entered into by the City of Cedar Falls (“Client”), located at 220 Clay 
Street in Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613, and Cope Murphy + Co. LLP (“CM+C”), located at 8583 Newbury 
Court, Johnston, Iowa 50131. 
 
The parties hereby agree to the following terms, conditions and provisions: 
 
TERM 
 
The term of this agreement shall begin on January 1, 2023 and end December 31, 2024 or when 
terminated by either party as hereinafter provided or by mutual agreement. 
 
SERVICES AND DELIVERABLES 
 
CM+C shall provide Client the following services and deliverables: 
 

2023 and 2024 LEGISLATIVE SESSIONS and INTERIMS 
 

• On matters identified by Client, monitor and track legislative activity including 
representation services as registered lobbyists.  These services shall include providing 
strategic recommendations in response to this activity, setting up and participating in 
formal and informal meetings with key decision makers, legislators and other influential 
persons, meetings with Client staff and board members, if applicable, and periodic briefings 
as requested by Client. Post-session activities shall include monitoring legislative interim 
committees and the Administrative Rules Review Committee, maintaining legislative staff 
contacts and, as requested by Client, maintaining favorable relationships with relevant 
executive branch agencies including the Governor’s Office. 

 

503

Item 20.



 

 

• Furnish Client with relevant copies of legislative work products (such as bills, amendments, 
committee reports, testimony and media releases) and a written summary of CM+C’s 
services as may from time to time be requested. 

 

• Furnishing legislative and executive branch work products and reports on activities relevant 
to Client’s governmental relations objectives including meeting with Client staff and board 
members, as applicable. 

 
PAYMENT TERMS 
 
Client shall pay CM+C $18,000 for each of the calendar years 2023 and 2024 which shall be invoiced in 
four installments on the first day of January, April, July, and October and which shall be due and 
payable 30 days thereafter to the order of Cope Murphy + Co. LLP, with remittance postal mailed to 
Cope Murphy + Co. LLP, c/o Cope Murphy + Co. LLP, 8583 Newbury Court, Johnston, IA 50131, unless 
otherwise provided. 
 
Client shall reimburse CM+C for up to $500 in reasonable expenses incurred during the term of this 
agreement in connection with the performance of its services (such as client-related travel mileage 
outside of Polk County at 50 cents per mile,) upon submission of proper documentation and such other 
expenses as Client may approve in advance. 
 
INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 
 
CM+C’s status in all matters pursuant to this contract shall be that of an independent contractor.  The 
term “independent contractor” will include all of CM+C’s employees, representatives, and 
subcontractors.  CM+C will not directly or indirectly represent or imply in any way that CM+C is an 
employee of Client.  CM+C is not eligible for Client employee benefits or any other considerations of 
Client employment, nor is CM+C allowed to use Client’s letterhead, business cards, trademarks, or 
other forms of its identification.  CM+C is not entitled to privileges, services, facilities, and benefits that 
are available to Client’s employees. 
 
 
 

504

Item 20.



 

 

TERMINATION 
 
Without cause, either party may terminate this agreement after giving 30 days prior written notice to 
the other.  In the event of termination, CM + C shall be entitled to fees pro-rated only through date of 
termination. 
 
NOTICES 
 
Formal notices required herein shall be sent by postal or email with return receipt requested to the 
addresses noted above. 
 
TITLE AND OWNERSHIP OF WORKS MADE FOR HIRE 
 
The parties agree that new, original, custom-developed works produced by CM+C pursuant to this 
agreement shall be works made for hire and shall become the sole property of Client.  Title and 
ownership thereto shall belong to and vest exclusively in Client. 
 
NON-DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY OF PROPRIETARY INFORMATION 
 
CM +C shall protect and maintain the confidentiality of Client’s, and its members, reports, data, 
information, systems, documentation, and the like, whether reduced to writing or otherwise provided 
to CM+C by reason of this agreement.  CM+C shall not disclose such information to any person or 
entity other than CM+C’s employees or subcontractors who need such information to perform their 
work pursuant to this agreement.  However, CM+C does not provide legal services and therefore none 
of the above matters are protected by an attorney-client privilege. 
 
NOTIFICATION AND REVIEW OF CLIENT POSITIONS 
 
CM+C shall notify Client prior to representing a client on a matter related to Client’s interests.  CM+C 
may represent the client, if Client and CM+C agree in writing on a scope or manner of representation 
that is consistent with Client’s interests.  However, CM+C shall not represent the client if Client 
determines, in its sole discretion, that such client is taking, or could take, a position which would be 
significantly inconsistent with any position Client has taken, or may expect to take. 

505

Item 20.



 

 

 
COMPLIANCE WITH LOBBYING LAWS 
 
CM+C and Client shall comply with all applicable State of Iowa lobbying laws and regulations and to 
provide each other, as requested, with a copy of their respective lobbyist registration or reporting 
forms filed with the appropriate state agencies, offices, or legislative officials.  CM+C shall prepare, at 
Client’s request, such filings for Client approval and signature. 
 
SUBCONTRACTING AND ASSIGNMENT 
 
No work performed pursuant to this Agreement may be sub-contracted in whole or in part by CM+C 
without the prior written consent of Client.  Notwithstanding any such consent by Client, CM+C shall 
be and remain solely and completely liable to Client for all work performed. 
 
This agreement may not be assigned or otherwise transferred by CM+C without the prior written 
consent of Client. 
 
GOVERNING LAW 
 
This agreement shall be governed, construed, and interpreted under the laws of the State of Iowa. 
 
ENTIRE AGREEMENT; AMENDMENT 
 
This agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties with regard to the subject 
matter hereof, and supersedes any prior oral of written agreements regarding the same. 
 
This agreement may be amended only by an instrument in writing and signed by authorized 
representatives of both parties. 
 
The terms, conditions and provisions of this Agreement are hereby  
 
 
 

506

Item 20.



 

 

 
AGREED TO AND APPROVED BY: 
 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
 
 
___________________________________ 
 
___________________________________ 
(Date) 
 
 

COPE MURPHY + CO. LLP 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Tom Cope, Principal 
 
___________________________________ 
(Date) 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

507

Item 20.



1 

 

   DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE AND BUSINESS OPERATIONS 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
PHONE 319-273-8600 
FAX 319-268-5126 

     M E M O R A N D U M 
Human Resources Division 

 TO: Mayor Green, City Council 

 FROM: Bailey Schindel, Human Resources Manager 

 DATE: December 22, 2022 

 SUBJECT:  307 Overtime Personnel Policy Revision 
 
 

Attached to this Memorandum please find proposed changes to Personnel Policy 307, Overtime.  This 

memorandum will serve to generally explain the proposed changes.  Reference to the policy itself is 

recommended for review of specific language.  The changes are presented in red line form for ease of 

review. 

 

Personnel Policy 307, Overtime. 

Verbiage was added to the Personnel Policy 307, Overtime, regarding shift pay for public safety 

supervisors. In agreement with the union, effective January 7, 2023, shift pay for public safety supervisors 

assigned to the fire division 24-hour shift will now be granted rather than the previously agreed upon 

“government days.” Public safety supervisors assigned to the fire division 24-hour shift shall receive 

additional shift pay per pay period based on the midpoint of the appropriate pay band. There is no change 

to shift pay for employees assigned to the police division.   

 

Staff recommends approval of these personnel policy changes. Please feel free to contact HR Manager, 

Bailey Schindel, at 319-268-5531 if you have any questions.  

 

508

Item 21.



307:     OVERTIME 
 
Policy: 
 
 It is the Policy of the City of Cedar Falls to pay overtime to non-exempt hourly 
employees when appropriate and required by the law.  The provisions of any applicable 
collective bargaining agreements shall apply and this policy shall not apply for any bargaining 
unit employees. 
 
Comment: 
 
  Overtime rates will be paid to non-exempt employees for time worked as follows: 
 

(1) Holiday Rates:  When an employee, not a shift worker, is called to work on a day 
being observed by the City as a holiday, and the employee is not otherwise scheduled to work, 
they shall be paid time and one-half for the time worked.  Such pay shall be in addition to 
holiday pay.  (See 503: Holidays Policy for employees scheduled to work on a holiday.) 
 

(2) Overtime/Work Week:  Employees shall receive time and one-half for hours 
worked beyond 40 hours in a work week.  Holidays, other than “floating holidays,” shall be 
included as “time worked” for purposes of calculating the 40 hours. Sick leave, workers’ 
compensation time off, vacation, floating holidays, and comp time are not included as “time 
worked” for purposes of calculating the 40 hours.  Employees will not be paid overtime for call 
back, whether prior to or after a shift, until an employee has worked 40 hours in a work week. 
 

(3) Continuous Time Worked:  Employees shall receive double time for continuous 
time worked (including time for meals) after sixteen (16) consecutive hours of work and until 
relieved from duties for at least eight (8) consecutive hours. 
 

(4) Consecutive Time Worked:  Employees having worked sixteen (16) or more 
consecutive hours shall be relieved as early as possible, dependent upon service requirements.  If 
any portion of the relieved period falls within their regular scheduled workday, straight time pay 
shall be rendered for those hours. 
 

(5) Call to Work on Day Off:  When an employee is called to work on a regular day 
off, they shall be paid at the overtime rate of time and one-half for the actual hours worked.  If an 
employee voluntarily postpones a vacation day to work, they shall be paid straight time. If an 
employee is provided at least 12 hours notice prior to a planned vacation day or regular day off 
that they will be required to postpone the vacation day or regular day off in order to report to 
work, they shall be paid straight time.  If an employee is provided with less than 12 hours notice 
prior to a planned vacation day that they will be required to postpone the vacation day in order to 
work, they shall be paid at the overtime rate of time and one-half for the actual hours worked.    
 

(6) Part-time and seasonal employees in Parks and Public Works Divisions shall be 
paid overtime in accordance with this Policy (See §2.2 and 2.3 of Park/Public Works collective 
bargaining agreement). 

509

Item 21.



 
 
 
307:     OVERTIME 
 
 

 2

 
(7)      Exempt Classes:  No overtime, or compensatory time off, will be paid to exempt 

employees, except as provided for in Comment (10). 
 

(8) Equally Distributed Overtime:  Insofar as practical, all overtime work shall be 
distributed equally between regular employees in a classification and approved by the 
employee’s Supervisor consistent with official operations. 
 

(9)       Compensatory Time Off:  In lieu of any paid overtime provision, an employee 
may, at his or her election, choose to apply for compensatory time off.  Compensatory time off 
will be earned at the rate of time and one-half for all hours worked over forty (40) in a week.  
Department Directors may limit the amount of accumulated compensatory time off within their 
respective departments, subject to the restrictions of maximum accumulations set forth in Federal 
law.  Requests for compensatory time leave will be granted within a reasonable time so long as it 
does not unduly disrupt the departments’ operations. 

 
Accrued balances of compensatory time at the termination of employment will be paid at a rate 
not less than the average rate received by the employee over the last three years of employment 
or the final regular rate, whichever is higher. 
 
 (10) Shift Pay: For public safety supervisors assigned to second shift in the police 
division, they shall receive additional pay in the amount of $20 per pay period.   For public 
safety supervisors assigned to third shift in the police division, they shall receive additional pay 
in the amount of $28 per pay period.   For public safety supervisors assigned to the fire division 
24-hour shift, effective January 7, 2023, they shall receive additional pay per pay period based 
on the following calculation:  
 
Midpoint of pay band x 144 hr. = annual dollar amount / 26 payrolls = bi-weekly amount  
 
Examples of shift pay for public safety supervisors assigned to the fire division 24-hour shift 
shown below based on FY23 pay band. Should public safety supervisors switch shifts and/or 
divisions within a pay period, the shift pay may be prorated. Note: rates shown in examples may 
change annually based on pay band. 
 
Position Calculation 
Fire Captain ($39.593 x 144 hr. = $5,701.39 (annually) / 26 payrolls = $219.28) 
PSS-Lieutenant  ($42.644 x 144 hr. = $6140.74 (annually) / 26 payrolls = $236.18) 
PSS-Captain ($48.737 x 144 hr. = $7018.13 (annually / 26 payrolls = $269.93) 

 
 

 (1011)    Extra Pay for Catastrophic Events, Natural Disasters, and other Exigent 
Circumstances: In the event grants are available, or there is a catastrophic event, natural disaster 
or other exigent circumstances that necessitate exempt employees working extraordinary hours, 

510

Item 21.



 
 
 
307:     OVERTIME 
 
 

 3

extra pay, which may or may not be computed on a time and a half basis, may be paid to these 
exempt employees, upon City Council approval.  Considerations by City Council will include, 
but are not limited to, whether the expense of the extra pay is reimbursable by the Federal 
Emergency Management Agency or some other governmental reimbursement program as well as 
the nature of the exigent circumstances and the duration of such events or circumstances. 
 
 (1211) Checking E-mail during off work hours.  Employees are not allowed to check 
email during off work hours unless a supervisor has approved such practice in advance and 
agreed to pay overtime. 

 
 

Amended  1/1/05 
 1/1/09 
 1/23/12 
 1/3/19 
 1/6/20 
 1/3/23 

511

Item 21.



512

Item 22.



513

Item 22.



514

Item 22.



515

Item 22.



516

Item 22.



517

Item 22.



518

Item 22.



519

Item 22.



520

Item 22.



521

Item 22.



522

Item 22.



523

Item 22.



524

Item 22.



525

Item 22.



526

Item 22.



527

Item 22.



528

Item 22.



529

Item 22.



530

Item 23.



531

Item 23.



532

Item 23.



533

Item 23.



534

Item 23.



535

Item 23.



536

Item 23.



537

Item 23.



538

Item 23.



539

Item 23.



540

Item 23.



541

Item 23.



542

Item 23.



543

Item 23.



544

Item 23.



545

Item 23.



546

Item 23.



547

Item 23.



548

Item 23.



549

Item 24.



550

Item 24.



551

Item 24.



552

Item 24.



553

Item 24.



554

Item 24.



555

Item 24.



556

Item 24.



557

Item 24.



558

Item 24.



559

Item 24.



560

Item 24.



561

Item 24.



562

Item 24.



563

Item 24.



564

Item 24.



565

Item 24.



566

Item 24.



567

Item 24.



568

Item 24.



569

Item 24.



570

Item 24.



571

Item 24.



572

Item 24.



573

Item 24.



574

Item 24.



575

Item 25.



576

Item 25.



577

Item 25.



578

Item 25.



579

Item 25.



580

Item 25.



581

Item 25.



582

Item 25.



583

Item 25.



584

Item 26.



585

Item 26.



586

Item 26.



587

Item 26.



588

Item 26.



589

Item 26.



590

Item 26.



591

Item 26.



592

Item 26.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

VISITORS, TOURISM AND CULTURAL PROGRAMS 
6510 HUDSON ROAD 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
PH: 319-268-4266 
FAX: 319-277-9707 

 MEMORANDUM 

With t  

  

 

 

 
 
 
 
 TO: Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 
 FROM: Jennifer Pickar, Tourism & Cultural Programs Manager 

 DATE: December 20, 2022 

 SUBJECT: Agreement with Iowa Economic Development Authority 
 
  
Please see attached an agreement with the Iowa Economic Development Authority that 
provides the Cedar Falls Tourism & Visitors Bureau access to statewide and localized 
visitation data from Arrivalist Co., a data vendor. 
 
The cost is $2,500 for access from January 16, 2023, to January 15, 2024. The Bureau 
will use this data for more effective and targeted tourism planning and marketing. 
Examples of data provided includes number of travelers, state of origin, day of travel, 
length of stay, seasonality, and more.  
 
Staff recommends approval. 
Best regards.  
 
 
Cc: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Community Development Director 
 

593

Item 27.



Travel Iowa Data Co-op Agreement 

This Data Co-op Agreement (“Agreement”) is made as of the effective date in Article 2 between Cedar 
Falls Tourism & Visitors Bureau located at 6510 Hudson Road, Cedar Falls, IA 50613 (“Partner”) and the 
Iowa Economic Development Authority (“IEDA”), located at 1963 Bell Avenue, Suite 200, Des Moines, 
IA 50315 (collectively “Parties,” individually “Party”).  

Whereas, IEDA has an agreement with Arrivalist Co. (“Arrivalist”) data vendor to provide access to 
statewide and localized visitation data, and 

Whereas, IEDA has agreed to allow Partner access to the data provided pursuant to the agreement with 
Arrivalist for tourism planning and marketing in the area served by Partner,  

Therefore, the Parties agree as follows: 

1. Obligations. Each party agrees to the following obligations: 
a. IEDA Obligations 

i. Upon receipt of payment pursuant to Article 1(a)(iii), IEDA agrees to provide 
a unique login to Partner to access state dispersion data dashboards on the 
Tableau platform available to IEDA pursuant to its agreement with Arrivalist, 
subject to the terms and conditions of IEDA’s agreement with Arrivalist. 

ii. IEDA agrees to coordinate with Arrivalist to provide online and recorded 
training and guides to Partner.  

iii. IEDA will invoice Partner the following amount: $2,500. 
 

b. Partner Obligations 
i. Partner agrees to only use Arrivalist data accessed pursuant to this 

agreement for tourism planning and marketing in the area served by 
Partner. 

ii. Partner agrees not to share the login provided by IEDA outside of their 
organization or to create reports for other organizations.   

iii. Partner agrees not to publicly share data accessed pursuant to this 
agreement without written permission from IEDA.  

iv. Partner agrees to pay the amount specified in Article 1(a)(iii) within 30 days 
of receipt of the invoice.  

 

2. Term and Termination.   
a. The effective date of this agreement shall be January 16, 2023, and the Agreement 
shall automatically terminate on January 15, 2024.  
b. This Contract may be terminated under any of the following circumstances: 

i. Upon written mutual agreement of Partner and IEDA.  
ii. As a result of the Partner’s breach of any provision of this Agreement. 
iii. As a result of the termination or reduction of funding to the IEDA. 

 
Partner’s access to data will be revoked on termination. IEDA will not refund any payment provided 
pursuant to this agreement. 

594

Item 27.



 
3. No Implied Agency.  Nothing in this Agreement shall be deemed to create any partnership, joint 

venture, joint enterprise, or agency relationship between or among the Parties, and no Party shall 
have the right to enter into contracts on behalf of, to legally bind, to incur debt on behalf of, or to 
otherwise incur any liability or obligation on behalf of, any other Party hereto, in the absence of a 
separate writing, executed by an authorized representative of such other Party.  Each Party shall be 
solely responsible for its employees and contractors used to perform under the Agreement.  
 

4. No promotional or political activity.  All Parties recognize the IEDA is an agency of the State of Iowa 
and agree that the sponsored project will not be used to support or oppose political candidates, 
political initiatives, or commercial products without the express written consent of all Parties in 
each instance.   
 

5. Indemnification. Partner agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the State of Iowa and IEDA, its or 
their officers, employees and agents, appointed and elected, and volunteers, from any and all costs, 
expenses, losses, claims, damages, liabilities, settlements and judgments, including reasonable value 
of the time spent by the Attorney General's Office, and the costs and expenses and reasonable 
attorneys' fees of other counsel retained to represent the State of Iowa or IEDA, related to or arising 
from its acts.  Contractor’s obligation for indemnification shall survive termination of this Contract. 

 
6. Force Majeure.  No Party shall be liable for damages resulting from any delay or default in 

performance of any obligation herein if the delay or default is due to conditions beyond their 
control, including without limitation Acts of God, government restriction, or any other cause beyond 
the reasonable control of the obligated Party. 

 
 
7. No Publicity.  Notwithstanding any specific deliverable herein, no Party shall issue a press release, 

hold a press conference, or otherwise refer to any other Party‘s involvement in this Agreement 
without the prior written consent of all Parties.  

 

8. Warranties.  Each Party hereby represents and warrants that:  (a) it has full power and authority to 
enter into this Agreement and perform its obligations hereunder; (b) it is duly organized, validly 
existing and in good standing under the laws of the jurisdiction of its origin; (c) it has not entered 
into, and during the Term will not enter into, any agreement that would prevent it from complying 
with this Agreement; and (d) it will comply with all applicable laws and regulations in its 
performance of this Agreement. 
 

9. Additional Terms.  This Agreement represents the entire agreement between the Parties and replaces 
any prior agreement or proposed variation.  Should there be any conflict between any forms or 
documents exchanged by the Parties, the terms and conditions of this Agreement shall govern.  This 
Agreement shall be amended only by mutual written agreement executed by all Parties or their 
respective designees.  The Parties agree that this Agreement will be governed by the Laws of the state 
of Iowa without regard to Iowa conflict of laws statutes/rules.  If any portion of this Agreement shall 
be declared illegal, void or otherwise unenforceable, the remaining provisions will not be affected, 
but will remain in full force and effect.  The parties agree that electronic and/or digital signatures are 
valid and enforceable. 

595

Item 27.



10. Notice.  For purposes of this Agreement, the following individuals shall serve as points of contact for
both Partner and IEDA:

PARTNER IEDA  
Jennifer Pickar Amy Zeigler  
Tourism Manager State Tourism Manager  
6510 Hudson Road 1963 Bell Avenue, Suite 200 
Cedar Falls, IA 50613 Des Moines, IA 50315  
319.268.4266 515.348.6259 
jennifer.pickar@cedarfallstourism.org amy.zeigler@iowaeda.com 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed as of the date 
specified in Article 2. 

FOR THE IOWA ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY: 

BY: 
 Deborah V. Durham, Director Date 

FOR PARTNER: 

BY: 
  Signature Date 

___________________________ 
Name and Title 

596

Item 27.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 

 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: Ben Claypool, Principal Engineer, PE, PhD 
 
 DATE: December 21, 2022 
 
 SUBJECT: Maintenance and Repair Agreement  
  Post-Construction Stormwater Management Plan 
  Cedar Falls High School 
 
 
The Post-Construction Stormwater Control Ordinance requires a formal Maintenance 
and Repair Agreement for the stormwater management plan. The Maintenance and 
Repair Agreement will require the benefited property to undergo, at a minimum, an 
annual inspection and to maintain records of installation, maintenance and repair 
activities of the stormwater control devices. The agreement will also create an 
easement for the City to inspect and repair the stormwater control devices if the 
property owners fail or refuse to meet the requirements of the Maintenance and Repair 
Agreement. The Maintenance and Repair Agreement is attached for your review.  
 
The Engineering Division has reviewed the stormwater management plan and 
Maintenance and Repair Agreement for the new Cedar Falls High School and finds it in 
accordance with City Code. The Engineering Division recommends the agreement be 
accepted by the City Council and recorded at the Black Hawk County Recorder’s Office.  
 
 
 
xc: Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 David Wicke, City Engineer 
 

597

Item 28.



598

Item 28.



599

Item 28.



600

Item 28.



601

Item 28.



602

Item 28.



603

Item 28.



604

Item 28.



605

Item 28.



606

Item 28.



607

Item 28.



608

Item 28.



609

Item 28.



610

Item 28.



611

Item 28.



612

Item 28.



613

Item 28.



614

Item 28.



615

Item 28.



616

Item 28.



617

Item 28.



618

Item 28.



619

Item 28.



620

Item 28.



621

Item 28.



622

Item 28.



623

Item 28.



624

Item 28.



625

Item 28.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 

 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: Ben Claypool, Principal Engineer, PE, PhD 
 
 DATE: December 21, 2022 
 
 SUBJECT: Maintenance and Repair Agreement  
  Post-Construction Stormwater Management Plan 
  Covenant Medical Center, 226 Bluebell Road, Cedar Falls, IA 
 
 
The Post-Construction Stormwater Control Ordinance requires a formal Maintenance 
and Repair Agreement for the stormwater management plan. The Maintenance and 
Repair Agreement will require the benefited property to undergo, at a minimum, an 
annual inspection and to maintain records of installation, maintenance and repair 
activities of the stormwater control devices. The agreement will also create an 
easement for the City to inspect and repair the stormwater control devices if the 
property owners fail or refuse to meet the requirements of the Maintenance and Repair 
Agreement. The Maintenance and Repair Agreement is attached for your review.  
 
The Engineering Division has reviewed the stormwater management plan and 
Maintenance and Repair Agreement for the Covenant Medical Center at 226 Bluebell 
Road, Cedar Falls, IA and finds it in accordance with City Code. The Engineering 
Division recommends the agreement be accepted by the City Council and recorded at 
the Black Hawk County Recorder’s Office.  
 
 
 
xc: Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 David Wicke, City Engineer 
 

626

Item 29.



Page 1 of 3 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Prepared by: Mindy M. Bryngelson, P.E., Executive Vice President, CGA Associates 

 

STORM WATER MAINTENANCE AND REPAIR AGREEMENT 

 

 

       This Agreement is made and entered into by and between Covenant Medical Center, 

(hereinafter “Owner”) and the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa (hereinafter “City”), on the _____ day 

of ________________, 20_____. 

       WHEREAS, Owner owns land in the City legally described on Exhibit A attached, that has 

been developed or will be developed by Owner (hereinafter “Benefited Property”); and 

       WHEREAS, the City acknowledges that a Storm Water Management Plan as required by 

Section 24-336 of the City’s Code of Ordinances (hereinafter “Plan”) has been submitted to and 

approved by the City; and 

       WHEREAS, said Plan includes construction of storm water management facilities on 

Owner’s land; and  

       WHEREAS, a Maintenance and Repair Agreement related to such storm water management 

facilities which complies with Section 24-341 of the City’s Code of Ordinances is required; and 

       WHEREAS, Owner acknowledges that all of the Benefited Property will benefit from the 

storm water management facilities; and 

       WHEREAS, the parties have reached agreement on the terms and conditions of these 

matters and now desire to set forth their agreement in writing. 

       NOW, THEREFORE it is mutually agreed by the parties as follows: 

       1.  Owner shall construct at Owner’s cost storm water management facilities in compliance 

with Section 24-341 of the City’s Code of Ordinances as set forth in the Plan submitted by 

Owner (hereinafter “Facilities”).   

       2.  Such Facilities shall be constructed as depicted on Exhibit B attached.  Any change to the 

composition of or size, shape or location of the Facilities must be approved by the City.  

627

Item 29.



628

Item 29.



629

Item 29.



Exhibit A 
 

Legal Description 
 

 
Parcel R being a division of Lot 35 Pinnacle Prairie Business Center North, City of Cedar Falls, IA. 

630

Item 29.



Exhibit B 
 

Stormwater Management Facilities 
 
  

631

Item 29.



632

Item 29.



 

Exhibit C 
 

Detention Basin Operation and Maintenance Manual 
 

Inspection activities shall be performed as follows: Any problems that are found shall be 
repaired immediately. 

 
BMP element: Potential problem: How I will remediate the problem: 

The entire BMP Trash/debris is present. Remove the trash/debris. 

The perimeter of the 

detention basin 

Areas of bare soil and/or 

erosion gullies has formed. 

Regrade the soil if necessary to remove 

the gully, and then plant a ground com 

and water until it is established. Provide 

lime and a one-time fertilizer application. 

Vegetation is too short or 

too long. 

Maintain vegetation at a height of 

approximately six inches. 

The inlet device: pipe or 

swale 

The pipe is clogged. Unclog the pipe. Dispose of the 

sediment off-site. 

The pipe is cracked or 

otherwise damaged. 

Replace the pipe. 

Erosion is occurring in the 

swale. 

Regrade the swale if necessary to 

smooth it out and provide erosion 

control devises such as reinforced 

turf matting or riprap to avoid future 

problems with erosion. 

The forebay Sediment has accumulated 

to a depth greater than the 

original design depth for 

sediment storage. 

Search for the source of the sediment 

and remedy the problem if possible. 

Remove the sediment and dispose of 

it in a location where it will not cause 

impacts to streams or the BMP. 

Erosion has occurred. Provide additional erosion protection 

such as reinforced turf matting or riprap 

if needed to prevent future erosion 

problems. 

Weeds are present. Remove the weeds, preferably by hand. 

If pesticide is used, wipe it on the plants 

rather than spraying. 

The main detention area Sediment has accumulated 

to a depth greater than the 

original design sediment 

storage depth. 

Search for the source of the sediment 

and remedy the problem if possible. 

Remove the sediment and dispose of 

it in a location where it will not cause 

impacts to streams or the BMP. 

Cattails, phragmites or other 

invasive plants com 50% 

of the basin surface. 

Remove the plants by wiping them 

with herbicide (do not spray). 

The embankment Shrubs have started to grow 

on the embankment. 

Remove shrubs immediately . 

A tree has started to grow 

on the embankment. 

Remove the tree immediately. 

The outlet device Clogging has occurred. Clean out the outlet device. 

Dispose of the sediment off-site. 

The outlet device is damaged. Repair or replace the outlet device. 

Washed stone in front of 

orifice outlet 

Silt build up on stone 

blocking outlet. 

Washed stone must be unclogged and 

replaced as needed. 

The receiving water Erosion or other signs of damage 

has occurred at the outlet. 

Repair damage. 

633

Item 29.



Exhibit D 

 

MAINTENANCE SCHEDULE 
STORM DETENTION SYSTEM 

 

 

DESCRIPTION: 
 

1) lnspect system within 60 days of initial operation. 
 

2) Four periodic inspections of system within first year of operation. 
 

3) lnspect system after each 100-year storm occurrence as measured at the National        
Weather Service reporting station at the Waterloo Regional Airport. 
 

4) After one year of system operation, inspect annually. 

634

Item 29.



1 
 

Exhibit E 
 

Stormwater Management Inspection/Maintenance Form 
To be kept on site 

 

 
PROJECT NAME:                                  

PROJECT LOCATION:                                                                                                                                                      

OWNER/LEGAL ENTITY:                   

TELEPHONE:                                    

E-MAIL:                                                                           

INITIAL DATE OF OPERATION:               
 

 

DATE ITEM INSPECTED 
INSPECTOR 

(Please Print) 
OBSERVATION & REMARKS 

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

635

Item 29.



2 
 

DATE ITEM INSPECTED 
INSPECTOR 
(Please Print) 

OBSERVATION & REMARKS 

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

 

636

Item 29.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
  
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: Luke Andreasen, PE 
 
 DATE: December 21, 2022 
 
 SUBJECT: Main Street Reconstruction (6th St. to University) 
  City Project Number: RC-000-3283 
  Temporary Easement 
 
The City of Cedar Falls is planning to reconstruct Main Street from 6th Street to 
University Avenue from a 4-lane roadway to a 3-lane roadway. Included in the project 
will be the intersections at Seerley Boulevard, 18th Street, 12th Street, and potentially 6th 
Street which will be replaced with single-lane roundabouts to improve the overall traffic 
safety and flow in all directions of travel. The project will also include improvements to 
the water main, sanitary sewer, storm sewer, sidewalks, and other miscellaneous 
roadway items. The project will require the acquisition of temporary easements from 
one-hundred twenty-nine (129) properties to complete construction. Partial acquisition 
for new city ROW will be required from nine (9) of these properties. In addition, two (2) 
total take acquisitions will be required to accommodate the new roundabout at the 
12th/Main intersection. The owner of the following property has accepted our offer: 
 

Parcel # Owner Address/Parcel ID Acquisition Type 

186 Daniel Clasby and Nikki Wilson-Clasby 1009 Main Street Temporary 

 
Attached is a strip map of the entire project where this property can by identified by 
parcel number. 
 
The Engineering Division of the Public Works Department recommends that the City 
Council state their support in the form of a resolution approving the acquisitions and 
authorize the Mayor to execute the agreements for the Main Street Reconstruction 
Project. 
 
If you have any questions or need additional information, please feel free to contact me. 
 
xc: Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 David Wicke, City Engineer 

637

Item 30.



p
w

:/
/f

o
th

-p
w

.b
e
n

tl
e
y

.c
o

m
:f

o
th

-p
w

-0
1

/D
o

c
u

m
e
n

ts
/C

li
e
n

ts
/C

e
d

a
r 

F
a
ll

s
 I

A
 C

/M
a
in

 S
tr

e
e
t 

R
e
c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti

o
n

/C
A

D
/D

is
p

la
y

s
/A

lt
e
rn

a
ti

v
e
s
/S

tr
ip

M
a
p

_
U

lt
im

a
te

_
P

U
B

5
/2

3
/2

0
2

2

11
14

15

16

17

18

21

22

23

24 27

28

29

30

31

33

32

40

39

38

37

36

41

44

42 43

45

46

47

50

51

52

53

54 55
56

57

58

59

62

63 64 65

66

67

68

71

72

73

74 75

76 79

80

81

82

83

84

87

90

91

92

93

94

95

96

97

98

99

102

103

104

105

106
107

108

109

110

111 114

115

116

117

120

121

122

123

124

125

126 129

130 131 132 133

134

135

138 139
142

150

151

154

155

156
157158

159

162

163

166

167

168

169
170

171

174

175

176177178179

180183

184

185

186

187

188

191

192

193

194

195

196

197

198

199

202

203

204

205

206

207

208
211

212213214

215

216

217

218

221

222223224225

226

227

230

231

232233

234

235

236

237240

241

242

244245

246

243

247
250

251

252

253

254

255

256

259

261

260

262
263

264

265
266

267
270

271

272

273

274

275

278

280

281

282

283

279

284

288

287

289

290

291

292

293

294295

296

298

300

299

BUS-45

AASHTO 2018 (US)
(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

BUS-45
AASHTO 2018 (US)

(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

BUS-45
AASHTO 2018 (US)

(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

BUS-45
AASHTO 2018 (US)

(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

B
U

S
-

4
5

A
A
S

H
T
O
 
2
0
1
8
 
(U

S
)

(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

B
U

S
-

4
5

A
A
S

H
T
O
 
2
0
1
8
 
(U

S
)

(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

BUS-45
AASHTO 2018 (US)

(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

BUS-45

AASHTO 2018 (US)
(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

B
U

S
-

4
5

A
A
S

H
T
O
 
2
0
1
8
 
(U

S
)

(c)
 2

02
2 

Tra
ns

oft
 S

olu
tio

ns
, I

nc
. A

ll 
rig

hts
 re

se
rve

d.

FEET

0 100

 WASHINGTON ST

Cedar Falls, Iowa
Main Street Reconstruction

STATE ST

W
 2

0
T

H
 S

T

 W
 2

1
S

T
 S

T

W
 2

2
N

D
 S

T

 S
E
E

R
L
E

Y
 B

L
V

D

 E
 2

0
T

H
 S

T

E
 2

1
S

T
 S

T

 W
 1

7
T

H
 S

T

W
 1

8
T

H
 S

T

 W
 1

5
T

H
 S

T

 W
 1

6
T

H
 S

T

 WASHINGTON ST

 E
 1

6
T

H
 S

T

E
 1

5
T

H
 S

T

 W
 1

4
T

H
 S

T

 W
 1

3
T

H
 S

T

W
 7

T
H

 S
T

 E
 7

T
H

 S
T

 W
 9

T
H

 S
T

W
 1

0
T

H
 S

T

 W
 1

1
T

H
 S

T

E
 1

1
T

H
 S

T

STATE ST

 W
 6

T
H

 S
T

 WASHINGTON ST

 E
 6

T
H

 S
T

W
 8

T
H

 S
T

E
 8

T
H

 S
T

E
 9

T
H

 S
T

E
 1

0
T

H
 S

T

STATE ST

 W
 1

2
T

H
 S

T

 E
 1

2
T

H
 S

T

E
 1

3
T

H
 S

T

E
 1

4
T

H
 S

T

2604 MAIN ST

D AND J INVESTMENTS INC
110 E SEERLEY BLVD

HARDING ENTERPRISES L C 2310 MAIN ST

LINCOLN SAVINGS BANK

TWIN CARD HOLDINGS LLC

201 E 22ND ST

201 PROPERTIES LLC

TWIN CARD HOLDINGS LLC

2120 MAIN ST

TWIN CARD HOLDINGS LLC

TWIN CARD HOLDINGS LLC

107 E 21ST ST

105 E 21ST ST

WEVERINK, MICHELE L

115 E 21ST ST

TRAETOW, MARY A

2018 MAIN ST

2C PROPERTIES LLC

106 E 21ST ST

104 E 21ST ST

MAI, JASON J

114 E 21ST ST

SULLIVAN,DIANE M TRUST

SULLIVAN,DANIEL E TRUST

2C PROPERTIES LLC

ANGOVE,VICKI TRUST

ANGOVE,GREGORY TRUST

111 E 20TH ST

SCHWAN, EMILY

MASON, THOMAS

115 E 20TH ST

ROBERTS, DONALD

1934 MAIN ST

DJS PROPERTIES LLC

DJS PROPERTIES LLC

T & R RENTALS LLC

106 E 20TH ST

MANLEY, LYNN A

114 E 20TH ST

DAGIT, DEBORAH K

DAGIT, SCOTT K

1932 MAIN ST

1930 MAIN ST

T & R RENTALS LLC

1820 MAIN ST

DEERY INVESTMENTS INC

1922 MAIN ST

KLEIN STORAGE LLC

1904 MAIN ST

DEERY INVESTMENTS INC

103 E 18TH ST

PROPERTIES L C

GRACIE MAE 

113 E 18TH ST

111 E 18TH ST

109 E 18TH ST

107 E 18TH ST

HESSE,C AND L LLC

123 E 18TH ST

ROUNDABOUT CENTER LLC

CVVC PROPERTIES L L C

120 E 18TH ST

118 E 18TH ST

TRP PROPERTIES L L C

1718 MAIN ST

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

1702 MAIN ST

PERMANENT PLANNING INC

1624 MAIN ST

CREW, JUDY L

1616 MAIN ST

RENTALS LLC

CHRISTOPHERSON 1612 MAIN ST

BIENFANG, MARY K

1604 MAIN ST

HAND, MARCEY J

HAND, CHRISTOPHE M

115 E 16TH ST

CRONKHITE, SARA N

CRONKHITE, LEE J

CRONKHITE, SARA N

CRONKHITE, LEE J

120 E 16TH ST

MONAGHAN, BRIAN P

MONAGHAN, BRIDGETTE R

1524 MAIN ST

ROLFES, LANA

ROLFES, DENNIS

1516 MAIN ST

CRALL, MICHAEL G

1504 MAIN ST

CRALL, MICHAEL

115 E 15TH ST

GREDER, GRANT

KEW, BRANDON C

119 E 15TH ST

STRICKLAND, JANE M

121 E 15TH ST

PEVERILL, TAMARA K

PEVERILL, KENNETH W

116 E 15TH ST

GEMINI PROPERTIES L L C

110 E 15TH ST

KRAAYENBRINK, MARLA R

KRAAYENBRINK, RANDY L

1422 MAIN ST

PRIEBE, JOSHUA

PRIEBE, DANIELLE

1416 MAIN ST

VORLAND, DAVID E

1404 MAIN ST

SHYMANSKY, BROCK JAMES

SHYMANSKY, JAMES ANDREW

SHYMANSKY, MICHAEL BOND

1403 STATE ST

SHYMANSKY, BROCK JAMES

SHYMANSKY, JAMES ANDREW

SHYMANSKY, MICHAEL BOND

114 E 14TH ST

PAULI, JACOB

PAULI, NIKOLE

1322 MAIN ST

MALBEC PROPERTIES LLC

1316 MAIN ST

KOG PROPERTIES LLC

1310 MAIN ST

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

1303 STATE ST

PAGEL, LA DONNA K

PAGEL, LARRY E

110 E 13TH ST

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

1121 STATE ST

KUEHL, JEANETTE M

1124 MAIN ST

MARTINEZ, SHEREE

MARTINEZ, MICHAEL R
1120 MAIN ST

LILLY, JAMES A

LILLY, JOSEPHINE A

1116 MAIN ST

COLLINS, JOHNPAUL

1112 MAIN ST

MC FARLANE, DIANE M

MC FARLANE, MONTELL G

1108 MAIN ST

CV PROPERTIES II LLC

1104 MAIN ST

TENTINGER, PETER

111 E 11TH ST

RENTALS OF IOWA LLC

115 E 11TH ST

GERKEN, SUSAN K

GERKEN, ROBERT D

1103 STATE ST

MB RENTALS II LLC

1021 STATE ST

SOUTER, JASMINE M

GASSMAN, MICHAEL

112 E 11TH ST

MC CARTY RENTALS LLC

1022 MAIN ST

SMITH, CHARLOTTE I

1018 MAIN ST

AIRJB LLC

1014 MAIN ST

1012 MAIN ST

1010 MAIN ST

WERNIMONT LLC 1006 MAIN ST

SMIGELSKI, JUSTIN P

1004 MAIN ST

WELSH INVESTMENTS LLC

109 E 10TH ST

HERNANDEZ, THERESA M

GRIFFIN, ELAINE C

117 E 10TH ST

RENTALS OF IOWA LLC

1003 STATE ST

JOHNSON, CHARLES T

JOHNSON, MELINDA C
921 STATE ST

JRICE, MIMI

114 E 10TH ST

MELICK, KENT

MELICK, JEAN

902 MAIN ST

FIRST PRESBYTER, IAN CHURCH C

FIRST PRESBYTER, IAN CHURCH C

124 E 9TH ST

KNAPP, WENDY S

114 E 9TH ST

RUSSELL, NATASHA K

RUSSELL, JAMES C

824 MAIN ST

SHYMANSKY, BROCK JAMES

SHYMANSKY, JAMES ANDREW

SHYMANSKY, MICHAEL BOND

816 MAIN ST

SHYMANSKY, BROCK JAMES

SHYMANSKY, JAMES ANDREW

SHYMANSKY, MICHAEL BOND

802 MAIN ST

800 MAIN ST

ST PATRICKS CHU, RCH

113 E 8TH ST

PIGGOTT, KAIA A

PIGGOTT, JUSTIN G

803 STATE ST

801 STATE ST

KEL MAR LC

721 STATE ST

PIGGOTT, KAIA A

PIGGOTT, JUSTIN G

720 MAIN ST

DEV PROPERTIES LLC

716 MAIN ST

WILCOX, PETER J

712 MAIN ST

710 MAIN ST

708 MAIN ST

706 MAIN ST

BAUCH, CHRISTINA B

BAUCH, JAMES C

702 MAIN ST

702 MAIN LLC

115 E 7TH ST

PROPERTIES LLC

RANDYS RENTAL 

703 STATE ST

123 E 7TH ST

RETH, ADAM

622 MAIN ST

KNUTSON, MARK L

KNUTSON, THERESA B
602 MAIN ST

FIRST NATIONAL BANK OF CF

528 MAIN ST

524 MAIN ST

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

515 MAIN ST

FARMERS STATE BANK

516 WASHINGTON ST

CHEVROLET CO INC

RASMUSSON 

HI YIELD LLC

116 W 6TH ST

RICHARDSON FUNERAL HOME INC

601 MAIN ST

CASEYS MARKETING COMPANY

613 MAIN ST

NELSON FUNERAL HOME INCHI YIELD LLC

123 W 7TH ST

HI YIELD LLC

123 W 8TH ST

705 MAIN ST

ST PATRICK CHURCH

115 W 8TH ST

ST PATRICK CHURCH

804 WASHINGTON ST

KEISER, CAROLINE

KEISER, DOUGLAS B

801 MAIN ST

SCHMITT, THERESA D

SCHMITT, KASEY J

805 MAIN ST

CNC INVESTMENTS L L C

811 MAIN ST

M J KNOX LLC
815 MAIN ST

JUANITA LLC

822 WASHINGTON ST

BECKER, AMY L

BECKER, BRIAN C

904 WASHINGTON ST

HARTON, HELEN C

116 W 9TH ST

RICKARD, CLARK J

RICKARD, TWYLA J

903 MAIN ST

RICKARD, CLARK J

909 MAIN ST

HOVENGA, MICHELLE

HOVENGA, REGGIE S

915 MAIN ST

CHASE, SCOTT A

921 MAIN ST

SHUMAKER, CHARLES A

SHUMAKER, AMANDA L

920 WASHINGTON ST

NEWTON, MARK R

122 W 10TH ST

PITZENBERGER, MARY

112 W 10TH ST

STICKFORT, SUSAN G

STICKFORT, THOMAS E

1003 MAIN ST

CHRISTMAN, JESSICA A

CHRISTMAN, KEVIN J

1009 MAIN ST

WILSON CLASBY, NIKKI J

CLASBY, DANIEL B

1015 MAIN ST

CALVARY BAPTIST, CHURCH OF C

1022 WASHINGTON ST

BUTLER, BETTY J

BUTLER, MICHAEL J

120 W 11TH ST

RUSSELL, MEGHAN D

RUSSELL, BEN J

118 W 11TH ST

COLSCH, JOSHUA

COLSCH, JENNIFER

COLSCH, JONATHAN

1103 MAIN ST

1103 MAIN CO OP INC

1109 MAIN ST

MERSHON RENTALS LLC

1115 MAIN ST

CUNNINGHAM, MICHAEL E

1117 MAIN ST

ANDERSON, JOYCE E1123 MAIN ST

1125 MAIN ST

K3D LLC

109 W 12TH ST

K3D LLC

1124 WASHINGTON ST

BEARDSLEY, BRYAN L

1204 WASHINGTON ST

RASMUSSON, DONALD R

114 W 12TH ST

RASMUSSON,JACK R FAMILY TRUST

RASMUSSON,PATRICIA M

1203 MAIN ST

CHRISTOPHERSON, VALERIE K

CHRISTOPHERSON, DAVID J

1209 MAIN ST

TIGERHAWK RENTALS LLC

1217 MAIN ST

MOSSMAN, OLIVIA

MOSSMAN, JONATHAN

1221 MAIN ST

MEINDERS, KOREY J

MEINDERS, CLAYTON

1220 WASHINGTON ST

WINTERHOF, KIM A

WINTERHOF, GARY L

1304 WASHINGTON ST

LEEPER, JENNIFER R

LEEPER, BRADLY D

1303 MAIN ST

ASCHERL, NANCY L

1309 MAIN ST

TURNER, PATRICIA M

TURNER, JOSEPH W

1315 MAIN ST

TURNER, PATRICIA M

TURNER, JOSEPH W

1321 MAIN ST

PONTIOUS, BIANCA

111 W 14TH ST

PURDY, KENT N

115 W 14TH ST

SCHLICHER, MARY A

1322 WASHINGTON ST

PHILLIPS, ANDREA L

1404 WASHINGTON ST

FUCHS, MIKAYLA

FUCHS, BENJAMIN

1403 MAIN ST

COURTNEY, JAY J

1411 MAIN ST

1409 MAIN ST

1407 MAIN ST

MAIN PROPERTIES LLC

1415 MAIN ST

RICHTER, RENELL S

RICHTER, DOUGLAS A

1421 MAIN ST

WEBB, KAREN J

WEBB, DALE S

115 W 15TH ST

RIDENOUR, KIMIE A

1422 WASHINGTON ST

RIDENOUR, KIMIE A

1504 WASHINGTON ST

NORTHWESTERN BELL TELEPHONE CO

1503 MAIN ST

STINER, EMILY M

STINER, DAVID HENRY

1509 MAIN ST

KOTZ, SUE A
1515 MAIN ST

MORAN, AIDAN

1523 MAIN ST

BLOOMQUIST, KARIN

BLOOMQUIST, MITCHEL

115 W 16TH ST

GILGEN, JAMES D

117 W 16TH ST

WERNIMONT REALTY LLC

1520 WASHINGTON ST

WERNIMONT REALTY LLC

1604 WASHINGTON ST

PROPERTIES L L C

OTTER CREEK

114 W 16TH ST

SWAYNE, JENNIFER

110 W 16TH ST

EVERSON, JULIE

1609 MAIN ST

BUNDY, STEVEN J

1615 MAIN ST

KOTZ, LINDSEY A1621 MAIN ST

MB RENTALS II LLC

1603 MAIN ST

MAKA PROPERTIES LLC

1622 WASHINGTON ST

FAUSER, JANE A

FAUSER, RICHARD D

1702 WASHINGTON ST

HOUG, DUSTIN W

1703 MAIN ST

KOG PROPERTIES LLC

1709 MAIN ST

MORD, SHARON J

MORD, JAN K

1711 MAIN ST

FISHER, MARY C

1715 MAIN ST

FREED RENTALS L L C

1721 MAIN ST

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

1722 WASHINGTON ST

DT RENTALS LLC

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

1907 MAIN ST

SLINKER, GEORGIA M

SLINKER, DARYL R

1901 MAIN ST

VETTER, LEANN M

VETTER, THOMAS J

1915 MAIN ST

KELLY R & J FAM TRUST

1925 MAIN ST

REISETTER, JENNIFER A

REISETTER, MATTHEW T

1929 MAIN ST

CLAYTON, JENNIFER

CLAYTON, JEREMY

1931 MAIN ST

ROBERT, RICHARD L

1935 MAIN ST

BUDKE, PATRICIA L

BUDKE, KENNETH A

115 W 20TH ST

ROBERT, RICHARD L
2004 WASHINGTON ST

HOEL, TERRY D

2003 MAIN ST

DOLLYS RENTALS LLC

2009 MAIN ST

NUSS, JAMES B

2017 MAIN ST

CHRISTOPHERSON, DAVID J

2021 MAIN ST

CBJ HOLDINGS LLC

2022 WASHINGTON ST

KERR, KATHLEEN A

110 W 21ST ST

SOUTHGATE PROPERTIES L C

2109 MAIN ST

REFSHAUGE, BONITA M

2115 MAIN ST

SOUTHGATE PROPERTIES L C

2121 MAIN ST

HICKS, BONNIE K

HAHN, JERRY W

2125 MAIN ST

PURDY, KENT N

2103 MAIN ST

THOMPSON, SANDRA L

117 W 22ND ST

ANDERA, JORDAN D

2203 MAIN ST

JACOBSON, DONALD L

2204 WASHINGTON ST

THOMPSON, JOANNA L

2205 MAIN ST

COULTHARD, VERLA F

COULTHARD, ALVIN E2215 MAIN ST

2217 MAIN ST

SCHWAKE, MARY L

SCHWAKE, JEFFREY A

2221 MAIN ST

RIVERSIDE INVESTMENTS LLC

2301 MAIN ST

RIVERSIDE INVESTMENTS LLC

2303 MAIN ST

CV PROPERTIES II LLC

2309 MAIN ST

EMAAD LLC

2323 MAIN ST

EMAAD LLC

2322 WASHINGTON ST

PARTNERSHIP

IVERSON AND REIGHARD

204 SEERLEY BLVD

Z PROPERTIES LLC

7404 UNIVERSITY AVE

D AND J INVESTMENTS INC

STATE OF IOWA

638

Item 30.

AndreasenL
Line



639

Item 30.



640

Item 30.



641

Item 30.



642

Item 30.



643

Item 30.



644

Item 30.



645

Item 30.



646

Item 30.



647

Item 30.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
  
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: Luke Andreasen, PE 
 
 DATE: December 21, 2022 
 
 SUBJECT: Main Street Reconstruction (6th St. to University) 
  City Project Number: RC-000-3283 
  Warranty Deeds 
 
The City of Cedar Falls is planning to reconstruct Main Street from 6th Street to 
University Avenue from a 4-lane roadway to a 3-lane roadway. Included in the project 
will be the intersections at Seerley Boulevard, 18th Street, 12th Street, and potentially 6th 
Street which will be replaced with single-lane roundabouts to improve the overall traffic 
safety and flow in all directions of travel. The project will also include improvements to 
the water main, sanitary sewer, storm sewer, sidewalks, and other miscellaneous 
roadway items. The project required partial acquisition for new city ROW from nine (9) 
properties. In addition, two (2) total take acquisitions were required to accommodate the 
new roundabout at the 12th/Main intersection. The City has closed on the following 
acquisitions: 
 

Parcel # Owner Address/Parcel ID Acquisition Type 

295 Emaad, LLC 2323 Main Street Partial 

204 D&V Holdings, LLC 1203 Main Street Total Take 

 
Attached is a strip map of the entire project where these properties can by identified by 
parcel number. 
 
The Engineering Division of the Public Works Department recommends that the City 
Council state their support in the form of a resolution approving the warranty deeds for 
these two property acquisitions. 
 
If you have any questions or need additional information, please feel free to contact me. 
 
xc: Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 David Wicke, City Engineer 

648

Item 31.



p
w

:/
/f

o
th

-p
w

.b
e
n

tl
e
y

.c
o

m
:f

o
th

-p
w

-0
1

/D
o

c
u

m
e
n

ts
/C

li
e
n

ts
/C

e
d

a
r 

F
a
ll

s
 I

A
 C

/M
a
in

 S
tr

e
e
t 

R
e
c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti

o
n

/C
A

D
/D

is
p

la
y

s
/A

lt
e
rn

a
ti

v
e
s
/S

tr
ip

M
a
p

_
U

lt
im

a
te

_
P

U
B

5
/2

3
/2

0
2

2

11
14

15

16

17

18

21

22

23

24 27

28

29

30

31

33

32

40

39

38

37

36

41

44

42 43

45

46

47

50

51

52

53

54 55
56

57

58

59

62

63 64 65

66

67

68

71

72

73

74 75

76 79

80

81

82

83

84

87

90

91

92

93

94

95

96

97

98

99

102

103

104

105

106
107

108

109

110

111 114

115

116

117

120

121

122

123

124

125

126 129

130 131 132 133

134

135

138 139
142

150

151

154

155

156
157158

159

162

163

166

167

168

169
170

171

174

175

176177178179

180183

184

185

186

187

188

191

192

193

194

195

196

197

198

199

202

203

204

205

206

207

208
211

212213214

215

216

217

218

221

222223224225

226

227

230

231

232233

234

235

236

237240

241

242

244245

246

243

247
250

251

252

253

254

255

256

259

261

260

262
263

264

265
266

267
270

271

272

273

274

275

278

280

281

282

283

279

284

288

287

289

290

291

292

293

294295

296

298

300

299

BUS-45

AASHTO 2018 (US)
(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

BUS-45
AASHTO 2018 (US)

(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

BUS-45
AASHTO 2018 (US)

(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

BUS-45
AASHTO 2018 (US)

(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

B
U

S
-

4
5

A
A
S

H
T
O
 
2
0
1
8
 
(U

S
)

(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

B
U

S
-

4
5

A
A
S

H
T
O
 
2
0
1
8
 
(U

S
)

(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

BUS-45
AASHTO 2018 (US)

(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

BUS-45

AASHTO 2018 (US)
(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

B
U

S
-

4
5

A
A
S

H
T
O
 
2
0
1
8
 
(U

S
)

(c)
 2

02
2 

Tra
ns

oft
 S

olu
tio

ns
, I

nc
. A

ll 
rig

hts
 re

se
rve

d.

FEET

0 100

 WASHINGTON ST

Cedar Falls, Iowa
Main Street Reconstruction

STATE ST

W
 2

0
T

H
 S

T

 W
 2

1
S

T
 S

T

W
 2

2
N

D
 S

T

 S
E
E

R
L
E

Y
 B

L
V

D

 E
 2

0
T

H
 S

T

E
 2

1
S

T
 S

T

 W
 1

7
T

H
 S

T

W
 1

8
T

H
 S

T

 W
 1

5
T

H
 S

T

 W
 1

6
T

H
 S

T

 WASHINGTON ST

 E
 1

6
T

H
 S

T

E
 1

5
T

H
 S

T

 W
 1

4
T

H
 S

T

 W
 1

3
T

H
 S

T

W
 7

T
H

 S
T

 E
 7

T
H

 S
T

 W
 9

T
H

 S
T

W
 1

0
T

H
 S

T

 W
 1

1
T

H
 S

T

E
 1

1
T

H
 S

T

STATE ST

 W
 6

T
H

 S
T

 WASHINGTON ST

 E
 6

T
H

 S
T

W
 8

T
H

 S
T

E
 8

T
H

 S
T

E
 9

T
H

 S
T

E
 1

0
T

H
 S

T

STATE ST

 W
 1

2
T

H
 S

T

 E
 1

2
T

H
 S

T

E
 1

3
T

H
 S

T

E
 1

4
T

H
 S

T

2604 MAIN ST

D AND J INVESTMENTS INC
110 E SEERLEY BLVD

HARDING ENTERPRISES L C 2310 MAIN ST

LINCOLN SAVINGS BANK

TWIN CARD HOLDINGS LLC

201 E 22ND ST

201 PROPERTIES LLC

TWIN CARD HOLDINGS LLC

2120 MAIN ST

TWIN CARD HOLDINGS LLC

TWIN CARD HOLDINGS LLC

107 E 21ST ST

105 E 21ST ST

WEVERINK, MICHELE L

115 E 21ST ST

TRAETOW, MARY A

2018 MAIN ST

2C PROPERTIES LLC

106 E 21ST ST

104 E 21ST ST

MAI, JASON J

114 E 21ST ST

SULLIVAN,DIANE M TRUST

SULLIVAN,DANIEL E TRUST

2C PROPERTIES LLC

ANGOVE,VICKI TRUST

ANGOVE,GREGORY TRUST

111 E 20TH ST

SCHWAN, EMILY

MASON, THOMAS

115 E 20TH ST

ROBERTS, DONALD

1934 MAIN ST

DJS PROPERTIES LLC

DJS PROPERTIES LLC

T & R RENTALS LLC

106 E 20TH ST

MANLEY, LYNN A

114 E 20TH ST

DAGIT, DEBORAH K

DAGIT, SCOTT K

1932 MAIN ST

1930 MAIN ST

T & R RENTALS LLC

1820 MAIN ST

DEERY INVESTMENTS INC

1922 MAIN ST

KLEIN STORAGE LLC

1904 MAIN ST

DEERY INVESTMENTS INC

103 E 18TH ST

PROPERTIES L C

GRACIE MAE 

113 E 18TH ST

111 E 18TH ST

109 E 18TH ST

107 E 18TH ST

HESSE,C AND L LLC

123 E 18TH ST

ROUNDABOUT CENTER LLC

CVVC PROPERTIES L L C

120 E 18TH ST

118 E 18TH ST

TRP PROPERTIES L L C

1718 MAIN ST

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

1702 MAIN ST

PERMANENT PLANNING INC

1624 MAIN ST

CREW, JUDY L

1616 MAIN ST

RENTALS LLC

CHRISTOPHERSON 1612 MAIN ST

BIENFANG, MARY K

1604 MAIN ST

HAND, MARCEY J

HAND, CHRISTOPHE M

115 E 16TH ST

CRONKHITE, SARA N

CRONKHITE, LEE J

CRONKHITE, SARA N

CRONKHITE, LEE J

120 E 16TH ST

MONAGHAN, BRIAN P

MONAGHAN, BRIDGETTE R

1524 MAIN ST

ROLFES, LANA

ROLFES, DENNIS

1516 MAIN ST

CRALL, MICHAEL G

1504 MAIN ST

CRALL, MICHAEL

115 E 15TH ST

GREDER, GRANT

KEW, BRANDON C

119 E 15TH ST

STRICKLAND, JANE M

121 E 15TH ST

PEVERILL, TAMARA K

PEVERILL, KENNETH W

116 E 15TH ST

GEMINI PROPERTIES L L C

110 E 15TH ST

KRAAYENBRINK, MARLA R

KRAAYENBRINK, RANDY L

1422 MAIN ST

PRIEBE, JOSHUA

PRIEBE, DANIELLE

1416 MAIN ST

VORLAND, DAVID E

1404 MAIN ST

SHYMANSKY, BROCK JAMES

SHYMANSKY, JAMES ANDREW

SHYMANSKY, MICHAEL BOND

1403 STATE ST

SHYMANSKY, BROCK JAMES

SHYMANSKY, JAMES ANDREW

SHYMANSKY, MICHAEL BOND

114 E 14TH ST

PAULI, JACOB

PAULI, NIKOLE

1322 MAIN ST

MALBEC PROPERTIES LLC

1316 MAIN ST

KOG PROPERTIES LLC

1310 MAIN ST

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

1303 STATE ST

PAGEL, LA DONNA K

PAGEL, LARRY E

110 E 13TH ST

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

1121 STATE ST

KUEHL, JEANETTE M

1124 MAIN ST

MARTINEZ, SHEREE

MARTINEZ, MICHAEL R
1120 MAIN ST

LILLY, JAMES A

LILLY, JOSEPHINE A

1116 MAIN ST

COLLINS, JOHNPAUL

1112 MAIN ST

MC FARLANE, DIANE M

MC FARLANE, MONTELL G

1108 MAIN ST

CV PROPERTIES II LLC

1104 MAIN ST

TENTINGER, PETER

111 E 11TH ST

RENTALS OF IOWA LLC

115 E 11TH ST

GERKEN, SUSAN K

GERKEN, ROBERT D

1103 STATE ST

MB RENTALS II LLC

1021 STATE ST

SOUTER, JASMINE M

GASSMAN, MICHAEL

112 E 11TH ST

MC CARTY RENTALS LLC

1022 MAIN ST

SMITH, CHARLOTTE I

1018 MAIN ST

AIRJB LLC

1014 MAIN ST

1012 MAIN ST

1010 MAIN ST

WERNIMONT LLC 1006 MAIN ST

SMIGELSKI, JUSTIN P

1004 MAIN ST

WELSH INVESTMENTS LLC

109 E 10TH ST

HERNANDEZ, THERESA M

GRIFFIN, ELAINE C

117 E 10TH ST

RENTALS OF IOWA LLC

1003 STATE ST

JOHNSON, CHARLES T

JOHNSON, MELINDA C
921 STATE ST

JRICE, MIMI

114 E 10TH ST

MELICK, KENT

MELICK, JEAN

902 MAIN ST

FIRST PRESBYTER, IAN CHURCH C

FIRST PRESBYTER, IAN CHURCH C

124 E 9TH ST

KNAPP, WENDY S

114 E 9TH ST

RUSSELL, NATASHA K

RUSSELL, JAMES C

824 MAIN ST

SHYMANSKY, BROCK JAMES

SHYMANSKY, JAMES ANDREW

SHYMANSKY, MICHAEL BOND

816 MAIN ST

SHYMANSKY, BROCK JAMES

SHYMANSKY, JAMES ANDREW

SHYMANSKY, MICHAEL BOND

802 MAIN ST

800 MAIN ST

ST PATRICKS CHU, RCH

113 E 8TH ST

PIGGOTT, KAIA A

PIGGOTT, JUSTIN G

803 STATE ST

801 STATE ST

KEL MAR LC

721 STATE ST

PIGGOTT, KAIA A

PIGGOTT, JUSTIN G

720 MAIN ST

DEV PROPERTIES LLC

716 MAIN ST

WILCOX, PETER J

712 MAIN ST

710 MAIN ST

708 MAIN ST

706 MAIN ST

BAUCH, CHRISTINA B

BAUCH, JAMES C

702 MAIN ST

702 MAIN LLC

115 E 7TH ST

PROPERTIES LLC

RANDYS RENTAL 

703 STATE ST

123 E 7TH ST

RETH, ADAM

622 MAIN ST

KNUTSON, MARK L

KNUTSON, THERESA B
602 MAIN ST

FIRST NATIONAL BANK OF CF

528 MAIN ST

524 MAIN ST

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

515 MAIN ST

FARMERS STATE BANK

516 WASHINGTON ST

CHEVROLET CO INC

RASMUSSON 

HI YIELD LLC

116 W 6TH ST

RICHARDSON FUNERAL HOME INC

601 MAIN ST

CASEYS MARKETING COMPANY

613 MAIN ST

NELSON FUNERAL HOME INCHI YIELD LLC

123 W 7TH ST

HI YIELD LLC

123 W 8TH ST

705 MAIN ST

ST PATRICK CHURCH

115 W 8TH ST

ST PATRICK CHURCH

804 WASHINGTON ST

KEISER, CAROLINE

KEISER, DOUGLAS B

801 MAIN ST

SCHMITT, THERESA D

SCHMITT, KASEY J

805 MAIN ST

CNC INVESTMENTS L L C

811 MAIN ST

M J KNOX LLC
815 MAIN ST

JUANITA LLC

822 WASHINGTON ST

BECKER, AMY L

BECKER, BRIAN C

904 WASHINGTON ST

HARTON, HELEN C

116 W 9TH ST

RICKARD, CLARK J

RICKARD, TWYLA J

903 MAIN ST

RICKARD, CLARK J

909 MAIN ST

HOVENGA, MICHELLE

HOVENGA, REGGIE S

915 MAIN ST

CHASE, SCOTT A

921 MAIN ST

SHUMAKER, CHARLES A

SHUMAKER, AMANDA L

920 WASHINGTON ST

NEWTON, MARK R

122 W 10TH ST

PITZENBERGER, MARY

112 W 10TH ST

STICKFORT, SUSAN G

STICKFORT, THOMAS E

1003 MAIN ST

CHRISTMAN, JESSICA A

CHRISTMAN, KEVIN J

1009 MAIN ST

WILSON CLASBY, NIKKI J

CLASBY, DANIEL B

1015 MAIN ST

CALVARY BAPTIST, CHURCH OF C

1022 WASHINGTON ST

BUTLER, BETTY J

BUTLER, MICHAEL J

120 W 11TH ST

RUSSELL, MEGHAN D

RUSSELL, BEN J

118 W 11TH ST

COLSCH, JOSHUA

COLSCH, JENNIFER

COLSCH, JONATHAN

1103 MAIN ST

1103 MAIN CO OP INC

1109 MAIN ST

MERSHON RENTALS LLC

1115 MAIN ST

CUNNINGHAM, MICHAEL E

1117 MAIN ST

ANDERSON, JOYCE E1123 MAIN ST

1125 MAIN ST

K3D LLC

109 W 12TH ST

K3D LLC

1124 WASHINGTON ST

BEARDSLEY, BRYAN L

1204 WASHINGTON ST

RASMUSSON, DONALD R

114 W 12TH ST

RASMUSSON,JACK R FAMILY TRUST

RASMUSSON,PATRICIA M

1203 MAIN ST

CHRISTOPHERSON, VALERIE K

CHRISTOPHERSON, DAVID J

1209 MAIN ST

TIGERHAWK RENTALS LLC

1217 MAIN ST

MOSSMAN, OLIVIA

MOSSMAN, JONATHAN

1221 MAIN ST

MEINDERS, KOREY J

MEINDERS, CLAYTON

1220 WASHINGTON ST

WINTERHOF, KIM A

WINTERHOF, GARY L

1304 WASHINGTON ST

LEEPER, JENNIFER R

LEEPER, BRADLY D

1303 MAIN ST

ASCHERL, NANCY L

1309 MAIN ST

TURNER, PATRICIA M

TURNER, JOSEPH W

1315 MAIN ST

TURNER, PATRICIA M

TURNER, JOSEPH W

1321 MAIN ST

PONTIOUS, BIANCA

111 W 14TH ST

PURDY, KENT N

115 W 14TH ST

SCHLICHER, MARY A

1322 WASHINGTON ST

PHILLIPS, ANDREA L

1404 WASHINGTON ST

FUCHS, MIKAYLA

FUCHS, BENJAMIN

1403 MAIN ST

COURTNEY, JAY J

1411 MAIN ST

1409 MAIN ST

1407 MAIN ST

MAIN PROPERTIES LLC

1415 MAIN ST

RICHTER, RENELL S

RICHTER, DOUGLAS A

1421 MAIN ST

WEBB, KAREN J

WEBB, DALE S

115 W 15TH ST

RIDENOUR, KIMIE A

1422 WASHINGTON ST

RIDENOUR, KIMIE A

1504 WASHINGTON ST

NORTHWESTERN BELL TELEPHONE CO

1503 MAIN ST

STINER, EMILY M

STINER, DAVID HENRY

1509 MAIN ST

KOTZ, SUE A
1515 MAIN ST

MORAN, AIDAN

1523 MAIN ST

BLOOMQUIST, KARIN

BLOOMQUIST, MITCHEL

115 W 16TH ST

GILGEN, JAMES D

117 W 16TH ST

WERNIMONT REALTY LLC

1520 WASHINGTON ST

WERNIMONT REALTY LLC

1604 WASHINGTON ST

PROPERTIES L L C

OTTER CREEK

114 W 16TH ST

SWAYNE, JENNIFER

110 W 16TH ST

EVERSON, JULIE

1609 MAIN ST

BUNDY, STEVEN J

1615 MAIN ST

KOTZ, LINDSEY A1621 MAIN ST

MB RENTALS II LLC

1603 MAIN ST

MAKA PROPERTIES LLC

1622 WASHINGTON ST

FAUSER, JANE A

FAUSER, RICHARD D

1702 WASHINGTON ST

HOUG, DUSTIN W

1703 MAIN ST

KOG PROPERTIES LLC

1709 MAIN ST

MORD, SHARON J

MORD, JAN K

1711 MAIN ST

FISHER, MARY C

1715 MAIN ST

FREED RENTALS L L C

1721 MAIN ST

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

1722 WASHINGTON ST

DT RENTALS LLC

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

1907 MAIN ST

SLINKER, GEORGIA M

SLINKER, DARYL R

1901 MAIN ST

VETTER, LEANN M

VETTER, THOMAS J

1915 MAIN ST

KELLY R & J FAM TRUST

1925 MAIN ST

REISETTER, JENNIFER A

REISETTER, MATTHEW T

1929 MAIN ST

CLAYTON, JENNIFER

CLAYTON, JEREMY

1931 MAIN ST

ROBERT, RICHARD L

1935 MAIN ST

BUDKE, PATRICIA L

BUDKE, KENNETH A

115 W 20TH ST

ROBERT, RICHARD L
2004 WASHINGTON ST

HOEL, TERRY D

2003 MAIN ST

DOLLYS RENTALS LLC

2009 MAIN ST

NUSS, JAMES B

2017 MAIN ST

CHRISTOPHERSON, DAVID J

2021 MAIN ST

CBJ HOLDINGS LLC

2022 WASHINGTON ST

KERR, KATHLEEN A

110 W 21ST ST

SOUTHGATE PROPERTIES L C

2109 MAIN ST

REFSHAUGE, BONITA M

2115 MAIN ST

SOUTHGATE PROPERTIES L C

2121 MAIN ST

HICKS, BONNIE K

HAHN, JERRY W

2125 MAIN ST

PURDY, KENT N

2103 MAIN ST

THOMPSON, SANDRA L

117 W 22ND ST

ANDERA, JORDAN D

2203 MAIN ST

JACOBSON, DONALD L

2204 WASHINGTON ST

THOMPSON, JOANNA L

2205 MAIN ST

COULTHARD, VERLA F

COULTHARD, ALVIN E2215 MAIN ST

2217 MAIN ST

SCHWAKE, MARY L

SCHWAKE, JEFFREY A

2221 MAIN ST

RIVERSIDE INVESTMENTS LLC

2301 MAIN ST

RIVERSIDE INVESTMENTS LLC

2303 MAIN ST

CV PROPERTIES II LLC

2309 MAIN ST

EMAAD LLC

2323 MAIN ST

EMAAD LLC

2322 WASHINGTON ST

PARTNERSHIP

IVERSON AND REIGHARD

204 SEERLEY BLVD

Z PROPERTIES LLC

7404 UNIVERSITY AVE

D AND J INVESTMENTS INC

STATE OF IOWA

649

Item 31.

AndreasenL
Line



650

Item 31.



651

Item 31.



652

Item 31.



653

Item 31.



654

Item 31.



655

Item 31.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Planning & Community Services Division 

   

   

 

 

 
 
 

 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 

 FROM: Michelle Pezley, Planner III 

 DATE: January 3, 2023 

 SUBJECT: Site Plan Review for Triplex on Lot 4, Hanna Park (Case # SP22-012) 
  

 
REQUEST: 
 

Site Plan Approval for construction of a new tri-plex in C-1 District 
 

PETITIONER: 
 

Kyle Larson, LGC; Lary Koosmann EI, LSI, Clapsaddle-Garber Associates, Inc 
 

LOCATION: 
 

Southwest of the intersection of Valley High Dr. and Cedar Heights Dr.    

 

 
PROPOSAL 
The applicant proposes to construct a one-
story, tri-plex on Lot 4 of Hanna Park 
Commercial Addition.  The property is 
located on Valley High Drive west of Cedar 
Heights Drive.   Each unit will consist of 
three bedrooms, two bathrooms, and a 
three-car garage.    
 
BACKGROUND 
The property is zoned C-1 Commercial.  
Within the C-1 Zoning district, residential 
uses are subject to review by the Planning 
and Zoning Commission and approval by the 
City Council.   
 
The Future Land Use map shows this 
property area as Medium Density 
Residential. 
 
The parcel is also within the 500-year flood 
plain.  
         

656

Item 32.



 ANALYSIS 
C-1 Zoning District is intended to provide opportunities for commercial uses next to 
residential districts that meet the needs of the local residents.  C-1 Zoning District 
requires a site plan review for all residential uses to make sure that the residential uses 
are appropriate to the surrounding residential uses and existing commercial uses.  The 
proposed residential use must be in conformance with the standards of the 
comprehensive plan and recognized principles of civic design, land use planning, and 
landscape architecture.   
 
Building design shall be of an appropriate architectural design and utilize similar building 
materials compared to similar residential facilities in residential zoning districts.  
Minimum required building and parking lot setbacks shall generally conform to those 
requirements specified in the R-4 district. However, these standards may be modified by 
the city council in consideration of special circumstances of the property in question. Lot 
area and density standards shall generally conform to standards outlined in the R-4 
district. 
 
Following is a review of the zoning ordinance requirements for the proposed 
development:  
 

 
 
 

657

Item 32.



1) Use: The Future Land Use map shows this property area as Medium Density 
Residential. Residential uses are allowed within the C-1 Zoning District if the use is 
in conformance to the Comprehensive Plan.  The Residential uses are subject to 
review by the Planning and Zoning District and approval from City Council.   
 

2) Setbacks: C-1 Zoning District designates the setbacks residential uses to follow the 
R-4 Zoning District.   

 
The Hanna Park Commercial Addition Plat shows a 25-foot setback from the front 
and the western property line.  The applicant proposes to maintain the setbacks as 
shown on the plat.  Building setbacks are satisfied.   
 

3) Parking:  The code requires two parking spaces per unit plus one space for each 
additional bedroom over two bedrooms, which in this case is three parking spaces.  
The applicant proposes three car garage for each unit and three spaces within the 
driveways that will be at least 31 feet wide by 25 feet long.  The amount and 
dimension of the parking spaces comply. 

 

4) Landscaping: For 
residential uses in the 
C-1 District, amenities 
appropriate for 
residential uses such 
as open green space, 
landscaping, and 
outdoor recreation 
areas must be provided 
generally consistent 
with other similar 
residential 
developments. The 
applicant proposes 
shrubs along the 
driveways (Green 
Mountain Boxwoods) 
and six trees (Autumn 
Gold Ginkgo and 
Skyline Honey Locust).  The rest of the area will be grass or native vegetation 
along the unnamed tributary. The landscaping will fit in well with the surrounding 
residential neighborhood. 

 

658

Item 32.



5) Building Design:  The applicant proposes the tri-plex to be single story modern 
design.  All the garage doors will face the street with the front doors setback from the 

front plane of the garages. This development design will fit into the existing 
neighborhood as most of the existing garages are closer to the street than the front 
doors.   
 

6) Lighting: The C-1 Zoning District does not have specific lighting design guidelines. 
However, all new site plans require a review of the lighting to consider potential 
nuisance issues and incompatibilities. The applicant proposes lighting over the front 
door to make sure the walkway is visible.   Lighting is acceptable. 

 
7) Signage:  Signage shall be limited and of a size, height and scale normally allowed 

in residential neighborhoods.  No signage proposed.   
 

8) Storm Water Management: The applicant proposes to have an on-site detention 
pond and diversion berm adjacent to the unknown tributary that meets the 
stormwater quality and detention requirements. Prior to construction, a City SWPPP 
permit will need to be obtained to ensure that erosion controls are placed properly. 
Criterion is met, subject to final engineering review prior to issuance of a building 
permit.  

 
TECHNICAL COMMENTS 
Cedar Falls Utilities (CFU) has reviewed the proposed plans for the Triplex at Hanna 
Park.  Water, electric, gas, and communications utility services are available in 
accordance with the service policies of CFU.  Water is available from an 8” water main 
along the north side of Valley High Drive and gas is available from a gas main along the 
south side of Valley High Drive.  The 3-Plex Site Plan shows a 2” copper water service 
and a 6” sanitary sewer service installed into the center unit of the 3-plex.  These 
services need to be designed to meet current plumbing standards/codes for services to 
the 3-plex.  This is for developer information and for city plumbing code enforcement 
information. 
 
Removal and replacement of the trees or any other landscaping located within these 
areas that may be disturbed by utility maintenance, repair, or replacement is the 
responsibility of the property owner. 
 
Any other minor technical issues will be addressed at the time of a building plan review. 
 
A courtesy notice to surrounding property owners was mailed on November 15, 2022. 
No public comments were received.  

659

Item 32.



 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION  
Planning & Zoning Commission recommends approval of SP22-012, a residential site 
plan within the C-1 Zoning District for property located at Lot 4 of Hanna Park Commercial 
Addition, subject to:   

1) Any comments or direction specified by the Planning & Zoning Commission. 
2)  Conformance with all staff recommendations and technical requirements.  
3) Construction of the proposed residential development must commence (i.e., 

city building permits secured) within one year following city council approval, 
or the original approval shall be void and the application shall be resubmitted 
to the planning and zoning commission and the city council, to review any 
changes in local conditions. 

 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 

Introduction 
Discussion  
11/22/2022 
 
 
 
 
 
 
12/14/2022 

The Commission then considered a site plan review for a tri-plex on Lot 4 of Hanna 
Park Commercial Addition. Mr. Weintraut stated that this item on agenda cannot be 
discussed as Mr. Larson will be recusing himself from this discussion because of a 
conflict of interest. And thereafter the commission does not have a quorum to discuss 
the item. In such a case, this item will be automatically deferred to the next Planning 
and Zoning meeting. Mr. Weintraut also apologized to public attendees who were 
here to make comments on the item. Acting Chair Hartley mentioned that this item 
will be now introduced and discussed in the next available Planning and Zoning 
meeting and apologized to the public attendees. 
 
The next item for consideration by the Commission was a site plan review for a tri-plex 
on Lot 4 of the Hanna Park Commercial Addition. Mr. Leeper joined the meeting at this 
time by phone. Mr. Larson recused himself from this item and the one following. Acting 
Chair Lynch introduced the item and Ms. Pezley provided background information. She 
explained that the applicant is proposing a new tri-plex at the corner of Valley High Drive 
and Cedar Heights Drive. The parcel is within the C-1 Commercial District and residential 
uses are allowed if reviewed by the Planning and Zoning Commission and approved by 
City Council. One condition is that the future land use map is supportive of the proposed 
residential uses. The land use map was amended in November 2021 to allow for medium 
density residential use in this area. Each unit will consist of three bedrooms, two 
bathrooms and a three-car garage and each driveway will be off Valley High Drive. The 
subject lot is in the 500-year floodplain. Development is allowed on lots of record within 
the 500-year floodplain as long as it meets the floodplain regulations and is properly 
elevated one foot above the 500 year floodplain. Ms. Pezley discussed the setback, 
parking, landscaping, lighting and stormwater requirements, noting that all are met. She 
provided renderings of the proposed tri-plex design and stated that staff recommends 
approval of the project subject to comments or direction specified by the Commission, 
conformance with all staff recommendations and technical comments, and the stipulation 
that construction of the proposed residential development must commence within one 
year of City Council approval, with an option for a one-year extension.  
 
Ms. Crisman asked Ms. Pezley to discuss the stormwater management issues. Ms. 
Pezley explained that any stormwater that leaves the parcel has to meet two-year 
release rate for existing development for a 100-year storm event. These criteria were 
reviewed by the Engineering division. Larry Kuzman, Clapsaddle Garber Associates, 
explained that he is not aware of any stormwater issues the neighbors are having so he 

660

Item 32.



cannot comment on what issues there may be. He explained the current flow pattern with 
the uncontrolled run-off and discussed how with development the run-off will be 
controlled and directed toward the creek.   
 
Ms. Grybovich made a motion to approve the item. Ms. Crisman seconded the motion. 
The motion was approved unanimously with 5 ayes (Leeper, Crisman, Grybovych, Lynch 
and Moser), 1 abstention and 0 nays. 

 
 
Attachments: Location Map 
  Complete Site Plan Set 
  Building Elevations 
 

661

Item 32.



Gr
ee

n
Cr

ee
k

Valley
Lutheran
School

Greenhill Trail

Ce
da

rH
eig

hts
D r

T ra
il

â

â

â

â

â

â

Cardinal Ct
Gre

en 
Cre

ek 
Rd

Lovejoy Dr

Valley High Dr

Cal
lumCt

Leg
acy

 Ln

W e
dg

ew
oo

d D
r

Greenhill Dr

Ce
da

r H
eig

hts
 Dr

E Greenhill Rd

C-2

C-1

R-1

C-2

R-1

R-2MU

A-1

RP

Cedar Falls Planning and Zoning Commission
November 22, 2022

Site Plan review for a new Triplex
Lot 4, Hanna Park Commercial Add.
SW corner of Valley High & Cedar Heights 

Waterloo
Regional
Airport

Falls
Access

Cedar Falls

University Ave
Rainbow Dr

Orchard Dr

E Dunkerton Rd

W 18th St

Hu
ds

on
Rd

W Ridgeway Ave

CenterS t

Ma
in

St

E Greenhill Rd

W 12th St

W 1st St

E V ikin

g Rd
W Viking Rd

Un
ion

 Rd

W 27th St

SM
ain

St

Lincoln St

NUnion Rd E Lone Tree Rd

Le
ver

see
Rd

E 1st St
®¬57

®¬58

®¬27 £¤63£¤20

£¤218

^

Location
Map

662

Item 32.



UNNAMED TR
IB

UTA
RY

C
ED

AR
 H

EI
G

H
TS

 D
R

IV
E

12

11

10

LO
T 5

HANNA PARK

COMMER
CIAL  

ADDITIO
N

LO
T 

1
HA

NN
A 

PA
RK

TH
IR

D 
AD

DI
TI

ON

297.2'

26
8.

6'

41
6.8

5

41
.5

'

39
.6

'

39
.6

'

39
.5

'

29.0' TYP.

31' TYP. (3)

30.0'

17.0'

25.0'

25.2'

San(D) San(D) San(D) San(D) San(D) San(D)

Sa
n

W
W

15.0'

DRAIN
AGE EASEMENT

DRAIN
AGE E

ASEM
ENT

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 U

N
IT

S

EX. WATERMAIN

EX. 15" SANITARY MAIN

35.0'

San(D) San(D)EX. 15" PVC @ 0.31%

SD SD SD SD SD SD

PROPOSED 87 LF 2" COPPER WATER SERVICE

PROPOSED 62 LF 6" SANITARY SERVICE
FL ELEV @ MAIN = 894.42 (FIELD VERIFY)

500 YEAR FLOODPLAIN HWL ELEV: 904.6' (AS
DESIGNATED BY CITY OF CEDAR FALLS)
BOUNDARY DERIVED FROM TOPOGRAPHIC
SURVEY COMPLETED 10-05-2020

100 YEAR FLOODPLAIN HWL ELEV:899.3'
(FROM GREENHILL CULVERT SITUATION
PLAN) BOUNDARY OBTAINED FROM LOT
5 FLOOD STUDY

EX SAN MANHOLE
RIM: 907.37
FL IN (E): 894.05
FL OUT (W): 894.00 EX SAN MANHOLE

RIM: 905.88
FL OUT (W): 894.97

VALLEY HIGH DRIVE

149.1'

54
.0

'

48.0'

29.0' TYP. (3)

25
.0

'

25
.0

'

DECK

DECK

DECK

E
X

IS
TI

N
G

 T
R

A
IL

/S
ID

E
W

A
LK

 3" OUTLET PIPE
25 LF @ 1.0 %

OUTLET FL= 901.17

DETENTION POND
BOTTOM = 901.00

TOP = 903.00

PROPOSED DETENTION
AND DIVERSION BERM
(SEE GRADING SHEET)

LOT 4
48,580 SF

HANNA PARK
COMMERCIAL ADDITION

DOC# 2008-004155

WATER QUALITY BERM
(SEE GRADING SHEET)

908.30

908.10

908.08

90
7.7

8

90
7.6

1
90

7.4
9

90
7.3

3

90
7.2

1 907.04

90
8.1

0

90
8.0

8

908.3

908.3

908.30

908.30

90
8.1

0
90

8.0
8

3.10'

3.10'

3.13'

2.91'
2.91'

3.55'

3.50'

4.35'

5.45'
5.90'

5.24'
5.77'

4.55'

907 906

90
5

904

906
905

907

908

Clapsaddle-Garber Associates, Inc
5106 Nordic Drive

Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613

Ph 319-266-0258
www.cgaconsultants.com

SHEET NO.

DRAWN:
CHECKED:

DATE:
DATE:

APPROVED: DATE:

PROJECT NO.DESIGNED: DATE:REVISIONNO. DATEBY DATEBYREVISIONNO.

J:
\5

65
6\

dw
g\

Ex
hi

bi
ts

\5
65

6_
Lo

t 4
 S

ite
 P

la
n 

3p
le

x 1
10

12
2.

dw
g 

- e
x.0

1 
-  

11
-0

1-
22

 - 
3:

25
pm

 - 
lk

oo
sm

an
n

CGA HANNA PARK LOT 4
EX.01

5656

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 3-PLEX SITE PLAN
####

####

####

#### ####

####

####

####

N
N

0

GRAPHIC SCALE

40'20'

SINGLE STORY 3-PLEX SITE PLAN
LOT 4, HANNA PARK COMMERCIAL ADDITION

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA

OWNER

LG COMPANIES

DEVELOPER

LGC HOMES
5601 UNIVERSITY AVE.
CEDAR FALLS, IA 50613
319-266-6609

ZONING

C-1 - NEIGHBORHOOD COMMERCIAL

PARKING SPACES (EACH UNIT)

REQUIRED: 2.5
PROVIDED: 3

IMPERVIOUS AREAS

LOT       = 9424 sf
ROW     =  2133 sf

VICINITY MAP

NOT TO SCALE

PROJECT LOCATION

1.
0%

1.
0%

1.
0%

FFE =908.30

1.
5%

2.
6%

4.
8%

1. MINIMUM FLOOR ELEVATION TO BE 1 FOOT ABOVE THE 500
YEAR HWL = 905.60

2. NO  LOW WATER ENTRY POINT. STRUCTURE DOES NOT HAVE
A BASEMENT, AND LOWEST ADJACENT GRADE WILL BE 0.5
FEET ABOVE THE 500-YR HWL ≈ 905.10

3. NO MORE THAN 3 FEET OF FILL ALLOWED IN THE 500-YR
FLOOD ZONE

25' BUILDING SETBACK LINE

DRAINAGE EASEMENT AND
SETBACK LINE

4' WIDE PCC SIDEWALK

PROPOSED PCC DRIVEWAY

10' UTILITY EASEMENT

A

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

I

J

A

B

A

DDD

E

E

E

A

F

PROPOSED 15' X 31' PCC
PATCH

PROPOSED BUILDING
UNIT

30' CLEAR SIGHT ZONE

EXISTING FIRE HYDRANT

450 LF ± SILT FENCE

G G G

C
H

I I

J

SITE NOTES:

GENERAL NOTES:

FFE - EG =X.XX'

INDEX OF SHEETS

SHEET NO. DESCRIPTION

663

Item 32.

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX.01

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX.02

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRADING PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX.03

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDSCAPE PLAN



UNNAMED TR
IB

UTA
RY

C
ED

AR
 H

EI
G

H
TS

 D
R

IV
E

12

11

10

San(D) San(D) San(D) San(D) San(D) San(D)

Sa
n

W
W

San(D) San(D)

SD SD SD SD SD SD

VALLEY HIGH DRIVE

PROPOSED DETENTION
AND DIVERSION BERM

907 906

90
5

904

906
905

907

908

904

903

902903

902

902

901
901
901

90
3

90
2

90
2

90
3

90
1

90
2

90
3

90
4

90
0

89
9

89
8

89
7

90
2

901

900

901

WATER QUALITY BERM
(SEE GRADING SHEET)

Clapsaddle-Garber Associates, Inc
5106 Nordic Drive

Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613

Ph 319-266-0258
www.cgaconsultants.com

SHEET NO.

DRAWN:
CHECKED:

DATE:
DATE:

APPROVED: DATE:

PROJECT NO.DESIGNED: DATE:REVISIONNO. DATEBY DATEBYREVISIONNO.

J:
\5

65
6\

dw
g\

Ex
hi

bi
ts

\5
65

6_
Lo

t 4
 S

ite
 P

la
n 

3p
le

x 1
10

12
2.

dw
g 

- e
x.0

2 
-  

11
-0

1-
22

 - 
3:

25
pm

 - 
lk

oo
sm

an
n

CGA HANNA PARK LOT 4
EX.02

5656

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 3-PLEX GRADING PLAN
####

####

####

#### ####

####

####

####

N
N

0

GRAPHIC SCALE

40'20'

1. DIVERSION BERM TO STRAIGHT GRADE FROM DETENTION
BASIN TO THE PROPOSED SIDEWALK TO THE NORTH.

2. SHALLOW SWALE TO BE BUILT ON THE NORTHWEST SIDE OF
THE BERM TO FUNNEL STORM WATER INTO THE DETENTION
BASIN.

3. USE MACADAM TO LINE THE WATER QUALITY BERM TO
PREVENT EROSION.

GENERAL NOTES:

2:12:1
0.

28

2.12'

3" DIAMETER PIPE
TO PREVENT CLOGGING

DETENTION POND
FLOOR: 901.05

TOP OF CLAY BERM: 901.28

CLAY WATER QUALITY BERM

WATER QUALITY BERM
NTS

LAYER OF MACADAM TO PREVENT EROSION

2:1

V
A

R
IE

S

VARIES
DETENTION POND

FLOOR: 901.05

EARTH BERM

DIVERSION BERM DETAIL
NTS

2:1

SHALLOW SWALE

664

Item 32.



UNNAMED TR
IB

UTA
RY

C
ED

AR
 H

EI
G

H
TS

 D
R

IV
E

12

11

10

LO
T 5

HANNA PARK

COMMER
CIAL  

ADDITIO
N

LO
T 

1
HA

NN
A 

PA
RK

TH
IR

D 
AD

DI
TI

ON

San(D) San(D) San(D) San(D) San(D) San(D)

Sa
n

W
W

DRAIN
AGE EASEMENT

DRAIN
AGE E

ASEM
ENT

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 U

N
IT

S

San(D) San(D)

SD SD SD SD SD SD

VALLEY HIGH DRIVE

DECK

DECK

DECK

GT (1)

GT (1)

GB (3)

BGM (4)

BGM (4)
BGM (4)

BGM (4)

GB (1)

EXISTING TREE LINE
TO BE CUT BACK TO
ACCOUNT FOR 30' CLEAR
ZONE AND ALLOW THE
STRUCTURE TO BE BUILT

Clapsaddle-Garber Associates, Inc
5106 Nordic Drive

Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613

Ph 319-266-0258
www.cgaconsultants.com

SHEET NO.

DRAWN:
CHECKED:

DATE:
DATE:

APPROVED: DATE:

PROJECT NO.DESIGNED: DATE:REVISIONNO. DATEBY DATEBYREVISIONNO.

J:
\5

65
6\

dw
g\

Ex
hi

bi
ts

\5
65

6_
Lo

t 4
 L

an
ds

ca
pe

 P
la

n 
3p

le
x 0

91
12

02
2.

dw
g 

- L
ot

 4
 E

xh
ib

it 
-  

11
-0

1-
22

 - 
3:

10
pm

 - 
lk

oo
sm

an
n

CGA HANNA PARK LOT 4
EX. 03

5656

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 3-PLEX LANDSCAPE PLANKNW 11-25-20

0

GRAPHIC SCALE

40'20'

N

LANDSCAPE NOTES:

1. PLANT QUANTITIES ARE FOR INFORMATION ONLY; DRAWING SHALL PREVAIL IF CONFLICT
OCCURS.  CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR CALCULATING OWN QUANTITIES AND BASING BID
ACCORDINGLY.

2. CONTRACTOR SHALL PLACE SHREDDED HARDWOOD BARK MULCH AROUND ALL TREES AND IN
ALL PLANTING BEDS TO A DEPTH OF 3".  WALNUT PRODUCTS ARE PROHIBITED.

3. KIND, SIZE AND QUALITY OF PLANT MATERIAL SHALL CONFORM TO AMERICAN STANDARD FOR
NURSERY STOCK, ANSI 260-2004, OR MOST RECENT EDITION.

4. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL REPORT SUBSURFACE SOIL OR DRAINAGE PROBLEMS TO THE
ENGINEER.

5. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL SHOW PROOF OF PROCUREMENT, SOURCES, QUANTITIES AND
VARIETIES FOR ALL SHRUBS, PERENNIALS, ORNAMENTAL GRASSES WITHIN 21 DAYS FOLLOWING
THE AWARD OF CONTRACT.  TIMELY PROCUREMENT OF ALL PLANT MATERIAL IS ESSENTIAL TO
THE SUCCESSFUL COMPLETION AND INITIAL ACCEPTANCE OF THE PROJECT.

6. SUBSTITUTIONS SHALL ONLY BE ALLOWED WHEN THE CONTRACTOR HAS EXHAUSTED ALL
SOURCES FOR THE SPECIFIED MATERIAL, AND HAS PROVEN THAT THE SPECIFIED MATERIAL IS
NOT AVAILABLE.  THE CONTRACTOR MUST PROVIDE NAME AND VARIETY OF SUBSTITUTION TO
THE ENGINEER  FOR APPROVAL PRIOR TO TAGGING OR PLANTING.  SUBSTITUTIONS SHALL BE
NEAREST EQUIVALENT SIZE OF VARIETY OF PLANT HAVING SAME ESSENTIAL CHARACTERISTICS.

7. ALL PLANT MATERIAL SHALL BE NURSERY GROWN, SOUND, HEALTHY, VIGOROUS AND FREE
FROM INSECTS, DISEASE AND INJURIES, WITH HABIT OF GROWTH THAT IS NORMAL FOR THE
SPECIES.  SIZES SHALL BE EQUAL TO OR EXCEEDING SIZES INDICATED ON THE PLANT
SCHEDULE.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL SUPPLY PLANTS IN QUANTITY AS SHOWN ON DRAWINGS.

8. TAKE OR PLACE ALL PLANTS IN FIELD AS INDICATED ON THE DRAWINGS OR AS DIRECTED BY
THE ENGINEER FOR APPROVAL BY THE OWNER PRIOR TO PLANTING.

9. ALL DISTURBED AREAS NOT OTHERWISE COVERED BY BUILDING, PAVEMENT, AND LANDSCAPE
BEDS SHALL BE SODDED WITH TYPE 1 LAWN MIXTURE AS APPROVED BY THE OWNER.

PLANT SCHEDULE

KEY BOTANICAL NAME COMMON NAME QTY. SIZE

Deciduous Overstory Trees

GB Ginkgo biloba 'Autumn Gold' Autumn Gold Ginkgo 4 1" Container or 2" BB

GT Gleditsia triacanthos 'skyline' Skyline HoneyLocust 4 2.5" Caliber

Shrubs

BGM Buxus x 'Green Mountain' Green Mountain Boxwood 16 3.5" POT

POINT SCHEDULE

DESCRIPTION POINTS / UNIT EX. STREET EX. SITE PR. STREET PR. SITE

OVERSTORY TREES

4" CALIPER OR GREATER 100

3" CALIPER OR GREATER 90

2" CALIPER OR GREATER 80 2 4
UNDERSTORY TREES

2" CALIPER OR GREATER 40

1.5" CALIPER OR GREATER 30

1" CALIPER OR GREATER 20

SHRUBS

5 GALLON OR GREATER 10

2 GALLON OR GREATER 5 16
CONIFERS

10' HEIGHT OR GREATER 100

8' HEIGHT OR GREATER 90

6' HEIGHT OR GREATER 80

5' HEIGHT OR GREATER 40

4' HEIGHT OR GREATER 30

3' HEIGHT OR GREATER 20

TOTAL POINTS 160 400

665

Item 32.



666

Item 32.



12'-6" 6'-6" 20'-0" 11'-0" 12'-0 1/2" 6'-6" 20'-0" 11'-0" 12'-0 1/2" 6'-6" 20'-0" 11'-0"

19'-0" 31'-0" 18'-6 1/2" 31'-0" 18'-6 1/2" 31'-0"

149'-1"

7
'-
0

"
3

9
'-
0

"
8

'-
0

"

5
4

'-
0

"

25'-0" 25'-0" 24'-6 1/2" 25'-0" 24'-6 1/2" 25'-0"

50'-0" 49'-6 1/2" 49'-6 1/2"

149'-1"

4
'-
0

"
2

1
'-
0

"
2

9
'-
0

"

5
4

'-
0

"

4
'-
0

"

4
'-
0

"

GARAGE
(UNEXCAVATED)

GARAGE
(UNEXCAVATED)

GARAGE
(UNEXCAVATED)

16'-3" M.O.

8'-3" M.O.

16'-3" M.O.

8'-3" M.O.

16'-3" M.O.

8'-3" M.O.

STOOP
(UNEXCAVATED)

MAIN FLOOR
(SLAB ON GRADE)

STOOP
(UNEXCAVATED)

MAIN FLOOR
(SLAB ON GRADE)

STOOP
(UNEXCAVATED)

MAIN FLOOR
(SLAB ON GRADE)

18'-4" 0'-8" 10'-4" 19'-4"

2
7

'-
8

"
0

'-
8

"
4

'-
3

 1
/2

"
2

0
'-
0

 1
/2

"

6
'-
0

"

11'-2" 7'-2" 29'-8"

2
0

'-
4

"

5
'-
8

"

6
'-
0

"

18'-6 1/2" 0'-8" 10'-4" 19'-4" 18'-6 1/2" 0'-8" 10'-4" 19'-4"

11'-4 1/2" 7'-2" 29'-8" 11'-4 1/2" 7'-2" 29'-8"

2
7

'-
8

"
0

'-
8

"
4

'-
3

 1
/2

"
2

0
'-
0

 1
/2

"

2
7

'-
8

"
0

'-
8

"
4

'-
3

 1
/2

"
2

0
'-
0

 1
/2

"

8
'-
0

"

8
'-
0

"

2
0

'-
4

"

2
0

'-
4

"

3
7

'-
8

"

3
7

'-
8

"

3
7

'-
8

"

CUSTOM DESIGN

2022 Floorplan Logic, LLC

SCALE: (319) 266-6609 BRIAN LAFONTAINE
THIS DOCUMENT MAY NOT BE DUPLICATED without expressed permission from Floorplan Logic LLC.
For Illustrative and bidding purposes only.  Proprietary and confidential. 2022 Floorplan Logic, LLC. All rights reserved.

07/25/2022

1/8" = 1'-0"

x

LGC - MICHAELSEN III - FTG/FNDN - REV. 2

LOT xx of xxxx, CEDAR FALLS, IA

1/8" = 1'-0"

FOOTING/FOUNDATION FLOOR PLAN

667

Item 32.



W D

D
W

REF.

W D

D
W

REF.

W D

D
W

REF.

WH

F
U

R
N

FD
WH

F
U

R
N

FD
WH

F
U

R
N

FD

7
'-
0

"
3

9
'-
0

"
8

'-
0

"

25'-0" 25'-0" 24'-6 1/2" 25'-0" 24'-6 1/2" 25'-0"

1
3

'-
0

 1
/2

"

12'-6" 6'-6" 20'-0" 11'-0 1/2" 12'-0" 6'-6" 20'-0" 11'-0" 12'-0 1/2" 6'-6" 20'-0" 11'-0"

4
'-
0

"

11'-7"

1
3

'-
0

"

13'-0"10'-9 1/2"

23'-11"

2
'-
0

"

8'-0"

8'-3 1/2" 3'-3 1/2"

8
'-
0

"
2

'-
0

"
1

1
'-
1

1
"

8
'-
6

"
3

'-
6

"
2

0
'-
1

"

8'-3 1/2" 3'-3 1/2"

1
4

'-
9

"

7'-8 1/2"

5
'-
0

"
7

'-
9

"

1
3

'-
0

 1
/2

"

5'-0"

5'-0" 2'-8 1/2"

2
'-
1
0

"

2
6

2
6

2
6

2
6

6
0

6
0

2
6

2
8

SHELF

BENCH/HOOKS

2
8

6'-3" 6'-3"

2'-2 1/2" 8'-1" 8'-4 1/2" 6'-4"

5'-10" 7'-5 1/2" 9'-6" 2'-2 1/2"

6'-0" x 7'-0"

2'-6" x 5'-0" 2'-6" x 5'-0" 9'-0" x 5'-0"

6'-0" x 5'-0" 2'-6" x 5'-0" 2'-6" x 5'-0"

6
'-
0

"

4
'-
6

"

F
L
A

T
 B

A
R

 T
O

P

4'-0"

2
8

'-
1

"

6
'-
0

" 
x 

6
'-
8

" 
P

A
T

IO
 D

O
O

R

8
'-
0

"

16' x 8' OH DOOR

8' x 8' OH DOOR

19'-0" 31'-0 1/2" 18'-6" 31'-0" 18'-6 1/2" 31'-0"

7'-2"

MASTER

BEDROOM

DINING

BEDROOM 2

BEDROOM 3

BATH

ENTRY

W.I.C.

MUD/LDRY.

M. BATH

KITCHEN

GARAGE

6'-10 1/2"

5
4

'-
0

"

2
6

2
6

2
6

2
6

6
0

6
0

2
6

2
8

2
8

SHELF

BENCH/HOOKS

2
8

F
L
A

T
 B

A
R

 T
O

P

6
'-
0

" 
x 

6
'-
8

" 
P

A
T

IO
 D

O
O

R

16' x 8' OH DOOR

8' x 8' OH DOOR

MASTER

BEDROOM

DINING

BEDROOM 2

BEDROOM 3

BATH

ENTRY

W.I.C.

MUD/LDRY.

M. BATH

1
3

'-
0

"

1
3

'-
0

"

13'-0"10'-9 1/2"

23'-11"

2
'-
0

"

8'-3 1/2" 3'-3 1/2"

8
'-
0

"
2

'-
0

"
1

1
'-
1

1
"

8
'-
6

"
3

'-
6

"
2

0
'-
1

"

8'-3 1/2" 3'-3 1/2"

1
4

'-
9

"

7'-8 1/2"

5
'-
0

"
7

'-
9

"

1
3

'-
0

 1
/2

"

5'-0"

2'-8 1/2"

2
6

2
6

2
6

2
6

6
0

6
0

2
6

2
8

SHELF

BENCH/HOOKS

2
8

6'-0" x 7'-0"

6
'-
0

"

4
'-
6

"

F
L
A

T
 B

A
R

 T
O

P

4'-0"

2
8

'-
1

"

6
'-
0

" 
x 

6
'-
8

" 
P

A
T

IO
 D

O
O

R

8
'-
0

"

16' x 8' OH DOOR

8' x 8' OH DOOR

7'-2"

MASTER

BEDROOM

DINING

BEDROOM 2

BEDROOM 3

BATH

ENTRY

W.I.C.

MUD/LDRY.

M. BATH

FAMILY ROOM

11'-7"

5'-0"

2
'-
1
0

"

11'-7"

13'-0"10'-9 1/2"

23'-11"

8'-5 1/2"

8'-3 1/2" 3'-3 1/2"

8
'-
0

"
2

'-
0

"
1

1
'-
1

1
"

8
'-
6

"
3

'-
6

"
2

0
'-
1

"

8'-3 1/2" 3'-3 1/2"

1
4

'-
9

"

7'-8 1/2"

5
'-
0

"
7

'-
9

"

1
3

'-
2

 1
/4

"

5'-0"

5'-0" 2'-8 1/2"

2
'-
1
0

"

4
'-
6

"

4'-0"

2
8

'-
1

"

8
'-
0

"

2
'-
0

"
1

3
'-
0

"

1
3

'-
0

"

6
'-
0

"

7'-2"

5'-9 1/2" 6'-3"

3
'-
0

"

6'-0" x 7'-0"

50'-0" 49'-6 1/2" 49'-6 1/2"

149'-1"

149'-1"

2
9

'-
0

"
2

1
'-
0

"
4

'-
0

"

5
4

'-
0

"

1'-9" 8'-1" 8'-4 1/2" 6'-4"

5'-10" 7'-5 1/2" 9'-6" 2'-2 1/2"

1'-9" 8'-1" 8'-4 1/2" 6'-4"

5'-10" 7'-5 1/2" 9'-6" 2'-2 1/2"

2'-6" x 5'-0" 2'-6" x 5'-0" 9'-0" x 5'-0"

6'-0" x 5'-0" 2'-6" x 5'-0" 2'-6" x 5'-0"

2'-6" x 5'-0" 2'-6" x 5'-0" 9'-0" x 5'-0"

6'-0" x 5'-0" 2'-6" x 5'-0" 2'-6" x 5'-0"

ZERO ENTRY

ZERO ENTRY

4
'-
0

"

4
'-
3

 1
/2

"

2'-0" 7'-9" ZERO ENTRY ZERO ENTRY

3
0

3
0

3
0

ATTIC
ACCESS

FAMILY ROOM

PATIO
14' x 12'

PATIO
14' x 12'

PATIO
14' x 12'

1
2

'-
0

"

3
0

4
0

4
'-
0

"

4
'-
3

 1
/2

"

2'-0" 7'-9"

3
0

4
0

4
'-
0

"

4
'-
9

"

2'-0" 7'-9"

4
0

GARAGE GARAGE

KITCHEN KITCHEN

1
2

'-
0

"

1
2

'-
0

"

10'-4" 19'-6 1/2" 6'-10 1/2" 10'-4" 19'-6 1/2" 6'-10 1/2" 10'-4" 19'-8 1/2"

MECH. MECH. MECH.

ATTIC
ACCESS

ATTIC
ACCESS

ZERO ENTRY ZERO ENTRY

7
'-
0

"
1

3
'-
2

"
1

2
'-
5

"
6

'-
5

"

4
'-

0
" 

x 
1

'-
6
"

4
'-
0

"

3
'-
0

"

2
8

2
8

17'-0 1/2" 17'-0 1/2" 17'-0 1/2"

2
'-

0
" 

x 
3

'-
6
"

4
'-

0
" 

x 
1

'-
6
"

2
3

'-
1

0
 1

/2
"

2
6

'-
1

 1
/2

"

2
'-

0
" 

x 
3

'-
6
"

CUSTOM DESIGN

2022 Floorplan Logic, LLC

SCALE: (319) 266-6609 BRIAN LAFONTAINE
THIS DOCUMENT MAY NOT BE DUPLICATED without expressed permission from Floorplan Logic LLC.
For Illustrative and bidding purposes only.  Proprietary and confidential. 2022 Floorplan Logic, LLC. All rights reserved.

07/25/2022

1/8" = 1'-0"

x

LGC - MICHAELSEN III - MNFL - REV. 2

LOT xx of xxxx, CEDAR FALLS, IA

1/8" = 1'-0"

MAIN FLOOR PLAN

668

Item 32.



4

12

4

12

3'-0"3'-0"

4

12

4

12

3'-0" 3'-0"

4

12

4

12

CUSTOM DESIGN

2022 Floorplan Logic, LLC

SCALE: (319) 266-6609 BRIAN LAFONTAINE
THIS DOCUMENT MAY NOT BE DUPLICATED without expressed permission from Floorplan Logic LLC.
For Illustrative and bidding purposes only.  Proprietary and confidential. 2022 Floorplan Logic, LLC. All rights reserved.

07/25/2022

1/8" = 1'-0"

x

LGC - MICHAELSEN III - ELEV - REV. 2

LOT xx of xxxx, CEDAR FALLS, IA

1/8" = 1'-0"

FRONT ELEVATION

1/8" = 1'-0"

REAR ELEVATION

1/8" = 1'-0"

LEFT ELEVATION
1/8" = 1'-0"

RIGHT ELEVATION

669

Item 32.



CUSTOM DESIGN

2022 Floorplan Logic, LLC

SCALE: (319) 266-6609 BRIAN LAFONTAINE
THIS DOCUMENT MAY NOT BE DUPLICATED without expressed permission from Floorplan Logic LLC.
For Illustrative and bidding purposes only.  Proprietary and confidential. 2022 Floorplan Logic, LLC. All rights reserved.

07/25/2022

1/16" = 1'-0"

x

LGC - MICHAELSEN III - ROOF/3D - REV. 2

LOT xx of xxxx, CEDAR FALLS, IA

1/16" = 1'-0"

ROOF PLAN

FRONT/LEFT PERSPECTIVE VIEW

BACK/LEFT PERSPECTIVE VIEW

670

Item 32.



W D

D
W

REF.

W D

D
W

REF.

W D

D
W

REF.

WH

F
U

R
N

FD
WH

F
U

R
N

FD
WH

F
U

R
N

FD

MASTER

BEDROOM

DINING

BEDROOM 2

BEDROOM 3

BATH

ENTRY

W.I.C.

MUD/LDRY.

M. BATH

KITCHEN

GARAGE

MASTER

BEDROOM

DINING

BEDROOM 2

BEDROOM 3

BATH

ENTRY

W.I.C.

MUD/LDRY.

M. BATH

MASTER

BEDROOM

DINING

BEDROOM 2

BEDROOM 3

BATH

ENTRY

W.I.C.

MUD/LDRY.

M. BATH

FAMILY ROOMFAMILY ROOM

PATIO
14' x 12'

PATIO
14' x 12'

PATIO
14' x 12'

GARAGE GARAGE

KITCHEN KITCHEN

MECH. MECH. MECH.

CUSTOM DESIGN

2022 Floorplan Logic, LLC

SCALE: (319) 266-6609 BRIAN LAFONTAINE
THIS DOCUMENT MAY NOT BE DUPLICATED without expressed permission from Floorplan Logic LLC.
For Illustrative and bidding purposes only.  Proprietary and confidential. 2022 Floorplan Logic, LLC. All rights reserved.

07/25/2022

1/8" = 1'-0"

x

LGC - MICHAELSEN III - AREAS - REV. 2

LOT xx of xxxx, CEDAR FALLS, IA

TOTAL MAIN FLOOR FINISHED AREA: 4,790 S.F.

TOTAL GARAGE AREA: 2,031 S.F.

MAIN FLOOR FINISHED AREA (RIGHT UNIT): 1,596 S.F.

MAIN FLOOR FINISHED AREA (MIDDLE UNIT): 1,592 S.F.

MAIN FLOOR FINISHED AREA (LEFT UNIT): 1,602 S.F.

GARAGE AREA (RIGHT UNIT): 679 S.F.

GARAGE AREA (MIDDLE UNIT): 675 S.F.

GARAGE AREA (LEFT UNIT): 677 S.F.

PATIO AREA (TYPICAL UNIT): 168 S.F.

1/8" = 1'-0"

MAIN FLOOR AREA PLAN

671

Item 32.



W D

D
W

REF.

W D

D
W

REF.

W D

D
W

REF.

WH

F
U

R
N

FD

WH

F
U

R
N

FD

WH

F
U

R
N

FD

MASTER

BEDROOM

DINING

BEDROOM 2

BEDROOM 3

BATH

ENTRY

W.I.C.

MUD/LDRY.

M. BATH

KITCHEN

GARAGE

MASTER

BEDROOM

DINING

BEDROOM 2

BEDROOM 3

BATH

ENTRY

W.I.C.

MUD/LDRY.

M. BATH

MASTER

BEDROOM

DINING

BEDROOM 2

BEDROOM 3

BATH

ENTRY

W.I.C.

MUD/LDRY.

M. BATH

FAMILY ROOMFAMILY ROOM

PATIO

14' x 12'

PATIO

14' x 12'

PATIO

14' x 12'

GARAGE GARAGE

KITCHEN KITCHEN

MECH. MECH. MECH.

1/8" = 1'-0"

MAIN FLOOR PRESENTATION PLAN

672

Item 32.



673

Item 32.



 
 

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 

 FROM: Chris Sevy, Planner I 

 DATE: January 3, 2023 

 SUBJECT: Rezoning with new Zoning Agreement – Midway Business Park (RZ22-003)  
 

 
REQUEST: 
 

Rezoning with new Zoning Agreement - Midway Business Park 
 

PETITIONER: 
 

Lucas Moore, Oak District LLC 
 

LOCATION: 
 

Lots 5 & 6 Midway Business Park: Greenhill Circle 

 

 
Lucas Moore of Oak District LLC submitted a request to amend the zoning restriction placed 
on Lots 5 and 6 of the Midway Business Park subdivision. This restriction only allows for the 
construction of professional service office buildings and the applicant wishes to establish a 
nursing home/senior assisted living facility on said lots. 
 
The Midway Business Park is currently zoned R-4 and is governed by a zoning agreement 
executed in 1994 which was amended in 2018 to allow another assisted living facility on lots 7 
& 8. While another amendment to this agreement would normally be appropriate, it was 
discovered that the legal description of the applicable land area in the original agreement 
contained errors. To update the restrictions, the best course of action is to rescind the original 
agreement and draft a new one (utilizing the accurate legal description) that includes the 
conditions that remain relevant today; specifically, the use restrictions in the Midway Business 
Park. It is also necessary to properly rezone to R-4 as the original 1994 resolution to rezone 
used the same legal description as the agreement. 
 
At its meeting on December 14, 2022, the Planning and Zoning Commission held a public 
hearing and recommended approval of the rezoning to R-4 with a new zoning agreement of the 
Midway Business Park. Therefore, staff now requests that City Council set a public hearing date 
for January 17, 2023 to formally consider the zoning agreement and rezoning request. A full 
staff report and summary report of the Planning and Zoning Commission meetings will be 
provided to City Council prior the public hearing. 
 
Attachment: Zoning Location Map 

674

Item 33.



Valley
High Park

Greenhill Trail

Ce
da

r H
eig

hts
 Dr

 Tr
ail

â

â
â

â

â

â

Greenhill Dr

Jodi Dr

Sager Ave

Scenic Dr

Midway Dr

Cardinal Ct

Lovejoy Dr

Valley High Dr

Greenhill Cir
Cardinal Dr

Cal
lumCt

Greenhill Rd

Ce
da

r H
eig

hts
 Dr

E Greenhill Rd

C-1 R-4

C-2

R-1

R-2

RP

Cedar Falls City Council
January 3, 2023

Zoning Agreement update & Rezone to R-4
Midway Business Park
All properties on Greenhill Circle

Waterloo
Regional
Airport

Falls
Access

Cedar Falls

University Ave
Rainbow Dr

Orchard Dr

E Dunkerton Rd

W 18th St

Hu
ds

on
Rd

W Ridgeway Ave

CenterS t

Ma
in

St

E Greenhill Rd

W 12th St

W 1st St

E V ikin

g Rd
W Viking Rd

Un
ion

 Rd

W 27th St

SM
ain

St

Lincoln St

NUnion Rd E Lone Tree Rd

Le
ver

see
Rd

E 1st St
®¬57

®¬58

®¬27 £¤63£¤20

£¤218

^
Location

Map

675

Item 33.



 
 

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 

 FROM: Chris Sevy, Planner I 

 DATE: January 3, 2023 

 SUBJECT: Rezone Midway 2nd Addition (RZ22-005) 
   
 

 
REQUEST: 
 

Rezoning of subject properties noted below from R-4 Residence District to R-
1 Residence District 

 
PETITIONER: 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
 

LOCATION: 
 

Lots 1-4 of Midway 2nd Addition (3019-3028 Lovejoy Dr)  

 

 
The zoning agreement that restricts the use of these lots to single family in the R-4 District is in 
the process of being rescinded and replaced as errors were discovered in the legal description 
while updating the restrictions in that agreement. The agreement has served its purpose in the 
establishment of single-family uses, and it makes more sense at this time to now regulate these 
lots the same way as the rest of the residential neighborhood. 
 
The four residential properties at the end of Lovejoy Drive are currently zoned R-4, High Density 
Residential. To ensure that multifamily and non-residential uses are not established in that 
single-family neighborhood counter to the intent of the original agreement (however unlikely), 
staff is recommending rezoning these properties to R-1 to be consistent with the rest of the 
residential neighborhood.  Staff has reached out to these property owners to explain the 
situation and discuss rezoning their properties to R-1 and have received no objections. 
 
At its meeting on December 14, 2022, the Planning and Zoning Commission held a public 
hearing and recommended approval of the rezoning to R-1 of the subject properties. Therefore, 
staff now requests that City Council set a public hearing date for January 17, 2023 to formally 
consider the rezoning request. A full staff report and summary report of the Planning and Zoning 
Commission meetings will be provided to City Council prior the public hearing. 
 
Attachment: Zoning Location Map 

676

Item 34.



Gr
ee

n
Cr

ee
k

Valley
High Park

Greenhill Trail

Ce
da

r H
eig

hts
 Dr

 Tr
ail

â

â
â

â

â

â

â

â

Cardinal Ct

Leg
acy

 Ln

Lovejoy Dr

Valley High Dr

Greenhill Dr

Cardinal Dr

Cal
lumCt

Ce
da

r H
eig

hts
 Dr

E Greenhill Rd

C-1

R-4

R-1

C-2

R-1

R-2MU

A-1

RP

Cedar Falls City Council
January 3, 2023

Rezone from R-4 to R-1
Lots 1 through 4, Midway 2nd Addition
3019, 3020, 3027, 3028 Lovejoy Dr.

Waterloo
Regional
Airport

Falls
Access

Cedar Falls

University Ave
Rainbow Dr

Orchard Dr

E Dunkerton Rd

W 18th St

Hu
ds

on
Rd

W Ridgeway Ave

CenterS t

Ma
in

St

E Greenhill Rd

W 12th St

W 1st St

E V ikin

g Rd
W Viking Rd

Un
ion

 Rd

W 27th St

SM
ain

St

Lincoln St

NUnion Rd E Lone Tree Rd

Le
ver

see
Rd

E 1st St
®¬57

®¬58

®¬27 £¤63£¤20

£¤218

^
Location

Map

677

Item 34.



678

Item 35.

WagnerS
Typewritten Text
Daily Invoices for 01/02/2023 Council Meeting



679

Item 35.



680

Item 35.



681

Item 35.



682

Item 35.



683

Item 35.



684

Item 35.



685

Item 35.



686

Item 35.



687

Item 35.



688

Item 35.



689

Item 35.



690

Item 35.

WagnerS
Typewritten Text
Council Invoices for 01/03/2023 Meeting



691

Item 35.



692

Item 35.



693

Item 35.



694

Item 35.



695

Item 35.



696

Item 35.



697

Item 35.



698

Item 35.



699

Item 35.



700

Item 35.



701

Item 35.



702

Item 35.



703

Item 35.



704

Item 35.



705

Item 35.



706

Item 35.



707

Item 35.



708

Item 35.



709

Item 35.



710

Item 35.



711

Item 35.



712

Item 35.



713

Item 35.



714

Item 35.



715

Item 35.


	Top
	Item 1.	Regular meeting of December 19, 2022
	221219MINUTES

	Item 2.	PH-Capital Improvements Program
	CIP Cover Memo
	1 CIP
	2 CIP
	3 CIP
	4 CIP
	5 CIP
	6 CIP

	Item 3.	Reimbursement Resolution
	cip reimb res.MEM
	reimb res

	Item 4.	PH-Southwest Cedar Falls Urban Renewal Plan
	1_Council Memo on SW CF URP Public Hearing January 3, 2023
	2_Map for Southwest Cedar Falls URA
	3_Resolution Approving SW Cedar Falls URP

	Item 5.	Property Acquisition - 6512 W. Ridgeway Avenue
	1_Memo to Council Approving Purchase Agreement 01-03-23
	2_Site Map
	3_Purchase Agreements - Signed

	Item 6.	Repass-Mayor Veto-Ord. 3021
	2022-12-13_ZoningSimpleMajorityVeto
	3021-Vetoed 12.13.22

	Item 7.	Repass-Mayor Veto-Ord. 3022
	2022-12-13_ZoningSimpleMajorityVeto
	3022-Vetoed 12.13.22

	Item 8.	Appt Mayor Pro Tem
	2022-12-14_DesignationOfMayorProTempore

	Item 9.	Appt Standing Committee Chairs
	2022-12-14_AnnualAppointmentofStandingCommitteeMembers

	Item 10.	Disclosure of Conflicts-Elected Officials
	2022-12-23_ConflictOfInterestForms
	Disclosure of Conflicts

	Item 11.	FY24-Goal Setting Report
	Cedar Falls Goal Setting FY24 Report pdf

	Item 12.	Standing Committee Minutes - 12/19/22
	12-19-22 Standing Committees Minutes-Final

	Item 13.	CFD 1123: Council Mtg. Security
	2022-12-22_CoverLetterforCFD1123.22
	CFD 1123.22 - Mayor Policy - Council Meeting Security and Good Order

	Item 14.	CFD 1129: Administrator Performance Evaluation
	2022-12-28_AdministratorEvaluationCover letter
	CFD 1129.22 - Mayor Policy - Administrator Performance Evaluation

	Item 15.	Housing Commission Resignation
	3841_001

	Item 16.	Departmental Monthly Report
	11 - November 2022 Departmental Monthly Report

	Item 17.	Liquor Beer 01-03-23
	Retail alcohol 01-03-23

	Item 19.	FY24 City Council Goals
	CFD 1101.xx - Council Goals Work Program and ST Financial Plan - FY2024 redlined #2
	CFD 1101.xx - Council Goals Work Program and ST Financial Plan - FY2024 final

	Item 20.	Cope Murphy Services Agreement
	council lobbyist2022.mem
	Cedar Falls contract 2023 2024

	Item 21.	Personnel Policy 307: Overtime
	1-3-23 Overtime Personnel Policy Change Memo to Mayor Council
	307 Overtime Redline 12.14.22 (1)

	Item 22.	Assessment-316 East 10th Street
	Assessment-316 E. 10th St

	Item 23.	Assessment-323 West 2nd Street
	Assessment-323 West 2nd St

	Item 24.	Assessment-829 Lilac Lane
	Assessment-829 Lilac Lane

	Item 25.	Police-Drug Task Force-Easy Money
	Easy Money

	Item 26.	Police-Drug Task Force- Southwest Express
	Southwest Express

	Item 27.	Agreement: Travel Iowa Data Coop Agreement
	1. Memo to Mayor and Council 1-3-2023 IEDA_Agreement
	2. Travel Iowa Data Coop Agreement Draft 2023 - CF Tourism

	Item 28.	MRA-Cedar Falls High School
	1. Memo - MRA Highschool
	CFCSD M&R

	Item 29.	MRA-Covenant Medical Center
	1. Memo - MRA Covenant Medical Center
	2. MRA - Covenant Medical Center

	Item 30.	Purchase Agreement-Main St. Recon-Parcel 186
	1. ROW Memo - Main Street Reconstruction
	2. Main Street Strip Map (2022-0523)
	3.Main Street Temp. Easement Agreement

	Item 31.	Deeds-Main Street Recon-Parcel-204 &295
	1. Warranty Deed Memo - Main Street Reconstruction
	2. Main Street Strip Map (2022-0523)
	Parcel 204
	Parcel 295 - Permanent Acquisition Warranty Deed

	Item 32.	Site Plan Review for Triplex on Lot 4, Hanna Park
	1 staff report to CC
	2. ZoningLocationMap
	3. Submittal Set 11-1-22
	4. LGC-Michaelsen III-PLANS

	Item 33.	Set PH - Rezoning to R-4-Midway Business Park
	1_CC Memo for ZA Midway Business Park
	2_ZoningLocationMap

	Item 34.	Set PH- Rezoning – Lots 1-4 of Midway 2nd Addition
	1_CC Memo for Rezone of Lovejoy Cul-de-sac
	2_ZoningLocationMap

	Item 35.	Bills and Claims 01/03/23
	1 Daily Invoices 010323
	2 Council Invoices 010323

	Bottom

